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CORPORATE INFORMATION

A EEH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chang Chih-Chia (Chairman)
(appointed on 6 May 2024)
Dr. Huang Yuan (Chairman)
(appointed on 1 April 2023 and resigned on 18 April 2024)

Mr. Bu Youjun (appointed on 1 April 2023 and
resigned on 21 June 2024)

Mr. Yang Xuefeng (appointed on 1 April 2023)

Dr. Wang Lei (appointed on 21 June 2024)

Mr. Chen Rongsheng (Chairman)
(resigned on 1 April 2023)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Liu Yixing (appointed on 6 May 2024)
Mr. Liu Xin (resigned on 6 May 2024)

Mr. Feng Zhidong

Mr. Wang Bo

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Lo Wan Man

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Ms. Liu Yixing (Chairman)
(appointed on 6 May 2024)

Mr. Liu Xin (Chairman)
(resigned on 6 May 2024)

Mr. Feng Zhidong

Mr. Wang Bo

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Chang Chih-Chia (Chairman)
(appointed on 6 May 2024)
Dr. Huang Yuan (Chairman)
(appointed on 1 April 2023 and resigned on 18 April 2024)
Mr. Chen Rongsheng (resigned on 1 April 2023)
Mr. Liu Xin (resigned on 6 May 2024)
Mr. Wang Bo
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Ms. Liu Yixing (Chairman)
(appointed on 6 May 2024)

Mr. Liu Xin (Chairman)
(resigned on 6 May 2024)

Mr. Feng Zhidong

Mr. Wang Bo

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Unit 01, 86/F

International Commerce Centre
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Kowloon

Hong Kong

AUDITOR

McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

Ocorian Trust (Cayman) Ltd.
Windward 3

Regatta Office Park

P. O. Box 1350

Grand Cayman

KY1-1108

Cayman Islands
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PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Dah Sing Bank, Limited

DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Fujian Haixia Bank Co., Ltd.

The Bank of East Asia, Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
United Overseas Bank Limited

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Union Registrars Limited

Suites 3301-04, 33/F

Two Chinachem Exchange Square
338 King’s Road

North Point

Hong Kong

STOCK CODE

01657

WEBSITE

www.kh-holdings.com
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

ERBE

Dear shareholders,

PROSPECTS

The Group’s overall revenue decreased by approximately 28.6% to
approximately HK$175,174,000 during the year ended 31 March
2024 (2023: HK$245,349,000). The loss and total comprehensive
income for the year ended 31 March 2024 attributable to owners of
the Company amounted to approximately HK$56,490,000 (2023:
HK$74,115,000).

The Hong Kong construction sector remains challenging throughout
the year. Following the serious disruptions caused by the outbreak
of COVID-19, the construction industry is currently facing direct and
indirect operational and financial risks marked by increasing interest
rates, shortage and ageing issues of labour supplies, potential
adjustments in the local housing market, and a slowdown in the
global economy.

In response to uncertain economic conditions during the year, the
Group shifted its primary focus from a proactive tender strategy to
improving its liquidity position by reducing the capital expenditures
of the Group. This involved strategic disposal of non-profitable
machineries, redemption of negative performing life insurance policies,
reduce debt size and office overheads. The net proceeds from these
disposal and redemption were used for general working capital and
repayment of bank borrowings, aiming to reduce maintenance and
storage costs for machineries and trim down finance costs amid an
increasing interest rate environment.

Looking ahead, the Board remains prudently optimistic about the
prospects of the foundation industry in Hong Kong as a result of
long-term housing development and land policy and tremendous
opportunities in the PRC. The Group will continue to exercise due
care in pursuing its core business and promoting its development
plans, so as to balance the risks and opportunities in the foundation
industry of Hong Kong.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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Furthermore, with the ongoing impact of global warming leading to
extreme weather conditions, our ecological environment is further
damaged. The development of environmental recycling, renewable
energy, and new energy materials is a global trend. The space for
sustainable development in new materials and environmental energy
regeneration is vast. The Company has conducted market analysis
and industry research, and in line with China’s 14th Five-Year Plan,
under policies involving carbon neutrality, energy conservation,
environmental energy, and emission reduction, new energy materials
and environmental recycling possess significant business potential
and sustainable development opportunities. The Company has
also further researched and experimented in this area, deploying
and studying the feasibility of future industry developments. In the
first quarter of this year, the company also initiated the trade of
chemicals as a pilot and stepping stone into the market, while also
expanding opportunities for further exploration and research. Under
the leadership of the Board of Directors and management, the
Company is poised to explore new horizons for future development.
The management is also continuously identifying development
opportunities in new energy materials and environmental recycling
industries, strengthening the relevant team configurations, and do
not rule out the possibility of further expanding these businesses to
explore new revenue and profit growth opportunities. Particularly with
the popularization of electric vehicles, there is significant potential
for the application of clean energy, including battery component
recycling and reuse. As the Company has initiated chemical trade, it
will also actively enhance research in related areas and explore other
development opportunities, believing that future development in this
area is promising. The Group will closely and carefully monitor the
latest development of the global economy and adjust its business
strategies from time to time.

Lastly, on behalf of the Board, | wish to take this opportunity to
express my deep gratitude to our shareholders, investors and
business partners for their continuous trust and support. | would also
like to express our sincere appreciation to the fellow Directors and
staff for their contribution and dedication to the continuous business
development of the Group.

Mr. Chang Chih-Chia
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 June 2024
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

AND ANALYSIS
EEENWR D

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group was principally
engaged in the provision of foundation and construction services (the
“Foundation and Construction”) and sales of chemical products (the
“Trading”).

FOUNDATION AND CONSTRUCTION SERVICES

There were 3 active projects as at 31 March 2023. As at 31 March
2024, 1 of these projects have been practically completed while the
other 3 projects remain in progress. During the year ended 31 March
2024, 2 new projects have been awarded to the Group. As such,
there were a total of 3 projects in progress as at 31 March 2024.

SALES OF CHEMICAL PRODUCTS

In order to diversify the income stream and business risks, the Group
commenced to engage in sales of chemical products during the year
ended 31 March 2024.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
REVENUE

The Group’s overall revenue decreased by 28.6% from approximately
HK$245,349,000 during the year ended 31 March 2023 to
approximately HK$175,174,000 during the year ended 31 March
2024. The decrease in the Group’s overall revenue was mainly
attributable to decrease in workdone after completion of certain large
projects during the year ended 31 March 2024.

GROSS LOSS/GROSS LOSS MARGIN

The overall gross loss increased by 7.1% from approximately
HK$28,983,000 during the year ended 31 March 2023 to
approximately HK$31,039,000 during the year ended 31 March
2024. The overall gross loss margin increased from approximately
11.8% during the year ended 31 March 2023 to approximately 17.7%
during the year ended 31 March 2024 and such increase was mainly
attributable to the increase in construction costs incurred during the
completion stage of certain projects during the year ended 31 March
2024.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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OTHER INCOME

The Group’s other income increased from approximately
HK$10,239,000 during the year ended 31 March 2023 to
approximately HK$90,925,000 during the year ended 31 March
2024. Such increase was mainly attributable to the fact that the
Group recognised the compensation from the former ultimate
holding company, New Grace Gain Limited (“New Grace Gain”) of
HK$90,000,000 under the Project Performance Guarantee (as defined
in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements) during the year
ended 31 March 2024 while no such income was recognised during
the year ended 31 March 2023.

ADMINISTRATIVE AND OTHER OPERATING
EXPENSES

The Group’s administrative and other operating expenses was
approximately HK$33,584,000 during the year ended 31 March
2024 which is comparable to the administrative and other operating
expenses of approximately HK$34,448,000 during the year ended 31
March 2023.

PROVISION FOR EXPECTED CREDIT LOSS ON
TRADE RECEIVABLES AND CONTRACT ASSETS,
NET OF REVERSAL OF IMPAIRMENT LOSS

Decrease in net provision for ECL on trade receivables and contract
assets from approximately HK$6,000,000 during the year ended 31
March 2023 to approximately HK$768,000 during the 31 March 2024
as a result of the sufficient provision have been made.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWR DN

WRITTEN-OFF OF CONTRACT ASSETS

The Group recognised written-off of contract assets increased
from approximately HK$4,602,000 during the year ended 31 March
2023 to approximately HK$65,932,000 during the year ended 31
March 2024. Such increase was mainly attributable to i) certain long
outstanding projects were reached final agreement with customers
with lower final settlement amount and ii) due to the uncertain
economic conditions, the Group’s management exercised greater
caution and provided more conservative estimations on the contract
receivables. As mentioned in “OTHER INCOME” paragraph above, the
written-off of contract assets were compensated by New Grace Gain
under the Project Performance Guarantee.

FINANCE COSTS

The Group’s finance costs decreased from approximately
HK$10,321,000 during the year ended 31 March 2023 to
approximately HK$9,179,000 during the year ended 31 March 2024,
Such decrease was mainly attributable to the decrease in interests
payment to banks from approximately HK$4,015,000 during the year
ended 31 March 2023 to approximately HK$2,463,000 during the
year ended 31 March 2024.

NET LOSS

As a result of the abovementioned, the Group reported a net loss of
approximately HK$51,560,000 (2023: HK$74,115,000) during the
year ended 31 March 2024.

DEBTS AND CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 March 2024, the total debts of the Group, including bank
borrowings, lease liabilities and other borrowings is approximately
HK$25,667,000 (2023: HK$211,686,000).

As at 31 March 2024, the Group’s banking facilities were secured
by (i) the Group’s trade receivables and retention receivables under
contract assets or contract liabilities of approximately HK$17,982,000
(2023: HK$53,139,000); (ii) the Group’s pledged bank deposits of
Nil (2023: HK$39,316,000); (i) the Group’s right-of-use assets and
property, plant and equipment with total net carrying amounts of Nil
(2023: HK$15,565,000); (iv) the Group’s deposits and prepayments
for life insurance policies of Nil (2023: HK$19,502,000); (v) receivable
rights of gross income from certain projects; (vi) a personal guarantee
executed by a director of a subsidiary of the Company; and (vii) the
corporate guarantees executed by the Company and the subsidiaries
of the Company.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWR D

As at 31 March 2024, the guarantees on performance bonds
amounting to approximately HK$10,158,000 (2023: HK$13,778,000)
are secured by (i) the Group’s other receivables of approximately
HK$2,361,000 (2023: HK$5,981,000); (i) a personal guarantee
executed by a director of a subsidiary of the Company; and (iii)
corporate guarantees executed by the Company and a subsidiary of
the Company.

Besides, pursuant to the terms of the sales and purchase agreement
entered into between New Grace Gain and Blessing Well Enterprise
Limited (“Blessing Well”) on 27 April 2018, New Grace Gain provided
an unsecured, interest-free loan of HK$100,000,000 to the Company
on 25 May 2018 for a term of 30 months (the “Unsecured Loan”).
New Grace Gain shall not be entitled to demand early repayment and
the Company has no right to make early repayment of the Unsecured
Loan.

Up to 31 March 2023, New Grace Gain and the Company have
entered into 7 additional supplemental agreements to extend the
repayment period for the Unsecured Loan. HK$70,000,000 of the
Unsecured Loan (the “70 Million Loan”) extended from 30 months to
72 months. The remaining Unsecured Loan of HK$30,000,000 (the
“30 Million Loan”) extended from 30 months to 66 months.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, New Grace Gain agreed
to discharge a portion of the Unsecured Loan amounting to
HK$90,000,000 to recover an equivalent amount of loss arising
from certain foundation projects of the Group under the Project
Performance Guarantee.

As at 31 March 2024, the carrying amount of the unsecured loan
after settlement under the Project Performance Guarantee amounted
to approximately HK$10,000,000 (2023: HK$93,789,000), and
out of which, amounting to approximately HK$5,000,000 (2023:
HK$70,000,000) can be further offset against any future project loss
under the Project Performance Guarantee.

Borrowings were denominated in Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$”) and
interests on bank borrowings were mainly charged at floating rates.
The Group currently does not have any interest rate hedging policy
while the Group pays vigilant attention to and monitors interest rate
risks continuously and cautiously.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWR DN

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

The Group normally meets its liquidity and capital requirements
primarily through capital contributions from the shareholders and bank
and other borrowings.

As at 31 March 2024, the Group had pledged bank deposits, and
bank and cash balances of approximately HK$84,497,000 (2023:
HK$98,074,000). The gearing ratio of the Group as at 31 March
2024 (defined as the total borrowings divided by total equity) was not
applicable since the Group recorded a deficit attributable to owners of
the Company as at 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023: 20,632.2%). As
at 31 March 2024, the current ratio of the Group was 0.8 (31 March
2023: 1.0).

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group did not employ any
financial instruments for hedging purpose.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency risk, as
except for United States Dollar (“US$”) denominated deposits
and prepayments for life insurance policies and Renminbi (“RMB”)
denominated bank balances, most of its business transactions,
assets and liabilities are principally denominated in HK$, the functional
currencies of the Group’s entities. The Group currently does not
have a foreign currency hedging policy in respect of foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group monitors its foreign
currency exposure closely and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.

As at 31 March 2024, if HK$ had strengthened 5 percent against the
RMB with all other variables held constant, consolidated loss after tax
for the year ended 31 March 2024 would have been approximately
HK$2,197,000 (2023: HK$2,504,000) higher, arising mainly as a
result of the foreign exchange loss on bank balances denominated
in RMB. If Hong Kong Dollar had weakened 5 percent against RMB
with all other variables held constant, the consolidated loss after
tax for the year would have been approximately HK$2,197,000
(2023: HK$2,504,000) lower, arising mainly as a result of the foreign
exchange gain on bank balances denominated in RMB.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWR DT

Sensitivity analysis on life insurance policies will not be performed as
US$ is pegged against HK$ and the risk of movements in exchange
rates between US$ and HKS$ is insignificant.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS

Save as those disclosed in notes 17, 18 and 19 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group did not have any other significant
investments, material acquisitions or disposals during the year ended
31 March 2024.

Save as those disclosed in note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements, there was no other formal plan authorised by the Board
for any significant investments, material acquisitions or disposals as at
31 March 2024 and up to the date of this annual report.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 March 2024, the Group had 81 employees (2023: 98
employees). Most of the Group’s employees are foundation and
construction workers in Hong Kong. The remuneration policy and
package of the Group’s employees are periodically reviewed.
Apart from the Mandatory Provident Fund and in-house training
programmes, salary increments and discretionary bonuses may be
awarded to the employees according to the assessment of individual
performance. The total staff costs incurred by the Group during the
year ended 31 March 2024 were approximately HK$39,575,000
(2023: HK$50,259,000).
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

To create a long term value for the interests of the shareholders of
the Company (the “Shareholders”) is the Board’s main objective. As
such, the Board is highly committed to achieving a high standard
of corporate governance and striving to maintain the management
practices in a transparent and responsible way. The Board reviews
and improves the Group’s corporate governance practices and
business ethics on an ongoing basis.

During the year ended 31 March 2024 and up to the date of this
annual report, save as disclosed in the following paragraph, the
Company has complied with all the code provisions, where applicable,
as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

Under the code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of the
chairman of the board and the chief executive (“CE”) should be
separate and should not be performed by the same individual.

Dr. Huang Yuan and Mr. Chang Chih-Chia is the Chairman of the
Board on or before 18 April 2024 and on or after 6 May 2024
respectively. There is not a post of the CE in the Company. The
responsibilities of the Chairman of the Board and the CE of the
Company are currently taken up by the Chairman of the Board and
the other members of the Board. The Board will continuously review
and improve the corporate governance practices and standards of
the Group to ensure that business activities and decision-making
processes are regulated in a proper and prudent manner.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct
for dealing in securities of the Company by the Directors. All the
Directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry by the Company,
their compliance with the required standard set out in the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 March 2024.
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THE BOARD
RESPONSIBILITIES

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Group,
and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and
performance. The Board has delegated to the senior management
the authority and responsibility for the day-to-day management and
operation of the Group. Besides, the Board has established Board
committees and has delegated to these Board committees various
responsibilities as set out in their respective terms of reference.

The Board is also responsible for performing corporate governance
duties of the Group and will assign relevant functions to other board
committees, namely the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”), the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”)
and the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) (collectively, the
“Board Committees”) as and when appropriate.

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its
Directors and senior management arising out of corporate activities.

COMPOSITION

The Board currently comprises six members, consisting of three
Executive Directors and three Independent Non-executive Directors.
Details of the composition of the Board and biographies of the
Directors are set out on pages 2 and 3 of this annual report in
the section of “Corporate Information” and on pages 56 to 62 of
this annual report in the section of “Profile of Directors and Senior
Management”, respectively.

The Board possesses the skills, experience and expertise either in the
same industry or relevant to the management of the business of the
Group which brings a good balance of relevant skills and experience
to the Company. The Independent Non-executive Directors also
provide their independent professional judgments on the assessment
of the development, performance and risk management of the Group.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a Board Diversity Policy of which
the diversity of the Board is considered in terms of factors such
as gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
All Board appointments are based on merit, and candidates are
considered against various objective criteria, with due regard to the
benefits of diversity of the Board.
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As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises six
Directors. The following tables illustrate the diversity of the board
members as of the date of this annual report:

RAFEHREY EFEhREFAK -
TRIPABEAFHRAPETENENS
it

Age Group
F 48 Bl
31 to 40 41 to 50
Name of Directors =g 315% £405% 415% £505%
Mr. Chang Chih-Chia (Chairman) RBELE(FE) 4
Dr. Wang Lei FaiELT v
Mr. Yang Xuefeng B2 E 4 v
Mr. Feng Zhidong BEREE v
Ms. Liu Yixing ABELZ L v
Mr. Wang Bo TR A 4
Professional Experience
Information
technology/ Investment
: ) ) consultancy
computing Banking and Accounting and
engineering finance and law accounting
EREM/
Name of Directors Espsg ERIR BARME BikiER REZARES
Mr. Chang Chih-Chia (Chairman) RHELE(LE) v
Dr. Wang Lei THEET v "
Mr. Yang Xuefeng k=St v/
Mr. Feng Zhidong BEREE 4 v/
Ms. Liu Yixing AEERT v/
Mr. Wang Bo FREE v

Measurable Objectives and Selection

The Company currently has one female Director. To achieve the
aim of gender diversity of the Board, the Company will endeavor to
recommend more female Director for approval by the Shareholders
by the end of 2025. The Board will ensure that appropriate balance
of gender diversity is achieved with reference to stakeholders’
expectation and international and local recommended best practices,
with the ultimate goal of bringing the Board to gender parity. The
Board also aspires to having an appropriate proportion of Directors
who have direct experience in the Group’s core markets, with
different ethnic backgrounds, and reflecting the Group’s strategy.
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Details on the gender ratio of the Group together with relevant data
can be found in the ESG Report of the Company for the year ended
31 March 2024.

Implementation and Monitoring

The Nomination Committee will monitor the implementation of the
Board Diversity Policy and report to the Board annually.

MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE

The attendance of individual members of the Board at various
meetings during the year ended 31 March 2024, as well as the
number of such meetings held, are set out below:

B RS E MR O 15 E R AR BUE
HENRAARBEE-_ZE-_WE=A=+—8”
HFEEMRE H8RERRE -

BEREREE
RAZBEREREZTE L TEHRNE
EER UBFRAEESER -

SN EFEER
BE-T-ME-A=+—BLEE @
BlEREKANTRAEEZ HFELRA
BEHZBTREBRIIMT -

Number of meetings attended/held

HE/ BT ceE8E
Audit Nomination Remuneration Annual
Board Committee Committee Committee General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
ENEES REZEE 0 B3 REEE
EZgga -] L-E -] N
Executive Directors BTES

Mr. Chen Rongsheng® BREE AP N/ATR i N/AT & N/ATiE N/AT & N/AT i
Dr. Huang Yuan" BRELY 5/5 N/AT & A 11 N/AT & 11
Mr. Bu Youjun® MNREH£AO 5/5 N/AT i N/AT i N/AT i N/AT i B
Mr. Yang Xusfeng SES Sk 5/5 N/ATE N/AT & B N/AT & B 11

Independent Non-executive ~ BUFHITES

Directors

Mr. Liu Xin el 5/5 2/2 1/1 1/1 1/1
Mr. Feng Zhidong BEREE 5/5 2/2 N/ATE A 1/1 1/1
Mr. Wang Bo TREE 5/5 2/2 1/1 1/1 1/1

1. Appointed on 1 April 2023 and resigned on 18 April 2024

2. Resigned on 1 April 2023
3. Appointed on 1 April 2023 and resigned on 21 June 2024

4. Appointed on 1 April 2023
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RELATIONSHIP

None of the members of the Board has any relationship (including
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationships)
between each other.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has complied with Rules 3.10(1) and (2), and Rule
3.10A of the Listing Rules during the year ended 31 March 2024
regarding appointment of Independent Non-executive Directors.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules, the Company
has received written confirmation from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors confirming his independence from the
Company, and considers all of the Independent Non-executive
Directors to be independent in accordance with the independence
guidelines as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND DEVELOPMENT

During the year ended 31 March 2024, Directors participated
in seminars according to their own preferences as continuing
professional trainings for corporate governance and compliance
purposes.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF
DIRECTORS

Each Director receives a comprehensive, formal and tailored
induction package to ensure that he understands the business and
operations of the Group and is sufficiently aware of his responsibility
and obligation under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory
requirements.

The Directors are kept informed on the developments of the statutory
and regulatory regime, and the changes in the business markets so
as to facilitate them to fulfil their responsibilities and obligations under
the Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements. Continuing
briefings and professional development for Directors will be arranged
by the Company when considered necessary.
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During the year ended 31 March 2024, according to the records
provided by the Directors, the individual training record of each
Director received for the year is summarised below:

Dr. Huang Yuan =RIEL
Mr. Bu Youjun NRE LA
Mr. Yang Xuefeng B2 EE
Mr. Liu Xin laT Rt
Mr. Feng Zhidong BEREE
Mr. Wang Bo TR AE

Mr. Chang Chih-Chia, Dr. Wang Lei and Ms. Liu Yixing obtained the
legal advice referred to in Rule 3.09D of the Listing Rules on 6 May
2024. Each of Mr. Chang Chih-Chia, Dr. Wang Lei and Ms. Liu Yixing
has confirmed that he/she understand his/her obligations as a director
of the Company.

CHAIRMAN

Mr. Chang Chih-Chia is the chairman of the Board who is responsible
for overseeing the overall management of the Group, including the
daily operations, business development and strategic planning. He
ensures that all the Directors are properly briefed on issues raised
during Board meetings and receive adequate, complete and reliable
information in a timely manner.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established Board Committees to oversee specific
aspects of the Company’s affairs and help it in the execution of
its responsibilities. Specific written terms of reference of these
committees clearly outline each committee’s authority and duty.

Each committee is required to report back to the Board its decisions
or recommendations, unless there are any legal or regulatory
restrictions imposed on it.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for (a) the appointment and
re-appointment of Company’s auditor; (b) reviewing the Company’s
financial information; (c) overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
system, risk management and internal control systems; and (d)
assessing the Group’s corporate governance functions. The full
version of the terms of reference of the Audit Committee is available
on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website at
www.kh-holdings.com.

The Audit Committee is currently made up of three Independent
Non-executive Directors, including Ms. Liu Yixing (chairman of the
Audit Committee), Mr. Feng Zhidong and Mr. Wang Bo. All members
of the Audit Committee possess the appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise
as required.

The Audit Committee held 2 committee meetings during the year
ended 31 March 2024.

SUMMARY OF WORK DURING THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2024

The Audit Committee held one meeting with the Auditor, McMillan
Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited, (without the presence of the
Executive Directors) to discuss and review the Group’s results for the
year ended 31 March 2023 and recommended the same to the Board
for approval. The Audit Committee also held another meeting (without
the presence of the Executive Directors) to discuss and review the
Group’s results for the six months ended 30 September 2023 and
recommended the same to the Board for approval.
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Other than the above, the Audit Committee has also reviewed the
terms of the Group’s continuing connected transactions that are
fully exempted from independent Shareholders’ approval, annual
review and all disclosure requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.76(1)
of the Listing Rules, and reviewed and discussed the Group’s risk
management and internal control function and its effectiveness, the
existing terms of reference of the Audit Committee and the Group’s
overall corporate governance functions.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for (a) reviewing
the structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge
and experience) of the Board at least annually and making
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy; (b) identifying
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and
selecting or making recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals nominated for directorships; (c) assessing the
independence of the Independent Non-executive Directors; and
(d) making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
reappointment of the Directors and succession planning for Directors
in particular the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive. The
full version of the terms of reference of the Nomination Committee
is available on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s
website at www.kh-holdings.com.

The Nomination Committee is currently made up of three members
including Mr. Chang Chih-Chia (chairman of the Nomination
Committee), Mr. Wang Bo and Ms. Liu Yixing.

The Nomination Committee held 1 committee meeting during the year
ended 31 March 2024.

The Nomination Committee held 1 committee meeting to review
and consider the composition of the Board, the independence of
the Independent Non-executive Directors and the existing terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee.
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BOARD NOMINATION POLICY

The Company has adopted a Board Nomination Policy for the
Nomination Committee to consider and make recommendations to
Shareholders for election as Directors at general meetings or appoint
as Directors to fill casual vacancies.

Selection Criteria

The factors listed below would be used as reference by the
Nomination Committee in assessing the suitability of a proposed
candidate:

(1)  reputation for integrity;

(2) accomplishment and experience in the business in which the
Group is engaged in;

(8) commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest;

(4) diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to race,
gender, age (18 years or above), educational background,
professional experience, skills and length of service;

(6) qualifications which include professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience that are relevant to the Company’s
business and corporate strategy;

(6) the number of existing directorships and other commitments
that may demand the attention of the candidate;

(7)  requirement for the Board to have Independent Non-executive
Directors in accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the
candidates would be considered independent with reference to
the independence guidelines set out in Rules 3.13 of the Listing
Rules;

(8) Board Diversity Policy of the Company and any measurable
objectives adopted by the Nomination Committee for achieving

diversity on the Board; and

(9)  such other perspectives appropriate to the Company’s business.
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Director Nomination Procedure

Subject to the provisions in the Articles of Association of the
Company and the Listing Rules, if the Board recognises the need
for an additional Director or a member of senior management, the
following procedure will be followed:

(1) The Nomination Committee and/or Board will identify potential
candidates based on the criteria as set out in the selection
criteria, possibly with assistance from external agencies and/ or
advisors;

(2)  The Nomination Committee and/or the Company Secretary of
the Company will then provide the Board with the biographical
details and details of the relationship between the candidate
and the Company and/or Directors, directorships held, skills
and experience, other positions which involve significant time
commitment and any other particulars required by the Listing
Rules, the Companies Act of the Cayman Islands and other
regulatory requirements for any candidate for appointment to
the Board;

(83) The Nomination Committee would then make recommendation
to the Board on the proposed candidate(s) and the terms and
conditions of the appointment;

(4)  The Nomination Committee should ensure that the proposed
candidate(s) will enhance the diversity of the Board, being
particularly mindful of gender balance;

(5) In the case of the appointment of an Independent Nonexecutive
Director, the Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
obtain all information in relation to the proposed Director to
allow the Board to adequately assess the independence of the
Director in accordance with the factors set out in Rules 3.13 of
the Listing Rules, subject to any amendments as may be made
by the Stock Exchange from time to time; and

(6) The Board will then deliberate and decide on the appointment
based upon the recommendation of the Nomination Committee.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for (a) making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and the
structure for all the Directors’ and senior management’s remuneration
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing remuneration policy; (b) reviewing and approving
the management’s remuneration proposals with reference to the
Board’s corporate goals and objectives; (c) determining, making
recommendations to the Board, considering and approving the
remuneration package of all the Directors and senior management
and the compensation arrangements relating to loss or termination
of office and dismissal or removal of the Directors; and (d) deciding
the remunerations with independence. The full version of the terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee is available on the Stock
Exchange’s website and the Company’s website at www.kh-holdings.
com.

The Remuneration Committee is currently made up of three members
including Ms. Liu Yixing (chairman of the Remuneration Committee),
Mr. Feng Zhidong and Mr. Wang Bo.

The Remuneration Committee held 1 committee meeting during the
year ended 31 March 2024.

SUMMARY OF WORK DURING THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2024

The Remuneration Committee held 1 committee meeting to review
and approve the remuneration package and structure of all the
Directors and senior management independently and the terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee.

Details of the five highest paid individuals in the Group and the
Directors’ emoluments are set out in notes 13 and 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S REMUNERATION

Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration
paid to the members of the senior management by band during the
year ended 31 March 2024 is set out below:

= AR E IR = 5
BIEDEE AT Z T RMEXEEA 5K
BE_Z-_NWF=A=1+—HRIEEAS
MEBEKES N2 HMEEERYIOT ¢

Number of
person(s)
Remuneration bands (HK$) e E (B o) AE
1,000,001 to 1,500,000 1,000,001%1,500,000 2
1,500,001 to 2,000,000 1,500,001%2,000,000 2
2,500,001 to 3,000,000 2,500,001 % 3,000,000 1
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION TEERBEE
The Board, through the Audit Committee, is responsible for performing EEZ 2B BEREZECBEHNITLEEA

the corporate governance functions, and it accordingly reviews
and monitors the training and continuing professional development
of Directors and the senior management, and ensures its policies
and practices in compliance with relevant laws and regulatory
requirements. During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Board
has reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the auditor, McMillan Woods
(Hong Kong) CPA Limited, received HK$830,000 for provision of audit
service.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

All the Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group.

The statement of the auditor, McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA
Limited, about its reporting responsibilities on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group is set out in the independent
auditor’s report on pages 74 to 82 of this annual report.

There are no material uncertainties relating to any events or conditions
which may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

In respect of code provision D.2.5 of the CG Code, the Company
should have an internal audit (the “IA Function”). Although the
Company did not establish a standalone Internal Audit Department
during the year ended 31 March 2024, the Board has put in place
adequate measures to perform the |A Function at different aspects
of the Group as the Company considers that close and regular
supervision by the Executive Directors and senior management, and
the maintenance of internal control guidance and procedures on
the Group’s critical operational cycles could provide sufficient and
effective internal control and risk management functions.

The Group’s risk management and internal control procedures include
a management structure with clearly defined lines of responsibility
and limits of authority. It primarily aims to provide a reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance that assets are properly safeguarded against
misappropriations, transactions are executed in accordance with the
management’s authorisation, and accounting records are reliable
and proper for preparing financial information and are not materially
misstated. The procedure is designed to identify, evaluate and
manage risks effectively rather than to eliminate all risks of failure.

There are also regular meetings held between the Directors and
senior management to review and monitor the business and financial
performance against the targets, the progress of certification and
progress payments from the customers, the efficiency in the use
of the Group’s resources in comparison to the budgets, and the
operational matters to ensure the Group has complied with the
regulations that have material impact to the Group’s business.
The aim is to enhance the communication and accountability of
the Directors and senior management so that significant strategic,
financial, operational and compliance risks or potential deviations are
timely and properly identified and dealt with in a proper manner.

The Board is responsible for maintaining adequate procedures of risk
management and internal control for the Group and the Board had
conducted an annual review of its effectiveness during the year ended
31 March 2024 through the Audit Committee. Same as last year’s
practice, the Company has engaged an external independent internal
control adviser to conduct a review on the internal control procedures
of the Group at both corporate level and business level (as agreed by
the Audit Committee). The review covered material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management
functions during the year ended 31 March 2024. The internal control
report has been circulated to the Audit Committee for review and
discussion. No significant areas of improvement which are required
to be brought to the attention of the Audit Committee have been
revealed.
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As such, the Board is satisfied that the Group’s internal control
procedures including financial, operational and compliance controls
and risk management functions as appropriate to the Group have
been put in place and considers that the Group’s internal control
procedures and risk management functions are both effective and
adequate.

The Board will review the need for the |IA Function on an annual basis.

INSIDE INFORMATION

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information, the Company:

° is aware of its obligations under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Cap. 571) (the “SFO”) and the Listing Rules and
is required, as soon as reasonably practicable after any
inside information has come to its knowledge, to disclose the
information to the public;

° has included in its staff manual a strict prohibition on the
unauthorised use of confidential or inside information; and

° has established and implemented procedures for responding to
external enquiries about the Group’s affairs.

Senior management is identified and authorised to act as the
Company’s spokespersons and respond to enquiries in allocated
areas of issues.

Training on inside information disclosure is provided to the Board to
enhance corporate governance.

COMPANY SECRETARY

During the year ended 31 March 2024, Ms. Lo Wan Man, the
company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”)
undertook no less than 22 hours of relevant professional training as
required under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. Her biography is set out
on page 62 of this annual report in the section of “Profile of Directors
and Senior Management”.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board has established a Shareholders’ communication policy
to ensure that Shareholders and potential investors are provided
with ready, equal and timely access to material information of
the Company in order to maintain an on-going dialogue with the
Shareholders and to enable the Shareholders to exercise their rights
in an informed manner.

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings,
share transfer, registration and payment of dividends to the
Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, details of which are
as follows:

Union Registrars Limited

Suites 3301-04, 33/F

Two Chinachem Exchange Square
338 King's Road

North Point

Hong Kong

A shareholder may send an enquiry to the registered office of the
Company at Unit 01, 86/F International Commerce Centre, 1 Austin
Road West, Kowloon, Hong Kong for the attention of the Board
in written form, which shall state the nature of the enquiry and the
reason for making the enquiry.

The Company has maintained a corporate website at
www.kh-holdings.com through which the Company’s updated
financial information, business development, announcements,
circulars, notices of meetings, press releases and contact details can
be accessed by the Shareholders and investors.

Overall, the Company considers the shareholders’ communication
policy of the Group to be effective and adequate. The Company
will continue to review the implementation and effectiveness of the
shareholders’ communication policy by shareholders’ feedback from
the above channel.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

1.

28

THE WAY IN WHICH SHAREHOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY (THE “SHAREHOLDERS”) CAN
CONVENE AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL
MEETING (“EGM”)

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles of Association, EGMs shall
be convened on the requisition of one or more Shareholders
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to require
an EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall
be held within two months after the deposit of such requisition.
If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the
failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by
the Company.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting,
and must be signed by the requisitionists and lodged to the
Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place of
business at Unit 01, 86/F, International Commerce Centre, 1
Austin Road West, Kowloon, Hong Kong and may consist of
several documents in like form each signed by one or more
requisitionists.

If the requisition is in order, the Company Secretary will ask
the Board to convene an EGM by serving sufficient notice
in accordance with the requirements under the Articles of
Association to all the registered Shareholders. On the contrary, if
the requisition is invalid, the members concerned will be advised
of this outcome, and accordingly, an EGM will not be convened
as requested.
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The notice period to be given to all the Shareholders for
consideration of the proposal raised by the Shareholders
concerned at an EGM varies, according to the nature of the
proposal, as follows:

o at least 14 days’ notice (the notice period must include
10 business days) in writing if the proposal constitutes an
ordinary resolution of the Company in an EGM.

o at least 21 days’ notice (the notice period must include
20 business days) in writing if the proposal constitutes a
special resolution of the Company in an EGM.

THE PROCEDURES SHAREHOLDERS CAN
USE TO PROPOSE A PERSON FOR ELECTION
AS A DIRECTOR

No person, other than a retiring Director, shall, unless
recommended by the Board for election, be eligible for election
to the office of Director at any general meeting, unless notice in
writing of the intention to propose that person for election as a
Director and notice in writing by that person of his willingness
to be elected including that person’s biographical details, shall
have been lodged to the Company Secretary at the Company’s
principal place of business at Unit 01, 86/F, International
Commerce Centre, 1 Austin Road West, Kowloon, Hong Kong,
at least 7 days before the date of the general meeting. The
lodgement of notice should also be in compliance with the other
requirements of the Listing Rules.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy that aims to provide
guidelines for the Board to determine whether dividends are to be
declared and paid to the shareholders and the level of dividend to be
paid. Under the Dividend Policy, in deciding whether to propose a
dividend and in determining the dividend amount, the Board shall take
into account, among others:

(1) the Group’s actual and expected financial performance;

(2) the Group’s expected working capital requirements, capital
expenditure requirements and future expansion plans;

(8) retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company
and each of the members of the Group;

(4)  the Group’s liquidity position;

(5) interest of shareholder;

(6) taxation consideration;

(7)  potential effect on creditworthiness;

(8) the general economic conditions and other internal or external
factors that may have an impact on the business or financial

performance and position of the Group; and

(9) any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.
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The declaration and payment of dividends by the Company shall
remain to be determined at the sole discretion of the Board and
is also subject to any restrictions under the Companies Act of the
Cayman lIslands, the Listing Rules, the laws of Hong Kong and the
Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association and any other
applicable laws and regulations. The Company does not have any
pre-determined dividend distribution ratio. The Company’s dividend
distribution record in the past may not be used as a reference or
basis to determine the level of dividends that may be declared or paid
by the Company in the future.

The Company will continually review the Dividend Policy and reserves
the right in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or
modify the Dividend Policy at any time, and the Dividend Policy shall
in no way constitute a legally binding commitment by the Company
that dividends will be paid in any particular amount and/or in no way
obligate the Company to declare a dividend at any time or from time
to time.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

On 30 September 2022, the amendments of the Memorandum
and Articles of Association have been approved in the annual
general meeting of the Company. Details of the amendments of the
Memorandum and Articles of Association have been set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 11 July 2022 and the circular
of the Company dated 18 July 2022. The amended Memorandum
and Articles of Association dated 30 September 2022 is available
on the Company’s website at www.kh-holdings.com and the Stock
Exchange’s website.

Save as disclosed therein, there were no significant changes in the
constitutional documents of the Company during the year ended 31
March 2024 and up to the date of this annual report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND

GOVERNANCE REPORT

R -HERERHKS

The Group contributes to sustainable development by delivering
environmental, social and economic benefits to all stakeholders
in a balanced way. This year, the Group is pleased to present our
environmental, social and governance (the “ESG”) report for the
year ended 31 March 2024 (the “ESG Report”) for the purpose
of demonstrating our efforts on sustainable developments to our
stakeholders.

This ESG Report has been prepared in accordance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide as set out
in Appendix C2 to the Listing Rules and is divided into two parts,
namely environmental and social.

The ESG Report basis of reporting principles — materiality, quantitative
and consistency:

° “Materiality” Principle: The Group determines material ESG
issues by stakeholder engagement and materiality assessment.

° “Quantitative” Principle: Information is presented with
quantitative measure, whenever feasible, including information
on the standards, methodologies, assumptions used and
provision of comparative data.

° “Consistency” Principle: The Report will use consistent
methodologies for meaningful comparisons in the past years
unless improvements in methodology are identified.

Unless otherwise specified, the reporting boundary of this ESG Report
covers the principal businesses of the Group. We regularly review the
scope of the ESG Report to ensure that significant impacts to the
Group’s overall business portfolio are covered.
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BOARD STATEMENT

The Board has a primary role in overseeing the Group’s ESG issues.
During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Board, the management
and the ESG Working Team spent substantial time in evaluating the
impacts of ESG-related risks towards the operation and formulating
ESG-related policies in dealing with relevant risks. The oversight of
the Board ensures that the management and the ESG Working Team
can have the right tools and resources to oversee the ESG issues.

The Board is responsible for monitoring the Group’s ESG strategies
and reporting, ensuring that the requirements set out by the Board
are met. Furthermore, the Board monitors and reviews the Group’s
compliance status of ESG-related laws and regulations by external
regulatory bodies, such as The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“HKEX”). Regular Board meetings are hosted regularly to
help understanding the progress, targets and goals on ESG related
performances.

The management and the ESG Working Team is primarily responsible
for reviewing and supervising the ESG process and risk management
of the Group. ESG governance matters and ESG-related issues are
reviewed at the regular meeting during the year ended 31 March
2024.

The Board has identified potential and material issues to the business
and its stakeholders. The Board has also taken part in the Materiality
assessment as one of the key stakeholders of the Company in
providing constructive opinions on the materiality of ESG issues.
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MATERIALITY MATRIX

During the year, the Group has evaluated a number of environmental,
social and operation related issues, and assessed their importance to
stakeholders and the Group through various channels.

ERMEME

RER AEEZFHHZHERRE L8R
LERENEE UEBTRRENEH
AEEHRHERAERENERE -

Importance to the Group
HEASENEEM
Low Medium High
&® H =
High Anti-discrimination e Talent management Customers’ satisfaction Level
= 248 AT ER B PmEKT
Protecting labour rights e Staff training and promotion Anti-corruption
RIES T opportunity k&S
ETHIIHEEAKS Product quality and safety
o e Staff compensation and EREslLE
% welfare policies Suppliers management
S € B T3 2B B R 1
f‘g ‘m Occupational health and
(/7] = workplace safety
S BEREREIESMZE
§ E Medium Community involvement e Use of resources Operational compliance
Sx| = &2 BERE R HEAR
3 Protecting customers’
£ privacy
RETPILE
Air emissions
[ /R
Low Preventive measures for e Non-hazardous wastes Use of raw materials
1® child and forced labour produced R EHE A
TERFE T K& sl% TH SEREEEY Hazardous wastes
e produced
EERSEREY
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MAJOR RECOGNITIONS FERT
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL
ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Group is committed to carrying out construction works in a
manner with minimal adverse impact to the environment resulting
from our business activities.

.  EBR-AURRRE

A EIE
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() BEIRIME TR R

) P?PYE}EH;STZE%I@E%T%”THHB‘J?#W&EEI&% EAIHERTE
B FtRERHR EtREREN AR BRENEIREEREER

Y

To minimise the adverse environmental impacts concerning our site
activities, we shall:

° Comply with all the applicable legal requirements and the
environmental aspects of the contractual obligations to which
the Group subscribes.

° Prevent, reduce and eliminate pollution or any other degradation
of environment resulting from the production process or from
the use of goods and services.

° Reduce waste and minimise the consumption of resources.

° Try our endeavor to recycle practicable construction material in
our design and construction process.

° Educate, train and motivate employees to carry out tasks in an
environmentally responsible manner.

° Provide sufficient resources and facilities for the implementation
of environmental nuisance abatement and waste management.

o Obtain and renew the necessary environmental licenses,
registrations and permits.

° Encourage environmental protection among suppliers and
subcontractors.
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Collect energy usage data for analysis and future planning and
implementation.

Commit to continual improvement of environmental
performance.

The Group’s environmental management system has been accredited
by Accredited Certification International Limited with 1ISO 14001 :
2015 and ISO 50001 : 2018 certifications.

REGULATORY COMPLIANCE:

The Group is committed to ensuring its businesses are operated in
compliance with the following laws and regulations:

a.

Air Pollution Control Ordinance (Chapter 311 of the Laws of
Hong Kong)

Air Pollution Control (Non-road Mobile Machinery) (Emission)
Regulation (Chapter 311Z of the Laws of Hong Kong)

Noise Control Ordinance (Chapter 400 of the Laws of Hong
Kong)

Water Pollution Control Ordinance (Chapter 358 of the Laws of
Hong Kong)

Waste Disposal Ordinance (Chapter 354 of the Laws of Hong
Kong)

Environmental Impact Assessment Ordinance (Chapter 499 of
the Laws of Hong Kong)

Public Health and Municipal Services Ordinance (Chapter 132 of
the Laws of Hong Kong)

M g . D BB R DA 17 99T 3 A
KR IR B BT o

EAFEIERTEN
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A(I) EMISSIONS
EMISSIONS

(i) Since the Group did not consume town gas fuel and town gas
during the year ended 31 March 2024, therefore no emission
data is available.

(i) During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Nitrogen Oxides
(NOx), Sulfur Oxides (SOx), and Particulate Matter (PM) emitted
from the consumption of the Group’s motor vehicles are shown

A(l) BERa 9D

PER

() BREBEE-_ZT_WM&EF=ZA=1+—HI1
F 8K B I 88 Bk TR R
R WER] BB -

iy REZ2-_Z-_WF=-ZA=+—BHIF
B AEEAREFHRHASLY 7
S RBZYHRAT

as below:

2024 2023 Increase/
emission emission (decrease)

—E-ME —E-=F
HHE HmE  EmnCRd)

(approximately  (approximately
in gram) in gram) Percentage
Types of Emissions ERMeEE (%) (#y7%) =R
NOx CE=R )] 4.1 16.5 (75.2)
SOx ety 2,819.7 10,269.6 (72.5)
PM B2 0.3 1.2 (75.0)

The greenhouse gas (the “GHG”) emissions of the Group are mainly
generated from electricity and petrol consumed. The Group always
aims to reduce waste and minimise the consumption of electricity in
order to tackle GHG emissions issue.
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The table below highlights our carbon footprint during the year ended
31 March 2024.

TRINTFEMRBEE-_ZT_NF=A
=t —BIEFEHE

2024 2023 Increase/
Emission Emission (decrease)
—E-WmEF —E-=fF
ERE HmE i ORd)
(approximately  (approximately
in tonnes in tonnes
of CO,) of CO,) Percentage
(Z&E i (Z&bhR
Scope of GHG BERECEHE HE 4 W ) B4 E) Baotk
Scope 1 - direct emission F—HE-FEHERY 467.6 1,679.5 (72.2)
Scope 2 - indirect emission E_HE-HEERY 51.7 79.8 (35.2)
Scope 3 - other indirect emission F-®E - HmEE Ry 43.2 366.3 (88.2)
Total (a) Bt 562.5 2,125.6 (73.5)
Total average floor area BYHEIEE
(approximately in m?) (b) (EFKLE) (b) 71,149 78,099 8.9)
Intensity (tonnes of CO,/m?) RE (Z&/ME,/ FHX)
(d)=(a)/(b) (d)=(@)/(b) 0.01 0.03 (66.7)

The Group has previously set the amount of GHG emission for
the year ended 31 March 2024 to 7,000 tonnes. The target will be
reviewed in 2026. The Group has achieved this target during the year.

HAZARDOUS WASTE

To the best of our Directors’ knowledge, we believe that our business
does not generate any material amount of hazardous waste during
our construction process.

AEBRBHE-_T-_NF=A=1+—
BIEFERMREREEMER A7,000M °
ZHEBR T - RNFR c AEERF
WEZER I BE -

BEREY

BEFHAA - RPBERMNEBRIE
TEBRPIREELTNERBEEEREY -
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NON-HAZARDOUS WASTE

Due to the business nature of our Group, certain construction waste
is generated in our construction process. The construction waste
is disposed of at landfills or sold for recycling purposes. During the
year ended 31 March 2024, the total construction waste disposed of
at landfills and sold for recycling was approximately 31,961 tonnes
(2023: 37,231 tonnes) and approximately Nil kg (2023: 318,340 kg)
respectively. Our Group always tries our best to recycle practicable
construction material in our design and construction process.

BmEREZEY

ENAEBNELHEYD  ERMAKIAERE
FPEELETEEEEY BEEEDE
ERHHEEBRHIEAEBRKZS - BE=
E_ME=ZA=+—BIEE EEENHE
BERHENHBMNEEEZYRED
B A 31,9618 (—F — =4 : 37,231H8)
RHEFH(ZE =4 :318,340F %) o
RSB RETLREY AEF—F
B A YA BB R R EM K o

CONTRIBUTION TO GREEN BUILDINGS

Most of our customers had registered as BEAM (Building Environment
Assessment Method) Plus for their new building projects. Being one
of the contractors, we actively seek opportunities to increase our
contribution on the green building projects. We closely work with
clients to support their projects in attaining the target BEAM Plus
rating. The Group also encourages our employees to undertake
trainings on green building to enable the Group to contribute more in
the area of green building in the future.
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The Group also adopts certain methods for the reduction of dust ARNEBEJIEERLEE T @ F BN AR E
emissions by applying water sprays and using canvas at our JKE{EEWNMHIHE @ LUESUR D M EE SR
construction sites. HIRR o

Moreover, certain machineries of the Group and those newly |} ¥N REBMAE THERENZSHE
purchased machineries complied with the emission standards of B REEREHFESE BIABHERIZ % o
Stage IIA of the European Union.

In summary, to the best of our Directors’ knowledge, there is no HIFEME " MESZAEH  REE—-Z
material non-compliance with the applicable rules and regulations Z—PE=A=+—HIFFE RAEEKX
relating to air emissions, GHG emissions, water and land discharges, HEIWMEEFEE K EAREZH N 2 =R 2
and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous wastes in all material }it 155( FEKBEM N LB S A RELERE
aspects during the year ended 31 March 2024. N EREE Y AR E R AR MR -
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A(ll) USE OF RESOURCES

The main resources used by the Group in the construction process
are electricity, water, diesel, petrol and acetylene. In order to be an
environmentally responsible corporation, the Group has implemented
environmental management policies and internal principles so as to
minimise wastage and avoid excessive usage of precious resources.
For example, certain construction wastewater is collected and treated
for reuse on construction sites for suitable construction process.
In addition, the Group uses water tank in order to reduce the
consumption of water at our construction site.

As the Group’s operations are based in Hong Kong, we believe that
there is no material issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose.

A(ll) ERFER

AEEERIBEFERNEIEER/E
NS AR RO R RREKR
—RERFAENEE  AEBCDEHER
SEIEBR L ABIRA LU ADIRE MR
CREEREENER Pl HAERN
WRIWERREE THEIEK  BRAE
M TREREREM - N AEER
AP A 1 88 (5 A /KA AR D A K o

HRAKBE 2 EEUREL  REAMRD
ESREBERKERET L ESKFE -
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During the year ended 31 March 2024, the energy consumption by REZE-_Z-_WNE=A=+—HIFE -
type in total of the Group are showed as below: NEBFIZEEE S BN FEEREY R
I
2024 usage 2023 usage Increase/
—E-NE —E-=HE Unit/total (decrease)
ERE FRE floor areas*  #i1,/ (H5)
Direct/Indirect B/ M (approximately)  (approximately) B/ Percentage
Energy by Type BRZEE (#) (#9) Bk BAlt
Ol iy 29.1 95.4 KWh/m® (69.5)
FRE,/FHK
Electricity EW) 1.3 1.9 kWh/m? (31.6)
FRE,/FHK
. Total floor area was 71,149 m” in 2023 (2023: 78,099 m?) * T =FRAMEBERTI49F H K (Z

T — =4 : 78,009F 5 K)

The Group always promotes and implements “green” concept within -~ KEH —F R AEBE N BIZE R B 1 [ 4
our Group for environmental purpose. Details of which are further @& |B(REB4 - GEFBEE—FTHEERNT
disclosed in the section “The Environment and Natural Resources” < [IBIER KAREIR|—&5 o

below.

The Group has previously set the amount of consumption (i.e. ol KEBEFIEEHE "S- WE=/F=+—
consumed) for the year ended 31 March 2024 to 400 kWh/m?. The g |F&EE# 4 FES (BIFTEE B h) =T
target will be reviewed in 2026. The Group has achieved this target  A400F F i FEH K - ZBEBFENR -

during the year. ZARFRE  AEERFADERHEE -
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TOTAL PACKAGING MATERIAL USED FOR
FINISHED PRODUCTS

Due to the business nature of our Group, we do not use packaging
material for finished products.

A(lll) THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES

Protecting the environment is the responsibility of every staff in the
Group. Our Group is committed to sustainable construction and
minimising any adverse impact on the environment resulting from our
business activities.

Our Group is committed to delivering services with minimal negative
impact to the environment through the following principles:

° Focus on energy management throughout energy planning
(include design, review, monitoring performance) as critical
considerations within our core management process;

° Comply with the environmental aspects of the applicable legal
requirements and the other requirements to which the Group

subscribes;

° Regular performance reviews to ensure that energy objectives
and the requirements of interested parties are met;

° Provision of staff training to ensure understanding,
implementation and development of those principles throughout

our business; and

° Continual improvement.
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Fal
Ei3

The Group always promotes and implements “green” concept within ~ RNEE F E:F B N Y| IEHERRNEFRBRA
our Group mainly through the following measures: HENEWIGZE | BA

I

° Office power saving: Turn off lights and air-conditioning when
not in use and log off computer and turn off the screen when
not in use or during lunch hours.

e MAEHE:NEFTEMARALLRKHEEER RZ=HAL
REFEREMRF N FRAEES L ERMMBERARRE

° Paper saving: Use of email and other computer system for
document review purposes, reduction in printing and use of
recycled paper.

o HMAM: EREBREMERRFREM B FIE
I 158 PR 778 3R B Y R

o Reduction of the usage of bottled water: Use reusable cups to
reduce the use of plastic bottles.

o RAEMEEK : EAEHF MK AR ERBE
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° LED T8 lamps: Installation of LED T8 lamps phase by phase
for environmental protection purpose.

o T8 LEDRE : DIERZLKTS LEDE NEBIRMRAR ©

o Noise control: Site work hours restricted to 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. (except for those construction sites being
granted construction noise permit).

° Sound level meters are used in construction sites to monitor the noise level.

° Install noise barriers in construction sites to reduce the level of noise during construction.

e BREEH MBIVERERTEARFE L7TREZR F7HFIE (ARt RERELERZFFAIERIN) -
e NMBRARSHAERRIE -

o RNUMBLEBEFEARERIRKNRIKE -
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A(lV) CLIMATE CHANGE

The Group is committed to establishing climate resilience in the face
of climate change. We have assessed and evaluated the potential
climate physical and transitional risks to understand the climate risks
that we may face and the effects on the Group’s business.

The potential risk is that the physical assets and business operation
may be affected by extreme weather. For example, floods may occur
in construction sites, which may lead to larger expenses for the repair
and maintenance of physical assets and recovery of the construction
operation. The Group, as a responsible enterprise, is committed to
implement relevant measures to reduce greenhouse gas emissions
from business operations.

To cope with adverse weather conditions, the Group takes
precautionary and protective measures which include work schedule
rearrangement and redeployment of resources, to ensure the safety of
the employees, to minimize the negative impact on business process
and to avoid any physical damages to the assets of the Group.

A(lV) RiR& 1t

FERE N » TAIE G M2 47 B £ B R AR
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B. SOCIAL

B(l) EMPLOYMENT
EMPLOYMENT

The Group’s employment policy manages its staff recruitment,
salary adjustments and promotions and equal opportunities and
non-discrimination (such as gender, marital status, disability, age,
race, family status, sexual orientation, nationality and religion). As at
31 March 2024, the Group had 81 employees who are not Chinese.
Our Group’s employment policy is structured to comply with the
Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57), the Employees’ Compensation
Ordinance (Cap. 282), the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance
(Cap. 486), Sex Discrimination Ordinance (Cap. 480), the Disability
Discrimination Ordinance (Cap. 487) and the Minimum Wage
Ordinance (Cap. 608) of the Laws of Hong Kong. During the year
ended 31 March 2024, to the best of our Directors’ knowledge, we
did not identify any material non-compliance or breach of legislation.

The Group has a written policy on compensation, dismissal, work
hours, rest periods, staff benefits, staff training and health and safety.
The Group also targets to provide a friendly, comfortable and decent
work environment and career growth opportunities to our staff.

The Group is always highly committed to attracting and retaining
suitable talents in the competitive labour market in order to maintain
its competitiveness in the industry.
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As at 31 March 2024, the Group had 81 (2023: 98) full-time R-ZT—W&E=F=+—H ' KN&EEG81
employees. Most of the Group’s employees are foundation and % (_ - =—F:08%)2HEE - AEH
construction workers in Hong Kong. Below are certain key charts in  KZED B E AFEMENLEET A - LT
relation to our employment aspects. AHRERIEABOETEIEBREK -

2024 Employee distribution by gender 2023 Employee distribution by gender
>:$:$¥E1¢EU§I§}ZEI&@J FZEZEiﬁﬁEUQQZEIw@J
23% —» 22%—»

P Male Bt P Female ik P Male Bt P Female ik
2024 Employee distribution by age 2023 Employee distribution by age
TECNFERFRESZETILS TECCFRFRESZETISG
> >
o % 7%
21% —» 14% —»
+«—28% «—28%
46% —» 51% —»
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B(ll) HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Group’s health and safety policy is to achieve a safe work
environment which maintains a high standard of safety, health and
welfare and to take every reasonably practicable safety measures to
protect all people working on site and the public from danger, and to
take all possible measures to minimise the nuisance generated to the
nearby area.

Compliance with the law and contractual requirements is regarded
as the minimum standard of safety, health and welfare in our strategy
at all times. We are committed to improving the health and safety
performance continuously through regular training, inspection and
audit. Notwithstanding that our ultimate aim is the elimination of
all accidents, our immediate target is zero fatalities and to limit the
accident frequency rate to less than 0.6 reportable accident per
100,000 man-hour. We recorded zero reportable accident during the
year ended 31 March 2024 (2023: zero).

The outbreak of the novel coronavirus (2019-nCoV) poses a huge
challenge to health in Hong Kong. The Group has implemented the
following measures to protect our staff:

- All public area will be disinfected regularly;

- Provide mask and disinfection supplies to all staff;

- Request each staff to report their health status everyday;

- Provide flexible work hours for staff to avoid crowd; and

- Request each Department Head to monitor the health status of
its staff regularly.
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The occupational health and safety data are set out below:

2023
—E-=E
Male Female
Health and Safety @FEEZE B i
Number of work-related RITHRE
fatalities - -
Lost days due to work injury B L5 K18 %
RE 160 -

INTERNAL AND EXTERNAL SAFETY TRAINING

Safety is always our prime concern. All our staff are briefed and
trained with safety knowledge regularly to ensure that everyone
understands the risks of the task they are involved, has safety
consciousness and is familiar with safety precautions.

Our Safety Department is responsible for advising and assisting
management, project and operation staff, implementing our safety
management system, setting up in-house rules and providing safety
information and training.

Our subcontractors are formally notified and required to comply with
our policy and safety procedures.

To ensure our Safety Policy is well implemented, we will provide
adequate resources, and have different degrees of disciplinary action,
including warning and dismissal, to one who fails to follow the safety
policy and requirements.

Our Board, management, all supervisory and safety personnel
positively implement the Safety Policy and make every effort to meet
the target of zero accident.
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Our Corporate Safety Management Committee updates our Safety
Policy annually in accordance with the latest legislation and safety
regulations.

An independent health and safety audit at the corporate level is
conducted annually in order to verify the effectiveness, efficiency and
reliability of safety and health management system against criteria
stipulated as well as to identify areas for improvement.

The Group’s occupational health and safety management system has
been certified in compliance with ISO 45001 : 2018 by Accredited
Certification International Limited.

B(lll) DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group always promotes a continuous learning and development
culture within our Group and provides in-house training for all
new staff. We also have a training sponsorship program in order
to encourage and support our staff to pursue their professional
development through external training.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group provided 4 trainings
hours to our employees especially for occupational safety trainings.

B(IV) LABOUR STANDARDS

As the Group’s operations are based in Hong Kong, we believe that
there is no material risks inherent to child labour and forced labour.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, to the best of our Directors’
knowledge, we did not identify any material breaches in such area.

B(V) SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

The Group has been assessed and certified by Accredited
Certification International Limited that our quality management
system, which governs our daily operation for quality control and
improvement, had met the accreditation requirements of ISO 9001 :
2015.
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All potential new suppliers and subcontractors must pass our rigorous
evaluation. A screening process will be undertaken in regard to their
product and service quality, company licenses, accreditations, and
other qualifications to ensure they are qualified and compliant will our
standards.

Furthermore, an annual performance evaluation is in place for our
existing business partners to assess their qualifications, product
quality, delivery time, after-sales service, and other factors are taken
into account.

The Group is committed to supporting ethical procurement practices.
When generating purchase orders, we will take into account the
product’s environmental criteria in order to protect the health of
the end-users and avoid negative environmental consequences.
Supplier’s and service providers’ environmental management
systems, policies, and compliance status are assessed using a unique
environmental performance evaluation form. To avoid harming the
environment, the Group is also committed to prohibiting the use of
non-environmentally friendly items.

The geographical distribution of suppliers are set out below:

By Location 1% i B4
Hong Kong BE
Mainland China A A i
Other countries HaHR
Total P

The Group also holds regular visit for monitoring and inspecting the
qualities of the goods supplied by the suppliers and work performed
by the subcontractors.

As discussed in the “Health and Safety” section, our subcontractors
have been formally notified and required to comply with our policy
and safety procedure.
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The Group also holds regular visits for monitoring and inspecting the
qualities of the goods supplied by our suppliers and work performed
by our subcontractors.

B(VI) PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITIES

The Group’s principal business is the provision of foundation and
construction services in Hong Kong. Therefore, the products and
services we provide have limited relationship with advertising and
labeling. Nevertheless, the Group is highly committed to delivering to
our customers quality services in foundation and construction designs,
providing professional advices and making appropriate adjustments.
We will tackle any issue raised by our customers by rectifying it within
a reasonable time and ensuring our customers’ satisfaction.

DATA PRIVACY AND INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY
RIGHTS

The Group always emphasizes the importance of the protection of
intellectual property rights. We have marketed our business in Hong
Kong using . as our trademark which was properly registered in
Hong Kong in 2015. The Group will only use lawful software licenses
for compliance purpose. There are also written policies in our staff
manual to govern the areas in the control of confidential information.

B(VIl) ANTI-CORRUPTION

Integrity is one of the core values of our Group. There are written
policies in our staff manual to govern the areas in the avoidance of
bribery and corruption, extortion, fraud, money laundering, conflicts
of interests, allowable acceptance of gifts or entertainment and the
control of confidential information. It strictly applies to all levels of our
staff.
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A formal Whistle-blowing Policy has been adopted in the second
quarter of 2017 for corporate governance purpose.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group yet to provide its
employees any training in relation to anti-corruption.

To the best of our Directors’ knowledge, we are not aware of any
legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the Group or
our staff during the year ended 31 March 2024.

B(VIIl) COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

Although there is no specific strategy in community investment, the
Group takes our responsibilities to the communities of Hong Kong
very seriously. During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group
donated to Chinese Methodist Church North Point and Yan Chai
Hospital.

As a family-friendly employer, we always show our kindness and care
to our staff. There are written policies in our staff manual, including
the education sponsorship program to our staff, a long service award
to staff who have worked for over 5 years, a continuous 6 days’
paternity leave for each confinement of our male staff’'s spouse/
partner, a continuous 6 days’ marriage leave for our staff, a birthday
leave for our staff and a continuous 2 days’ compassionate leave for
our staff for social responsibilities purposes.

In order to comply with anti-epidemic measures, the Group did not
hold any corporate events during the year ended 31 March 2024.
Instead, the Group distribute gifts and coupons to its staff at various
festivals.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chang Chih-Chia (“Mr. Chang”), aged 50, obtained his
bachelor’s degree in Accounting from National Cheng Kung University
(BISZRCIN KR ER)in June 1999.

Mr. Chang served as a director of operations management
department of Century Technology (Shenzhen) Corporation Limited
OFREBYEE OFYI) R A 7)) from 2007 to 2015, the chief operating
officer and general manager of the Chongqging branch at China
Golden Holdings Limited (Fr ¥ £ B & R A 7)) from 2016 to 2017,
the general manager of industrial services department of China
Fortune Land Development Co., Lid (EEZRBEERND AR A T])
(a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock code:
600340) from 2017 to 2018, the executive vice president of Guangxi
Taijia Optoelectronics Technology Co., Ltd (BEFAE R L& E A
[ A a))from 2018 to 2019, and the project director of SDP Global
(China) Corporation (#8158 S 288 R £ l0 A IR A 7] ) from 2019 to 2021.

Mr. Chang has many years of experience in project, investment, and
management in the field of photoelectric areas, display materials and

industrial manufacturing.

Mr. Chang has been appointed as an executive Director with effect
from 6 May 2024.

56 K. H. Group Holdings Limited 2023/24 Annual Report

HITES

REERE(TREE]D 50m  R®
—NAANFERABBEYKINAKERFESR

BEE B -

KREXEB-_SELFE_T—HFEE
ERBAECRI) BRAAZETER
RE BT - REFE_FT—LFBEML
PHEBBERAREED AAEERK
R BE—LEtFET - N\FB
EXZEE=REEROGABERA2A (—HER
FBBEBHEZSGETHAT  BRMHASE
600340) EEXRGHREIE BT — N
FEZT - NFEETEARZAESRE
ERAFBKEBE YB-_ZT—NFE
CE I FREABRABREMARA
A)IH B BB -

REANAEREEEZFLR AR -
RENEELR BREBRMHRIES
EER -

RELEZERWNTEST BT _WF
HERANRHRBERR -



PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENSAREEERE

Dr. Wang Lei (“Dr. Wang”), aged 38, obtained his bachelor’s degree
in Polymer Material and Engineering from Beijing Institute of Fashion
Technology (3t R ARZE 2285 ) in June 2008. He further completed his
doctoral degree in Organic Polymer Engineering at Tokyo Institute of
Technology in September 2014.

Dr. Wang engaged in research work at Tokyo Institute of Technology
from 2014 to 2016. From 2016 to 2021, he successively served as
a senior investment manager and responsible for product market
research and venture capital investment at Zhejiang NHU Co., Ltd. (j#7
TLET MBI (D B R A 7)), the deputy general manager of Hangzhou
Intaichuang Polymer Materials Co., Ltd ({1 M EZ &l & » F# £ EF
f2 72 a))and the assistant to chairman of the board of directors of
Hengmei Optoelectronic Corporation (18 % E XA AR 2 &) . Dr.
Wang has many years of experience in R&D management and project
investment in the field of synthetic and new materials, and has led the
team to complete multiple new products, product development and
investment in scientific and technological innovation projects.
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Mr. Yang Xuefeng (“Mr. Yang”), aged 33, obtained a bachelor’s
degree in logistics management from Dalian Maritime University in
July 2012 and completed his Master of Business Administration
(International) at the University of Hong Kong in December 2020.

From 2012 to 2019, Mr. Yang held various positions at HNA Group
Co., Ltd. (B EBR AR A 7)) s subsidiaries, including the project
manager in the management department at Jin Hai Heavy Industry
Co., Ltd. (&/8EF LIk BBR A 7)), the investor relations manager at
Tianjin Tianhai Investment Co., Ltd. (K2 KX BIEREEREMHBR A T])
(currently known as HNA Technology Co., Ltd. G EH IR AR A
7)) (stock code: 600751), a company listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange, the head of capital operations center at HNA Innovative
Finance Co., Ltd. (B AIZT £ B AR A 7)), and the assistant to the
president at HNA Futures Co., Ltd. CEfHAE I AR A ). From
July 2019 to February 2021, he worked as an investment director
at Shanghai Silver Peak (Group) Co., Ltd. ( E)BEEEXE (£E8)H
fR 72 a)). Mr. Yang currently serves as the secretary of the board of
directors of Hengmei Optoelectronic Corporation (18 % Y¢ B i 17 A R
NCIDN

Mr. Yang has extensive experience in project, investment, and

management in areas such as supply chain, trade finance, new
energy, and new materials.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Feng Zhidong (“Mr. Feng”), aged 50, obtained a Bachelor’s
Degree in International Accounting from the Renmin University of
China in the PRC in July 1995 and a Master’'s Degree in Business
Administration from the South China University of Technology in
the PRC in February 2004. Mr. Feng has also completed a Mergers
and Acquisitions Executive Program from the Business School of
Sun Yat-sen University in the PRC in March 2015 and a Global
Entrepreneur Leadership Program from the PBC School of Finance at
the Tsinghua University in the PRC in July 2019. In addition, Mr. Feng
has obtained a Certificate of Specialty and Technology (Intermediate
Level) in Accounting in the PRC granted by the Ministry of Finance of
the PRC in May 1999.

Mr. Feng has more than 22 years of experience in financial
management, capital operations and managing investor relations.
Since June 2016, Mr. Feng is the chairman of the board and a
director of Guangzhou Yueting Network Technology Co., Ltd., which
is principally engaged in internet parking services. Moreover, since
August 2018, he is the chairman of the board and a director of
Guangzhou Yueting Capital Management Co., Ltd., which is principally
engaged in parking management and corporate management service.

Mr. Feng was a deputy general manager of the Capital Department
of Yue Xiu Enterprises (Holdings) Limited from December 2009 to
July 2016. He was also a general manager of the Investor Relations
Department of a group company of Yuexiu Property Company
Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 123) from April 2012 to April 2016. Mr. Feng was an
independent non-executive director of OKG Technology Holdings
Limited (formerly known as LEAP Holdings Group Limited), a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1499), a
company principally engaged in the provision of foundation works and
ancillary services from August 2015 to November 2017. Mr. Feng has
been an independent non-executive director of Xingye Wulian Service
Group Co. Ltd., a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 9916) since 17 September 2019. Mr. Feng
has been an independent non-executive director of Xinda Investment
Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1281) since 7 October 2022.
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Mr. Wang Bo (“Mr. Wang”), aged 48, has over 24 years of
experience in the trust, financing, leasing and insurance industry. He
obtained a Bachelor of International Accounting from the Sun Yat-Sen
University in China in June 1998 and a Master’s Degree in Business
Administration from the China Europe International Business School in
November 2018.

From July 1998 to June 2015, Mr. Wang was employed by
Guangdong Finance Investment (Holding) Corporation Limited with his
last position as the deputy general manager in the Financial Planning
Department. During the course of employment with Guangdong
Finance Investment (Holding) Corporation Limited, Mr. Wang also
served as the deputy general manager of Guangdong Finance Trust
Company Limited, the director of Urtrust Insurance Co., Ltd. and
Zhu Jiang Life Insurance Company Limited, and the supervisor in
Guangdong Guanhao High-tech Co., Ltd. (stock code: 600433), a
company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange. Mr. Wang was the
vice chairman and the general manager of Guangdong Baolihua New
Energy Stock Co., Ltd. (stock code: 000690), a company listed on
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange from August 2015 to March 2018.
He was a director and the general manager of Kelly Yifang Capital
Management Co., Ltd. from March 2018 to September 2022. Since
July 2021, Mr Wang serves as the chairman of Guangdong Shugen
Private Equity Investment Fund Management Co., Ltd.

On 13 December 2017, he was appointed as the independent
non-executive director of Transmit Entertainment Limited (stock code:
1326), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

Ms. Liu Yixing (“Ms. Liu”), aged 40, obtained her bachelor’s degree
in Geographic Information Systems from East China Normal University
(FEHEANE AE)in July 2005 and was qualified as a certified public
accountant in the mainland China in December 2017.

Ms. Liu served as the chief finance officer at Sino Engineering Limited
(EEm (LB ITRERMZERARAQF) from 2008 to 2022 and
she has served as the finance manager at Kadence Automotive
Technology (Shanghai) Limited (8]l 3& &t ;5 & & it (/&) AR 2 7))
since 2022.

Ms. Liu has been appointed as an independent non-executive Director
with effect from 6 May 2024.
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Mr. Yeung Sau Ming, Boris (“Mr. Yeung”), aged 57, is an
executive director of K. H. Foundations. Mr. Yeung is primarily
responsible for overseeing the overall management of the K. H.
Foundations, including daily operations, business development,
strategic planning and tendering. Mr. Yeung has more than 25 years
of experience in the construction industry in Hong Kong. He took part
in the foundation works and superstructure construction works in
construction projects of both the public sector and the private sector
in Hong Kong including, but not limited to schools, hotels, residential
premises and government buildings. Mr. Yeung joined our Group in
2008 and was appointed as a director of K. H. Foundations during the
same period. He is also the director of K. H. Civil Engineering Limited,
K. H. Machinery Limited and K. H. Piling & Engineering Limited since
each of their incorporation date, respectively. He has been appointed
as a director of Tactful Building Company Limited (“Tactful”) since
July 1993. Tactful is a Registered General Building Contractor, and is
mainly involved in building construction works.

Mr. Yeung graduated from Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University) with a Professional Diploma
in Building Surveying in November 1989. He obtained his Bachelor’s
Degree of Science with distinction in Building Surveying from the
University of Greenwich (previously known as Thames Polytechnic)
in the United Kingdom in June 1990. He subsequently obtained his
Master’s Degree of Science in Real Estate Development from The
University of Hong Kong in November 1995.

Mr. Yeung is a Registered Professional Surveyor by profession. He
was elected as an associate of The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors
in April 1993, and as the professional associate of the Royal Institution
of Chartered Surveyors in December 1992.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Lo Wan Man has over 20 years of experience in the areas
of accounting, auditing and financial management for both listed
and private companies in Hong Kong by working in an international
accounting firm and listed companies. She obtained a master of
science in finance from City University of Hong Kong in November
2006. She has been working at Acclime Corporate Services Limited
as director since October 2022. Since April 2019, she has been
appointed as the company secretary and authorized representative
of Man Shun Group (Holdings) Limited, a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1746). Ms. Lo has been
appointed as an independent non-executive director of Risecomm
Group Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 1679) since May 2019. In November
2022, Ms. Lo has been appointed as an independent non-executive
director of Sky Light Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 3882). Ms. Lo is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
since January 2003.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHE

The Directors present their annual report together with the audited
financial statements of the Company and the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2024.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities and other particulars of its subsidiaries are set out
in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

Further discussion and review on the business activities of the
Group as required by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622), including a description of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group and an indication of likely future development in
the Group’s business, can be found in the section of “Chairman’s
Statement” set out on pages 5 and 6 of this annual report and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” set out on pages 7 to 12
of this annual report. These discussions form part of this Directors’
Report. In addition, details of the Group’s financial risk management
are disclosed in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE
AND RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES,
SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The Group is committed to carrying out construction works in a
manner with minimal adverse impact to the environment resulting
from our business activities.

Environmental policies have been adopted by the Group for
implementation of environmentally friendly measures and practices in
the operation of the Group’s businesses. The Group will also review
its environmental policies and performance from time to time in order
to minimise the adverse environmental impacts from our operations.

The Group targets to provide a friendly, comfortable and decent work
environment and career growth opportunities to our staff in order to
maintain a family-friendly relationship with our staff.

The Group maintains active relationship with our customers in the
industry to explore potential business opportunities and is highly
committed to delivering quality services to our customers on time.
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The Group maintains a list of approved suppliers (based on their
prices, quality, past performance and capacity) and subcontractors
(based on their previous experience, skills, present work load, price
quotations and historical work quality).

As at 31 March 2024, there was no other material outstanding dispute
or argument between the Group and its employees, customers and
suppliers and subcontractors.

Further discussion and review on the environmental policies and
performance and relationship with employees, suppliers and
customers of the Group as required by Schedule 5 to the Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622), can be found in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report set out on pages 32 to 55 of this annual report.
This discussion forms part of this Directors’ Report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group continues to commit to complying with the relevant laws
and regulations, such as the Companies Act, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961,
as consolidated and revised), of the Cayman Islands, the Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622), the SFO, the Listing Rules and other relevant
laws and regulations. So far as the Board is concerned, there were
no material breaches of or non-compliance with the relevant rules
and regulations by our Group that have significant impacts on the
business and operations of our Group during the year ended 31
March 2024.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company
are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 13 to 31.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2024 and the
Group’s financial position as at 31 March 2024 are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 83 to 193.

The Board does not recommend payment of a final dividend to the
Shareholders for the year ended 31 March 2024 (2023: Nil).
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited
financial statements and reclassified as appropriate, is set out on
page 194 of this annual report. This summary does not form part of
the audited financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

There were no movements in either the Company’s authorised or
issued share capital during the year.

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted,
pursuant to a resolution passed on 19 February 2016 which became
effective and unconditional upon the listing of the Company’s shares
on the Stock Exchange on 18 March 2016, for the purpose of
providing incentive and/or to reward eligible participants (who include
any full-time or part-time employee of the Company or any member
of the Group, including any executive, non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors, advisors, consultants, other
contractors, business partners of the Group) for their contribution to,
and continuing efforts to promote the interest of the Group. Unless
otherwise terminated or amended, the Scheme will remain in force for
10 years.

Pursuant to the Scheme, the aggregate number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the
Scheme, and other schemes offered by the Company, as from the
date of adoption of the Scheme, shall not exceed 40,000,000 shares,
being 10% of the shares in issue on the listing date. The overall
limit on the number of shares which shall be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under
the Scheme, and other schemes offered by the Company, shall not
exceed 30% of the issued share capital of the Company from time
to time. The total number of shares issued, and to be issued, upon
exercise of options granted in accordance with the Scheme to each
eligible participant in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of
the issued share capital of the Company. The option shall remain
open for acceptance by the eligible participant for a period of not less
than 5 business days. HK$1 shall be payable by the participants on
acceptance of the offer of the Scheme.
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The exercisable period of the share options granted is determinable
by the board of directors, but no later than 10 years from the date of
grant of the options. The subscription price for the shares in respect
of which options are granted is determinable by board of directors,
but shall be no less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the
Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet on the date of grant of the options, which must be a trading
day; (ii) the average closing price of the Company’s shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of grant of the options; and (iii)
the nominal value of a Company’s share.

No share option has been granted under the 2016 Share Option
Scheme since its adoption.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the Companies Act, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised), of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2023, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any listed securities
of the Company.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

No distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 March 2024,
calculated under the Companies Act, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised), of the Cayman Islands (2023: Nil). The
share premium account of the Company is available for distribution
or paying dividends to the Shareholders subject to the provisions of
the Articles of Association and provided that immediately following
the distribution or the payment of dividends, the Company is able to
pay its debts immediately as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate revenue from the five largest customers of the Group
accounted for approximately 95.2% of the Group’s total revenue
and revenue from the largest customer of the Group accounted
for approximately 57.1% of the Group’s total revenue during the
year ended 31 March 2024. The aggregate purchases from the five
largest suppliers and aggregate subcontracting fees paid to the
subcontractors of the Group accounted for approximately 65.4% of
the Group’s total purchases and approximately 75.0% of the Group’s
total subcontracting fees respectively. The purchases from the largest
supplier and subcontracting fees paid to the largest subcontractor of
the Group accounted for approximately 19.8% of the Group’s total
purchases and approximately 41.7% subcontracting fees during the
year ended 31 March 2024 respectively.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholders of
the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more
than 5% of the shares of the Company) had any interest in the five
largest customers or suppliers of the Group.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this
annual report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chang Chih-Chia (Chairman)
(appointed on 6 May 2024)
Dr. Huang Yuan (Chairman)
(appointed on 1 April 2023 and resigned on 18 April 2024)

Mr. Bu Youjun (appointed on 1 April 2023 and resigned on 21 June
2024)

Mr. Yang Xuefeng (appointed on 1 April 2023)

Dr. Wang Lei (appointed on 21 June 2024)

Mr. Chen Rongsheng (Chairman)
(resigned on 1 April 2023)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Liu Yixing (appointed on 6 May 2024)
Mr. Liu Xin (resigned on 6 May 2024)

Mr. Feng Zhidong

Mr. Wang Bo
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Pursuant to Article 112 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall
hold office only until the first general meeting of the Company after
his appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting.
Accordingly, Mr. Chang Chih-Chia and Dr. Wang Lei who were
appointed as Executive Directors of the Company on 6 May 2024 and
21 June 2024 respectively, and Ms. Liu Yixing who appointed as an
independent Non-executive Director of the Company on 6 May 2024,
will retire and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

Pursuant to Article 108 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
at each annual general meeting of the Company, one-third of the
Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of
three (3), the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire
from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. Accordingly,
Mr. Feng Zhidong will retire by rotation and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company has received, from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considered
all of its Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent in
accordance with the guidelines as set out under the Listing Rules.
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CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

There is no information required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule
13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical information of the Directors and senior management
of the Company are set out in the section of “Profile of Directors and
Senior Management” on pages 56 to 62 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are being proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Directors’ remuneration are subject to Shareholders’ approval at
the general meeting. Other emoluments are determined by the Board
with reference to Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance
and the results of the Group. Details of the remuneration of the
Directors for the year ended 31 March 2024 are set out in note 14 to
the consolidated financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Under the Articles of Association, the Company had a permitted
indemnity provision (as defined in section 469 of the Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622)) in force for the benefit of the Directors
throughout the year and as at the date of approval of this Directors’
report, pursuant to which the Company shall indemnify any Director
against any liability, loss suffered and expenses incurred by the
Director in connection with any legal proceedings in which he is
involved by reason of being a Director, and in which the judgement
is given in his favour or in which he is acquitted. The Company has
maintained insurance cover for Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in
respect of legal actions against the Directors and officers arising out
of corporate activities.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the section of “Continuing Connected Transact
jons” in the Directors’ Report and “Related Party Transactions”
in note 41 to the consolidated financial statements, no Director
nor a connected entity of a Director had a material interest, either
directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contracts
of significance to the business of the Group to which the holding
company of the Company, or any of the Company’s subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries was a party during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 March 2024 and up to the date of this
annual report, none of the Directors or their close associates (as
defined under the Listing Rules) has any interest in a business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
business of the Group.

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN THE COMPANY AND
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 March 2024, the interests and short positions of Directors in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO),
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, were as follows:

() Long position in ordinary shares of the Company
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Mr. Chen Rongsheng Interest in a controlled corporation 300,000,000 75%

(“Mr. Chen”) (Note)
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(i) Long position in the ordinary shares of associated

corporation

(i) REBEEESERNE R

Name of Director

Name of associated
corporation

Nature of interest

Number of
shares held
in associated
corporation

Percentage of
shareholding
in associated

corporation

REBEE IEAE B LR
EEps BB EENEE Rty FERHBEE RER DL
Mr. Chen Sendlink Limited Interest in a controlled 1 100%
corporation
PR Sendlink Limited XEEEES
Mr. Chen (Note) lessing Well Beneficial owner 1 100%
PR 52 A (BT EE) &= EmBEBA
Note: B E -

These shares are held by Blessing Well which is wholly-owned by Sendlink
Limited. Hence, Sendlink Limited is deemed to be interested in the shares
of the Company held by Blessing Well under the SFO. As Sendlink Limited
is wholly-owned by Mr. Chen, consequently, Mr. Chen is deemed to be
interested in the shares of the Company held by Blessing Well under the SFO.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN

THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2024, the following interests and short positions of
5% or more of the shares and underlying shares of the Company
were recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:

ZERMBBERFHA - &S BSendlink Limited
2EMWAE - Al - BRIEFESH LEIE KD - Sendlink
Limited# SRER B IE B AR B H P H A i
%5 o A M Sendlink Limitedf BRI 2B A » W
RIBEFEERBEIED  BREESWEIENBEEE
MARRNBRDPIEEER -

TERRNARQR] 2 #Ee

Y

RZZB_WMEF=ZA=+—H8 A TRREARQ
AR D R AE B AR (9 5%k A = 2 ez ROk A -
BREN AR ARERE S LS G %336
FRAERF R ELMA

Number of Percentage of
shares held/ interest in our

Name Nature of interest interested Company
iy #%H R NN

mE LR ERtE EZROBE RENEIHL

Blessing Well Beneficial owner 300,000,000 75%

B1E EnfEBA

Sendlink Limited (Note 1) Interest in a controlled corporation 300,000,000 75%

Sendlink Limited (Ff3E1) Ry EERER

Mr. Chen (Note 2) Interest in a controlled corporation 300,000,000 75%

BR ot 4 (KsE2)

REEEER
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Notes:

1: These shares are held by Blessing Well which is wholly-owned by Sendlink
Limited. Sendlink Limited is deemed to be interested in the shares of the
Company held by Blessing Well under the SFO.

2: These shares are held by Blessing Well which is wholly-owned by Sendlink
Limited. Sendlink Limited is therefore deemed to be interested in the shares
of the Company held by Blessing Well under the SFO. As Sendlink Limited
is wholly-owned by Mr. Chen, Mr. Chen is deemed to be interested in the
shares of the Company through Sendlink Limited and Blessing Well under
the SFO. Mr. Chen is not a concert party under the Codes on Takeovers and
Mergers and Share Buy-backs.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2024, no person, other than
the Directors, whose interests are set out in the section “Directors’
Interests in the Company and Associated Corporation” above, had
registered an interest or short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company that was required to be recorded pursuant to
section 336 of the SFO.

RIGHTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES
OF DIRECTORS

Save as disclosed in the section of “Share Option” and “Disclosure
of Interests” in this annual report, at no time during the year were
rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in
or debentures of the Company granted to any of the Directors or
their respective spouses or minor children, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company, its holding company, or any
of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

A summary of material related party transactions is disclosed in note
41 to the consolidated financial statements. The transaction for the
two years ended 31 March 2023 and 2024 constituted continuing
connected transactions of the Group that are fully exempted from
independent Shareholders’ approval, annual review and all disclosure
requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.76(1) of the Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company has
been entered into or existed during the year.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as those disclosed in note 42 to the consolidated financial
statements, there have been no other material events occurring after
31 March 2024 and up to the date of this annual report.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

It is proposed that the annual general meeting (the “2024 AGM”) of
the Company for the year ended 31 March 2024 be held on a date
to be fixed by the Board, and a notice convening the 2024 AGM wiill
be published and despatched to the Shareholders in due course in
accordance with the Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

To the best knowledge of the Directors and based on the information
that is publicly available to the Company, not less than 25% of the
Company’s issued capital are held by public as at the date of this
annual report.

CHARITABLE DONATION

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group made charitable
contribution totalling Nil (2023: HK$30,000).

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2024 have been audited by McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA
Limited.

McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited shall retire in the 2024
AGM and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of McMillan Woods (Hong Kong)
CPA Limited as Auditor of the Company will be proposed at the 2024
AGM.

On behalf of the Board
Mr. Chang Chih-Chia

Chailrman

Hong Kong, 28 June 2024

BREHRER
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MecMillanWoods

Professionalism at the forefront

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
K. H. GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of K. H.
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) set out on pages 83 to 193, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
March 2024, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2024, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to note 2 to the consolidated financial statements
which reveals that the Group incurred a loss of approximately
HK$51,560,000 for the year ended 31 March 2024 and as at 31
March 2024, the Group had net current liabilities and net liabilities
of approximately HK$38,275,000 and HK$25,764,000 respectively.
In additions, two winding up petitions (the “Petition(s)”) were filed
by the bank in relation to the non-payment of credit facilities. These
conditions indicate the existence of material uncertainties which may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

FREFERENERTRE
<3

EERBEIRAVEBERRNFT2 &
RN BEEEREHE_ZT_WF=A
=+ —HIEFEE 4 E B #51,560,000/%8
T MR ZE-ZWMF=RA=+—H" &
SENRDEEFERAEBEFES ALY
/538,275,0005% 7T & 25,764,0005 JT ° It
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(2B EHBITRR - ZEBABRT
FEATHEETHEEZ  Erfjgg E5EF
BREZENEEEARE SEHILE
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. The key audit

matters we identified are:

1)  Revenue recognition for construction contracts; and

]
B
I\
it
il

FARBZSA[RBEZ 2 EXHE - &
REAHEGEEMBERCERRAER
ZEH ZEFTERNBEZBERERKSY
BREMHABAKEERE mMEETey
ZEEBERBENZER - BEFH 2B
RESZFES

BEANZIWaER &

=1
p—

2)  Provision for expected credit loss (‘ECL”) on trade receivables 2) SEZEKKERSNEENTELRE

and contract assets

Key Audit Matter
AREXEE

Revenue recognition for construction contracts

BESNZWMEER

Refer to the material accounting policy information
in note 4(g), critical judgements and key estimates in
notes 5(a) and 5(b) and relevant disclosure in note 7 to
the consoligated financial statements.

BRI B AN T4 EAX 25 HEEX - I 7
5(a)R5(0)E Z H R F Z [RR K I 77166 # 5 -

The Group’s revenue from construction contracts
amounted to approximately HK$171,856,000 for the
year ended 31 March 2024.
HE_Z_NF=A=+—RHILFE EXEREE
HEE 42 WK A171,856,0007 7T °

Contract revenue is recognised progressively over time
using the input method based on direct measurements
of the contract costs incurred to value the contract
work performed.
BHARBERBAZERUEELESHNEMEE TK
BHNIREENEETEEREELER -
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EEEBERTEEAREXRSTENE E

Our procedures in relation to management’s
estimation of revenue recognition for
construction contracts included:

EEAREEETHEESHZRERAZERFEE

= Obtaining an understanding to validate the key control
relating to the revenue recognition adopted by the
Group;

TR ESREFTRAG B U EE FERR A R SR 12 I

- Performing retrospective assessment of the reliability
of the estimation of total contract costs incurred of
completed contracts by management;

HEBEHE TKENEENLRS KRG A
S EITE MR

- Obtaining an understanding of the performance and
status of all major contracts through discussion with
management and key staff;
FREEBERFEEINm BEMEZTESH
WEITRERZ T

- Corroborating management’s position through the
examination of externally generated evidence, such as
customers’ and subcontractors’ correspondence;
FRBLSIHIDERE (PINEF RS BEERBA) ZEE
BERI

= Examining, on samples basis, the contracts and
certifications of work performed;
NHBEEEESSHARETK 2 TEERE
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Key Audit Matter
AREXEE

Due to the contracting nature of the business, revenue
recognition involves a significant degree of judgement
made by management, with estimates being made to:
BREB2EHAHE  BEEBARWEBRIEHER
BEZHE - WA TEEEDRE

- Assess the total contract costs;

BRET =Rl N

- Assess the stage of completion of the contract;

A A K2 TR B

- Assess the revenue and costs associated with
variation orders;

AR B TR A B 2 ek S AN

- Appropriately provide for liquidated damages for
delays in completion of the construction works;
and
MERTHELETI R ENSELEERE : &

- Appropriately provide for loss making contracts.

SLBRANIFLEE BE -

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EEEERTEEAREXRSTENE &

Performing substantive testing on costs incurred to
date;

PIETELENKANETRERSE

Discussing and understanding management’s
estimates for total contract costs and forecast
costs and assessing the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of estimation
uncertainty and other inherent risk factors;

ARk TREREESAS KA RTERIKA 2G5
VA K2 38 38 & B 4 5T B E 1 RO AR 7 I EL i A A R B
[ = 1 4 B K EE ey N R

Comparing the percentage of completion for
contracts to the proportion of contract costs for
works performed to date bear to the total estimated
contract costs;
BELZSETRIENEHAKRAEAMETEHOKAR
BBl R E KB e B S L

Using the knowledge obtained from the above testing,
assessing whether provisions for liquidated damages
or loss making contracts made by management were
appropriate; and

ERB FASHESE R AHEEERENS
FERERNELH 2 BBEREAE &

Assessing, on samples basis, whether contract
revenue recognised in relation to variation orders
met the applicable criteria in Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standard 15 “Revenue from Contract with
Customers”.

NHEEETAR I EEETRRNE O R 2SR/
EERBUBHRERRMEISGR TP EOKE]HER

T
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Key Audit Matter
BRERER

Provision for ECL on trade receivables and
contract assets

REZEURERGHNEENANGESRTRES

Refer to the material accounting policy information in
note 4(u), critical judgements and key estimates in notes
5(d) and relevant disclosure in notes 6(b), 21 and 22 to
the consolidated financial statements.

DG AN FAEI EX ST HEEH - B it
5()ryE Z A B R F Z R UK B iE6(b) - 21226018
B 5F -

As at 31 March 2024, the carrying amounts of the
Group’s trade receivables and contract assets were
approximately HK$31,942,000 (net of allowance for ECL
of approximately HK$8,571,000) and HK$65,679,000
(net of allowance for ECL of approximately
HK$3,152,000) respectively.
R-ZZE-_MFEF=A=+—H ' EBESEEZFEKIFIEK
AHEEMNRMEED B A%31,942,000% 7T (KL% T8
Hi{= B 518 B 8 498,571,000/ 7T) %65,679,0007% T
(M TEHAE B BB B H 43,152,000 7T) °

We identified the above matter as a key audit matter
due to the significance of the amounts of trade
receivables and contract assets to the consolidated
financial statements and the significant judgement
and estimate made by the directors in determining the
provision for ECL on trade receivables and contract
assets.
HRESERRRERENEENSRERE M ®RE
MEBEAREFRETCESIRKRKERENEEN
RHEEERBRERMAELERAE R  WES
K EMEEERNSEREZEE -
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EEEERTEEAREXRSTENE &

Our procedures in relation to the provision for ECL on
trade receivables and contract assets included:
EEHEHRESERRERGHNEENTENGEFBITRE
EHEBEZREFERE

= Evaluating the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness to validate key internal controls over
credit control, debt collection and estimate of ECL;
AHEREEES EREN REHREEERMEG T
B RSN EE I8 RET - MITER BTN ¢

- With the assistance of auditor’s expert, assessing

the reasonableness of the Group’s ECL models by
examining the model input used by management to
form such judgements, including testing the accuracy
of the historical default data, evaluating whether the
historical loss rates are appropriately adjusted based
on current economic conditions and forward-looking
information including the economic variables,
assumptions and probability weighting used in each
of the economic scenarios and assessing whether
there was an indication of management bias when
recognising ECL;
EBMERNGH T BRRBREBEER/RTVKE
BHEPrERAER W A BRI E EXEEEME
EFEBEELNNSENT EEANBEENEEBNE
Wit A EBAEEEEREEENE L EAMA KA
EMHEHN (BRILBESSARANKCEZE KRR
RBEME)RERAE R EREETRETERE
BREREREEEERHBRRE

- Examining settlements after the financial year end
relating to the trade receivables and contract assets
as at 31 March 2024; and
BEEAE T _NF=A=+T—HNEZFEKRNRE
REHNEERMRFEERENEERBR &

- Assessing the disclosures made in the consolidated
financial statements in relation to the Group’s credit
risk exposure.

AEREEMBRERAFLENE EEEEERAR
WX A AR RO B ER o
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all of the information include in the annual
report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements
of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of
internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

12 BB B 28 A 4R
E2EEE)

CRURGEEY S

. ﬂé%%%ﬁf“%gﬁﬁWZL
ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ I AR 5 P R BR 2 B %
B REEAFERFEXBRE
WZEKTﬁEE e i A] BE B B
SEZHBERLERNELERR
EOhES%%TEEKT% i 5
AEVEEZBMBETRGFEMRE
PER=R = %ﬁﬁ%$2ﬁﬁ&y%

BREARZEETE - BlESR
BR-BFZ %ﬁﬁ%?ﬁi@%%
HE B IEFAEG 2 EZRE - A
ARRBEKBERAELEH BHEET
LB EET -

s HMEmAUBBRZERINHLA
BEMAR (BRBEESFR) AN
EMBBRREERAFREBEEARZXI R
=N

e 3 ERERNEBXXHEIHB
BEHERAREE ZERER  NUE
HEAUMBHRRERERL -BFAR
SEERZTRA BBERHAT - BF
REVZBERAZEZMEE-

%ﬁﬁ%%%%@%ﬁ@ﬂ%ﬂﬁgﬁz
AAESHENERANBEREZERSE - H
T REEFEFZT A RS 2 E
WEKTEZE

EENRBEZZESRIER  KRPE
MAEW%i&ZWﬁﬁikﬁEX*
VHFEBBEAERRAESHETS
B ZMBEBRREMEEARERER
ZIERT BEBREE MR T B sk Fr e
FBRIBh #1516 ©

B EBZERAERLE FH 81



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZBARE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Lo Ka Ki

Audit Engagement Director

Practising Certificate Number PO6633

24/F., Siu On Centre,
188 Lockhart Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong

28 June 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

GeBEaREMEERER

For the year ended 31 March 2024
HE_ZT-_MF=-A=1+—HLFE

Revenue
Cost of sales and services rendered

Gross loss

Other income

Administrative and other operating
expenses

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment

Write-off of contract assets

Provision for expected credit loss
(‘ECL") on trade receivables and
contract assets, net of reversal of
impairment loss

Loss from operations
Finance costs

Loss before tax
Income tax expense

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive loss after tax:
ltem that may be reclassified to profit or

loss:
Exchange difference on translating
foreign operation

Total comprehensive loss for the year

Loss per share
— Basic

— Diluted

i 2%
5 K P EE (R BR 75 A AN

ES% ]
H 4 A
TR EEME LR

WE - R RRERE

MEANEE

LB S EUHIBREHEEN
BHREEER((RYMEEE
1B1)FHERE - MERBEER
BR[O

RERBER
B & R A

BRBLAT B 1R
PSR

FRER

BB AREMEEEE :
ARERBEFOBRERER
2B
BEBINEBEEZER
ZH

FAEEEBRER

BRER
— &K

—

Note
B 7%

17

10

11

12

16(a)

16(b)

2024
—EmE
HK$’000
FHB T

175,174
(206,213)

(31,039)
90,925

(33,584)

(1,983)
(65,932)

(768)

(42,381)
(9,179)

(51,560)

(51,560)

(4,930)
(56,490)

HK cents
AL

(12.2)

N/ATEA

BT EEZERERAH

2023
—ET-=F
HK$'000
FETT

245,349
(274,332)

(28,983)
10,239

(34,448)

(4,602)

(6,000)

(63,794)
(10,321)

(74,115)

(74,115)

(74,115)

HK cents
Al

(18.5)

N/AA 3 A
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e BB AR O 3R

As at 31 March 2024
RZTZMFE=A=+—H

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Deposits and prepayments for life
insurance policies

Right-of-use assets

Current assets

Inventories

Trade receivables

Contract assets

Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

Pledged bank deposits

Bank and cash balances

Non-current assets held for sale

Current liabilities

Trade and retention payables
Contract liabilities

Accruals and other payables
Lease liabilities

Bank borrowings, secured
Other borrowings, unsecured

Net current (liabilities)/assets

Total assets less current liabilities

84 K. H. Group Holdings Limited
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Note
B 5

17

18
19

20
21
22

23
24
24

25

26
22
27
28
29
30

2024
—E-NE
HK$’000
FHE T

10,642

2,025

12,667

1,314
31,942
65,679

5,890

84,497

189,322

189,322

149,721
11,961
40,404

1,866
13,645
10,000

227,597

(38,275)

(25,608)

2023
—E=F
HK$'000
FAET

22,886

19,502
8,565

50,953

15,400
4,729
249,316

9,065
39,316
58,758

376,574
12,508

389,082

165,112

62,211
3,046
114,466
28,763

373,598

15,484

66,437



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e BRI R

As at 31 March 2024
R-ZZE-_HF=ZA=+—H

2024 2023
—S-mE =
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FE T FETT
Non-current liabilities FRBERE
Lease liabilities HEaE 28 156 385
Other borrowings, unsecured HE Mg 5R - EE R 30 - 65,026
156 65,411
NET (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS (BE) 'BETFE (25,764) 1,026
Capital and reserves EAXRf#E
Share capital fi% A 32 4,800 4,000
Reserves (R (30,564) (2,974)
(DEFICIENCY IN EQUITY)/ (B
TOTAL EQUITY EREE (25,764) 1,026

Approved by the Board of Directors on 28 June 2024 and signed on RKEZFe@RN _ET _ME A=+ /\Bi#tE

its behalf by: WAHIATESREKEE :
Chang Chih-Chia Yang Xuefeng
RHE e
Executive Director Executive Director
HITEE HITEE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

ERBBE X

For the year ended 31 March 2024
HE_Z-_WNE=A=+—HIEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

WNGIE 2PN 1

Foreign

currency
Share Share translation Accumulated Total
capital premium reserve losses equity
T R %E E %A ZitHE ERAH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TERT TET TET THET

(note 32) (note 35(b)) (note 35(c))
(M332)  (KizEssb)  (BIEE3s(c)

As at 1 April 2022 RZZZZ4WA—H 4,000 84,403 = (13,262) 75,141

Loss and total comprehensive ERNEERZABBAS

loss for the year - - - (74,115) (74,115)
As at 31 March 2023 and R-E-=F=A=+-HK

1 April 2023 “E-=%#MmA—H 4,000 84,403 - (87,377) 1,026
Loss for the year ERER - - - (51,560) (51,560)
Other comprehensive loss for the  AREEH it 2 EE1E

year:

Exchange difference on BEENEBEE ERES

translating foreign operation - - (4,930) - (4,930)

Total comprehensive loss AEERZEBRRE

for the year - - (4,930) (51,560) (56,490)
Placing of new shares (note 32)  EEE IRk (FizE32) 800 29,200 - - 30,000
Transaction cost attributable to ~ EEFRIBEER FRA

placing of new share - (300) - - (300)
As at 31 March 2024 RZE-mNFE=A=+—H 4,800 113,303 (4,930) (138,937) (25,764)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS

= A = B
mERERER
For the year ended 31 March 2024
HE_Z_WNE=A=+—RHILFE

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

Loss before tax

Adjustments for:

Depreciation on property, plant and
equipment

Depreciation on right-of-use assets

Finance costs

Gain on termination of leases

Write-off of contract assets

Loss on redemption of
life insurance policies

Loss on disposal of non-current
assets held for sale

LLoss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Provision for ECL on trade receivables
and contract assets, net of reversal
of impairment loss

Compensation for write-off of contract
assets from former ultimate holding
company

Gain on change in the repayment term
of other borrowings

Premium charges on two life
insurance policies

Interest income

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment

Operating loss before working capital

changes

Decrease in inventories

(Increase)/decrease in trade
receivables

Decrease in contract assets

Decrease in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables

Decrease in trade and retention
payables

Increase in contract liabilities

Increase in accruals and other
payables

Cash generated from operations
Interest paid
Interest on lease liabilities

Net cash generated from operating
activities

RETHRERE

BR A BB 1R

AT ZIBE

ER £

L
T

ST 27 2 ek
25 ms

IS

EE EE
e ST

MEFEF IR NI B 5 mt 38
3
B8

&
\
s

- 3 N S B
=
T

k

¥ S50 B

e
FW?SS%
s P

ﬁ%?%
o P 2 i
Dl ¥

pius
55
mh‘-

S
FNE

=
SN
>
i
%

g2
Webw
=
%>

il
f
X
&

\\
=
7

)

12y
x|
NG

=

o =

il
—
<
2

\
/

—
’

i D>

iina
o 35 S M T3S

Oy

S
7

o0 g o 4
e I L S\ -

ek 30 T R 2T 30 o

E=F
p=]

\
Y

[z

/

R RRRE
e E B S

ENFERBEE
ELgi=pd

gt
WEREE X

S I 0>
1> 181 5 my
i

= =
S RO ae

HE) o Wk
BIREZIRE

2 R AERE

=
]
il S
i
e
o

FRIE () R

\\
=
7

]

R e REA R

< i
X
o
=T

mEN

Lith &S

SHEEFEHR

Note
B 7

12
12
10

12
12
12

12

2024

S
HK$’000

FERT

(51,560)

2,101
2,354
12,598
(7)
65,932
3,228
753

510
768

(90,000)

(361)
1,983

(51,701)
14,464

(25,571)
120,392

3,887

(18,383)
11,961

4,256

59,305
(6,154)
(233)

52,918

BT EEZERERAH

2023
—E_=%F
HK$'000
:F/%E

(74,115)

5,894
4,016
14,705

4,602

6,000

(5,096)

272
(1,776)

(45,498)
4,964

85,199
28,615

51,961
(75,458)

321

50,104
(8,356)
(358)

41,390
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mEBEERER
For the year ended 31 March 2024
HE_Z_NWF=A=+—HILFE

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING

ACTIVITIES

Interest received

Sales proceeds from redemption of
life insurance policies

Purchases of property,
plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposals of
non-current assets held for sale

Proceeds from disposals of
property, plant and equipment

Decrease in pledged bank deposits

Net cash outflows from acquisitions of

subsidiaries
Net cash from investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Bank borrowings raised

Proceeds from placing of shares

Payment for transaction cost from
placing of shares

Repayment of/(proceeds from) amount
due to a director of the Company’s

subsidiary
Repayment of bank borrowings

Principal elements of lease payments

Net cash used in
financing activities

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year

Effect of exchange rate change
on cash and cash equivalent

Cash and cash equivalents at
end of year

ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS
Bank and cash balances

88 K. H. Group Holdings Limited
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Note
B 7

17

37(a)

37(c)

24

2024
—E-F
HK$’000
TERT

361
16,274
(178)
11,686

14,705
39,316

(1,919)

80,245

62,970
30,000
(300)

(26,030)
(165,090)
(4,024)

(102,474)

30,689

58,758

(4,950)

84,497

84,497

2023
—E_=%F
HK$'000
:F/;Igfﬂ?

29,069

30,228

181,069

1,330
(245,270)
(5,527)

(68,398)

3,220

55,538

58,758

58,758



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR

For the year ended 31 March 2024
HE_Z_WNE=A=+—RHILFE

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands with
limited liability on 23 July 2015 under the Companies Act of the
Cayman Islands. The address of its registered office is P.O. Box
1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108 Cayman lIslands. The address
of its principal place of business is Unit 01, 86/F., International
Commerce Centre, 1 Austin Road West, Kowloon, Hong Kong.
The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
since 18 March 2016 (the “Listing Date”).

At the end of the reporting period, the directors of the Company
are of the opinion that, Blessing Well Enterprise Limited, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), is
the immediate holding company of the Company; and Sendlink
Limited, a company incorporated in the BVI, is the ultimate
holding company of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is
principally engaged in the provision of foundation and construction
services and leasing of machinery in Hong Kong, and sales of
electronic devices and chemical products in the People’s Republic
of China (“PRC”). The principal activities of its principal subsidiaries
are set out in note 36 to consolidated financial statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”). HKFRSs comprise
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”); Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS”); and Interpretations.
These consolidated financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622). Material accounting policy information
adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group. Note 3 to the consolidated
financial statements provides information on any changes in
accounting policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the Group
for the current and prior accounting periods reflected in these
consolidated financial statements.

—RER
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BEREHREAREZERSHESEMK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eV BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024
HE_Z_NWF=A=+—HILFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

The Group incurred a loss of approximately HK$51,560,000
for the year ended 31 March 2024. As at 31 March 2024,
the Group had net current liabilities of approximately
HK$38,275,000 and net liabilities of approximately
HK$25,764,000 respectively. In additions, two winding up
petitions (the “Petition(s)”) were filed by the bank in relation
to the non-payment of credit facilities. Further details are set
out in note 42 to the consolidated financial statements. These
conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty which
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern. Therefore, the Group may be unable to realise
its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of

business.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements,
management has given careful consideration to the current
and anticipated future liquidity of the Group and the ability of
the Group to achieve positive cash flows from operations in
immediate and long terms. The Directors have reviewed the
Group’s cash flow forecast prepared by management, which
cover the period up to 31 March 2025. The Directors are of the
opinion that, taking into account of the plans and measures
below, the Group will have sufficient working capital to finance
its operations and to meet its financial obligations as and when
they fall due within next twelve months from 31 March 2024.
In order to strengthen the Group’s capital base and maintain
sufficient financing necessary for future business development,

the Directors have taken the following measures:

()  The Company has obtained a letter of financial support
from New Grace Gain Limited, the former ultimate holding
company, which has agreed not to demand repayment of
the loan with principal amount of HK$10,000,000, which
is included in other borrowings as at 31 March 2024, until
the Company is in a position to do so. The loan due is
interest-free, unsecured and repayable on demand as at

31 March 2024;

(i)  The Company has obtained a letter of financial support
from Mr. Chen Rongsheng, the ultimate controlling
shareholder of the Company, who has agreed to further
provide adequate financial resources as is necessary to
enable the Group both to meet its financial obligations as
and when they fall due and to carry on its business for at

least 12 months from 31 March 2024; and

90 K. H. Group Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME
For the year ended 31 March 2024
HE_ZT_MF=A=1+—HILFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

(i) A director of the Company’s subsidiary has agreed not
to demand repayment of the amount due to a director of
Company’s subsidiary of approximately HK$9,790,000,
which is included in accruals and other payables as at 31
March 2024, until the Company is in a position to do so.
The amount due is interest-free, unsecured and repayable

on demand as at 31 March 2024.

Therefore, the directors of the Company are of the view that it is
appropriate to adopt the going concern basis in preparing these

consolidated financial statements.

Should the Group be unable to continue as a going concern
in the foreseeable future, adjustments would have to be made
to the financial statements to adjust the value of the Group’s
assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide for any further
liabilities which might arise, and to reclassify non-current assets
and non-current liabilities as current assets and current liabilities
respectively. The effects of these potential adjustments have not
been reflected in these consolidated financial statements.

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(@) APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

HKFRSs

The Group has applied the following new and amendments
to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA for the first time, which
are mandatorily effective for the annual period beginning
on or after 1 April 2023 for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Insurance Contracts

Initial application of HKFRS
17 and HKFRS 19 -
comparative information

Definition of Accounting
Estimates

Deferred Tax related to
Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single
Transaction

2.

—

mEE
(i)

i
e}

!
el

i3

=

|
>

*ﬁ%
i

Ty

i
w3

Bl 1S oypg=

Bt 8

BF | o O
T

SN

S Bl
I Nzl o-

o
(@]
1] S8

<

- DO D 4
25

il =T
| e+
&
B S5 1 B > 2

m\ﬁfj_—‘_

S B4 ||
| 1355 i

° Byr ol

1] e % f
P o

[ g oY

-+ 5%

K| 1 e R O I Bt
il

I A

/

4 DA
Hir
\}ﬁ-_j @
R4
4>
3 2
> I
Y
=
E
po

4

S X

it <
3

o) B
(e
o

o

\\\\
/

£
+t
i
e
ot
cm
H
el
H
Nt

St
i i

<K Tk Y 6 MY EE 2

NS
X1 i 30 2 HF omg S

BN

i o [0 SZ B

I HH
=)

T @
§t Yt W 2 e

B - o

]

{ S N T
R M s -

I8 o S8 i s B

D R i EE

A5 2 my

m

=
=
=
=

A | O3

Dilf —
e
I e

i

S
_E—Dwg%&

il

) o M EER Pt -
S ek B 0 B R

o g
I\

>om
=
it
>d

i

A
A

BR AN
Bt 7%

%éﬂd’
If 2

T EIER

AV
i
H
o

p

i 3

o
u
palll]
\_|
FAl
W
palll]
\_|
i)
o

WP X o

T[S 8 2
3 2 S

U
B

3 1
it
>3d
Df
P

LY o
B | | S Ig

um

&

- S Ik
>

iy
o

A 3 8t 2
[ 1 0> of
| 1122 i b

Dj 7z
i

S

=
W HF
NS v
NS
B BE
>
2F

S
=
oo
&
il
fr
S8 Sy
X i

| OF 5t O 38

T i T i
381 2 g o g
I 2 3

penn]

© N §

I

BREEEAES
i (3] )

BAGRAF12
pACCHES)

g

oF
E'It
N
frit
SH

N
)
St

St ot 3 g
S my |
S e
& A No
7 S e
SHmi HF

B EBERARAT 2023/24 £, 91



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eV BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024
HE-T-_WF=A=+—HILFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

(a) APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HKFRSs (CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKAS 12 Income taxes: International
Tax Reform - Pillar Two
Model Rules
Amendments to HKAS 1 and Disclosure of Accounting
HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Policies

The application of the new and amendments to HKFRSs
in the current year had no material impact on the Group’s
financial positions and performance for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

Impacts on application of Amendments to
HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2
“Disclosure of Accounting Policies”

The Group has adopted Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2 “Disclosure of Accounting
Policies” for the first time in the current year. HKAS 1
“Presentation of Financial Statements” is amended to
replace all instances of the term “significant accounting
policies” with “material accounting policy information”.
Accounting policy information is material if, when
considered together with other information included
in an entity’s consolidated financial statements, it can
reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the
primary users of general purpose consolidated financial
statements make on the basis of those consolidated
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE VBRI
For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE-T-_NF=-A=t+—"HLEE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

(a) APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HKFRSs (CONTINUED)

Impacts on application of Amendments to
HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement
2 “Disclosure of Accounting Policies”
(CONTINUED)

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy
information may be material because of the nature of the
related transactions, other events or conditions, even if
the amounts are immaterial. However, not all accounting
policy information relating to material transactions, other
events or conditions is itself material. If an entity chooses
to disclose immaterial accounting policy information, such
information must not obscure material accounting policy
information.

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 “Making Materiality
Judgements” (the “Practice Statement”) is also amended
to illustrate how an entity applies the “four-step materiality
process” to accounting policy disclosures and to judge
whether information about an accounting policy is material
to its consolidated financial statements. Guidance and
examples are added to the Practice Statement.

The application of the amendments has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial positions and performance
but has affected the disclosure of the Group’s accounting
policies set out in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BRANETR] REIEFT BB
Bt ¥ ¥R 5 2 Rl (&)

(@)

FERAFTE] RE(ER] BB
MsmEER ()
EREBETEREIRR
EREVMBHEEANETHE R
=2 (BRI A) &5 K

ReBBEIzE (&)
ZEBRANMEBR ST BR
ERAEBAEIZHNEEL  H
feE iR mBEKX  BIfE
TRIEAER-AM - XA
BEHBEARS  Efb F K
HERNEABRREMLSH
BEA-WEREERENS
REFERREHR  AZFEHR
TREEEAGHBRER -

BEVNBHREENEHREF2
SEIMEREAHE ] ([EF®RS])
TEERT R BRI
(MAPERERFI ARG
BERWE WHEEHESAK
RNENYEGEMBHRERE
BERAEAEZ -BEHRETF
B ARSI RGIF -

ERZFETAHANEEN Y
BRARKRBALEBERATE -
HER BB 4 B B 15 3R AR MY A4
AEBESTHRHME -

B EBERAER AT 2023/24 F£3] 93



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024

HE_ZT-_WE=A=1+—HIEFE
3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 3. BRI REIETER
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS B EREXER ()
(CONTINUED)
(@) APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED (a) ARG REEFTEE
HKFRSs (CONTINUED) i EmE R (8)
Change in accounting policy as a result of HEEBSMAEME
application of the HKICPA guidance on the BERERGEMEARSE ([A
accounting implications of the abolition of BEe)HERIRKEE (R
the Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) — HREE) s mneg
Long Service Payment (“LSP”) offsetting ST EmBHMNESImE
mechanism in Hong Kong HPEBRES
In June 2022 the Hong Kong SAR Government (the N-_ZTE-—FxA FEER
“Government”) gazette the Hong Kong Employment and THREHEF ((KF]) £FRT
Retirement Schemes Legislation (Offsetting Arrangement) BEB(ZE - —FRENERK
(Amendment) Ordinance 2022 (the “Amendment STEEM Ry EE) (BE]) &
Ordinance”), which will come into effect from 1 May 2025 By ((ETIEABI]) B8 =&
(the “Transition Date”). Once the Amendment Ordinance “HEFRA—B(&EHHD R
takes effect, an employer can no longer use any of the ER e —BASETIRBI AR » B=E
accrued benefits derived from its mandatory contributions o BERERHEATFES ([04
to mandatory provident fund (“MPF”) scheme to reduce the BE ) st AP HyoR &) T
long service payment (“LSP”) in respect of an employee’s EENTMNEE#EZ R
service from the Transition Date (the abolition of the EBEEREE BENREEND
“offsetting mechanism”). In addition, the LSP in respect EHR%ES ((RERBKS]) (B
of the service before the Transition Date will be calculated Br [ MEE ) o BEoh - pLEE A
based on the employee’s monthly salary immediately BRIMREENAORERES
before the Transition Date and the years of service up to BRESZEES BN EE A
that date. FREZEZANRBFERFTE
94 K. H. Group Holdings Limited 2023/24 Annual Report



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE VBRI
For the year ended 31 March 2024
BE-T-_NF=-A=t+—"HLEE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

(a) APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HKFRSs (CONTINUED)

Change in accounting policy as a result of
application of the HKICPA guidance on the
accounting implications of the abolition of
the Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) —
Long Service Payment (“LSP”) offsetting
mechanism in Hong Kong (CONTINUED)

In July 20283, the HKICPA published “Accounting
implications of the abolition of the MPF-LSP offsetting
mechanism in Hong Kong” that provides accounting
guidance relating to the offsetting mechanism and the
abolition of the mechanism. In particular, the guidance
indicates that entities may account for the accrued
benefits derived from mandatory MPF contributions that
are expected to be used to reduce the LSP payable to
an employee as deemed contributions by that employee
towards the LSP.

Applying this approach, upon the enactment of the
Amendment Ordinance in June 2022, it is no longer
permissible to apply the practical expedient in paragraph
93(b) of HKAS 19 that previously allowed such deemed
contributions to be recognised as reduction of service
cost (negative service cost) in the period the contributions
were made; instead these deemed contributions should be
attributed to periods of service in the same manner as the
gross LSP benefit applying paragraph 93(a) of HKAS 19.
The Amendment Ordinance has no material impact on the
Group’s LSP liability and staff cost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEPBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024

HE

—EWNE=A=+—HIFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 3. R REIETER
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS B & ZE A (5R)
(CONTINUED)

(b) NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs IN ISSUE BUT (o) B2 2818 8 & & KA
NOT YET EFFECTIVE 1 )gé i% CHE R R
The Group has not applied any amendment to HKFRSs ;;_I/Iﬂihiﬁgﬁﬁﬁrc B |

96

that have been issued but are not yet effective for the
financial year beginning 1 April 2023. These new and
revised HKFRSs include the following which may be

relevant to the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 1 — Classification of
Liabilities as Current or Non-current

Amendments to HKAS 1 — Non-current Liabilities
with Covenants

Amendments to HKFRS 16 - Lease Liability in a
Sale and Leaseback

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (Revised)
Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower of a Term
Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand
Clause

Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 -
Supplier Finance Arrangements

Amendments to HKAS 21 - Lack of
Exchangeability

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 - Sale
or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture

K. H. Group Holdings Limited 2023/24 Annual Report
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2024

HE—

ToNEFE=ZA=1T—HLFE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

(b) NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs IN ISSUE BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE (CONTINUED)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments is expected to be
in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded
that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, unless mentioned otherwise
in the accounting policies below.

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed
in note 5.

The material accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEPBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BHE_ZT_NMF=A=1+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

98

(@)

K. H. Group Holdings Limited

CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made
up to 31 March. Subsidiaries are entities over which the
Group has control. The Group controls an entity when
it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity. The Group
has power over an entity when the Group has existing
rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the entity’s
returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by other
parties. A potential voting right is considered only if the
holder has the practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results
in a loss of control represents the difference between
(i) the fair value of the consideration of the sale plus the
fair value of any investment retained in that subsidiary
determined on the date when control is lost; and (i) the
carrying amount of the Company’s share of the net assets
of that subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill and any
accumulated foreign currency translation reserve relating
to that subsidiary.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

Annual Report
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REPMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024
HE_ZT_MF=A=1+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(@)

CONSOLIDATION (CONTINUED)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly, to
the Company. Non-controlling interests are presented
in the consolidated statement of financial position and
consolidated statement of changes in equity within equity.
Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as an
allocation of profit or loss and total comprehensive income
for the year between the non-controlling shareholders and
owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling shareholders even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions (i.e. transactions with
owners in their capacity as owners). The carrying amounts
of the controlling and non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by which
the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value
of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly
in equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, unless the investment is classified as held
for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified
as held for sale). Cost includes direct attributable costs
of investments. The results of subsidiaries are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of dividend received or
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income
of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or
if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net
assets including goodwill.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEPBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024

HE—

T_ME-_A=t—HLFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(b) FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

(i)

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances in each
entity’s financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency on initial recognition using the
exchange rates prevailing on the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies
are translated at the exchange rates at the end of
each reporting period. Gains and losses resulting
from this translation policy are recognised in profit or
loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates. The transaction
date is the date on which the company initially
recognises such non-monetary assets or liabilities.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in foreign currencies are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates when the fair values are
determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in other comprehensive income,
any exchange component of that gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income. When a
gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in
profit or loss, any exchange component of that gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

100 K. H. Group Holdings Limited 2023/24 Annual Report
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME
For the year ended 31 March 2024
HE_ZT_MF=A=1+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(b) FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

(CONTINUED)
(iiiy Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group’s
entities that have a functional currency different from
the Company’s presentation currency are translated
into the Company’s presentation currency as follows:

— Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

— Income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates for the period (unless this
average is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the exchange
rates on the transaction dates); and

— All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the foreign currency translation
reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of monetary items that form part of
the net investment in foreign entities are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the foreign currency translation reserve. When a
foreign operation is sold, such exchange differences
are reclassified to the consolidated profit or loss as
part of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEPBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BHE_ZT_NMF=A=1+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(©

102 K. H. Group Holdings Limited

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment, held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes, are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost, less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during
the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
at rates sufficient to write off their costs less their residual
values over the estimated useful lives on a straight-line
basis. The principal annual rates are as follows:

Furniture and equipment 20%
Plant and machinery 7% to 20%
Motor vehicles 30%

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method
are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Construction in progress represents buildings under
construction and plant and equipment pending installation,
and is stated at cost less impairment losses. Depreciation
begins when the relevant assets are available for use.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset,
and is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024
HE_Z_NF=A=+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(d) LEASES

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer
has both the right to direct the use of the identified asset
and to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits
from that use.

() The Group as a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and
non-lease component(s), the Group has elected not
to separate non-lease components and accounts for
each lease component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component for all
leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets.
When the Group enters into a lease in respect of
a low-value asset, the Group decides whether to
capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The
lease payments associated with those leases which
are not capitalised are recognised as an expense on
a systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. Lease payments to be
made under reasonably certain extension options are
also included in the measurement of lease liability.
After initial recognition, the lease liability is measured
at amortised cost and interest expense is calculated
using the effective interest method. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or rate
are not included in the measurement of the lease
liability and hence are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEPBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024

HE—

T_ME-_A=t—HLFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(d) LEASES (CONTINUED)

(i)

104 K. H. Group Holdings Limited

The Group as a lessee (continued)

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the
Group:

o where possible, uses recent third-party
financing received by the individual lessee as
a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes in
financing conditions since third party financing
was received

o uses a build-up approach that starts with a
risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for
leases held by the group entities, which do not
have recent third-party financing, and

° makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g.
term, country, currency and security.

If a readily observable amortising loan rate is available
to the individual lessee (through recent financing or
market data) which has a similar payment profile to
the lease, then the group entities use that rate as a
starting point to determine the incremental borrowing
rate.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-
of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it
is located, discounted to their present value, less
any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset
is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REPMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024
HE_ZT_MF=A=1+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(d) LEASES (CONTINUED)

(i)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful
life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

When the Group obtains ownership of the underlying
leased assets at the end of the lease term, upon
exercising purchase options, the cost of the relevant
right-of-use assets and the related accumulated
depreciation and impairment loss are transferred to
property, plant and equipment/the carrying amount
of the relevant right-of-use asset is transferred to
property, plant and equipment.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and
included in the cost of right-of-use assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEPBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BHE_ZT_NMF=A=1+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(d) LEASES (CONTINUED)

(i)

106 K. H. Group Holdings Limited

The Group as a lessee (continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a
change in an index or rate, or there is a change in
the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to
be payable under a residual value guarantee, or
there is a change arising from the reassessment
of whether the Group will be reasonably certain to
exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.
When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in
profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset has been reduced to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a
change in the scope of a lease or the consideration
for a lease that is not originally provided for in the
lease contract (“lease modification”) that is not
accounted for as a separate lease. In this case the
lease liability is remeasured based on the revised
lease payments and lease term using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification.
The only exceptions are any rent concessions which
arose as a direct consequence of the COVID-19
pandemic and which satisfied the conditions set out
in paragraph 46B of HKFRS 16. In such cases, the
Group took advantage of the practical expedient set
out in paragraph 46A of HKFRS 16 and recognised
the change in consideration as if it were not a
lease modification, and recognised the change in
consideration as negative lease payments in profit or
loss in the period in which the event or condition that
triggers the rent concessions occurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REPMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024
HE_ZT_MF=A=1+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(d) LEASES (CONTINUED)

(€

(i) The Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines
at lease inception whether each lease is a finance
lease or an operating lease. A lease is classified
as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of
an underlying assets to the lessee. If this is not the
case, the lease is classified as an operating lease.

INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in,
first-out basis. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary
to make the sale included incremental costs directly
attributable to the sales and non-incremental costs which
the Group must incur to make the sale.

CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT
LIABILITIES

Contract asset is recognised when the Group recognises
revenue before being unconditionally entitled to the
consideration under the payment terms set out in the
contract. Contract assets are assessed for ECL in
accordance with the policy set out in note 4(u) and
are reclassified to receivables when the right to the
consideration has become unconditional.

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue. A contract liability would also be recognised if the
Group has an unconditional right to receive consideration
before the Group recognises the related revenue. In
such cases, a corresponding receivable would also be
recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEPBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024

HE—

T_ME-_A=t—HLFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(f

108 K. H. Group Holdings Limited

CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT
LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

For a single contract with the customer, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented. For
multiple contracts, contract assets and contract liabilities
of unrelated contracts are not presented on a net basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest accrued
under the effective interest method.

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS

A contract with a customer is classified by the Group as
a construction contract when the contract relates to work
on real estate assets under the control of the customer
and therefore the Group’s construction activities create or
enhance an asset under the customer’s control.

When the outcome of a construction contract can be
reasonably measured, revenue from the contract is
recognised progressively over time using the cost-to-cost
method, i.e. based on the proportion of the actual costs
incurred relative to the estimated total costs. The directors
consider that this input method is an appropriate measure
of the progress towards complete satisfaction of these
performance obligations under HKFRS 15.

The Group becomes entitled to invoice customers for
construction of properties based on achieving a series
of performance-related milestones. When a particular
milestone is reached the customer is sent a relevant
statement of work signed by a third party assessor and
an invoice for the related milestone payment. The Group
will previously have recognised a contract asset for any
work performed. Any amount previously recognised as
a contract asset is reclassified to trade receivables at
the point at which it is invoiced to the customer. If the
milestone payment exceeds the revenue recognised
to date under the cost-to-cost method then the Group
recognises a contract liability for the difference. There is
not considered to be a significant financing component
in construction contracts with customers as the period
between the recognition of revenue under the cost-to-
cost method and the milestone payment is always less
than one year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REPMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024

HE—

T_ME=-_A=1t—HLFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(9)

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS
(CONTINUED)

The likelihood of the Group earning contractual bonuses
for early completion or suffering contractual penalties for
late completion are taken into account in making these
estimates, such that revenue is only recognised to the
extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal
in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not
occur.

When the outcome of the contract cannot be reasonably
measured, revenue is recognised only to the extent of
contract costs incurred that are expected to be recovered.

If at any time the costs to complete the contract are
estimated to exceed the remaining amount of the
consideration under the contract, then a provision is
recognised.

RECOGNITION AND DERECOGNITION OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when the
Group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL")) are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at
FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEPBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(h)

110 K. H. Group Holdings Limited

RECOGNITION AND DERECOGNITION OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If
the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled
or have expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable, including any non-cash
assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in
profit or loss.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be
contingent on future events and must be enforceable in
the normal course of business and in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy of the Group or the counterparty.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2024
HE_ZT_MF=A=1+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(1)

FINANCIAL ASSETS

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace. All recognised financial assets are measured
subsequently in their entirety at either amortised cost or
fair value, depending on the classification of the financial
assets.

Debt instruments

Debt instruments held by the Group are classified
into amortised cost, if the instrument is held for the
collection of contractual cash flows which represent solely
payments of principal and interest. Interest income from
the instrument is calculated using the effective interest
method.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration is
due. If revenue has been recognised before the Group has
an unconditional right to receive consideration, the amount
is presented as a contract asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less allowance for credit losses.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(k)

112 K. H. Group Holdings Limited

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management
are also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated statement
of cash flows. Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for
ECL.

NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their
carrying amount will be recovered principally through a
sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This
condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly
probable and the asset or disposal group is available for
immediate sale in its present condition. The Group must
be committed to the sale, which should be expected to
qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year
from the date of classification.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured
at the lower of the asset’s or disposal group’s previous
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell, except
for assets such as deferred tax assets, assets arising
from employee benefits, financial assets and investment
property that are carried at fair value and contractual rights
under insurance contracts, which are specifically exempt
from this requirement.

Non-current assets are not depreciated or amortised while
they are classified as held for sale. Interest and other
expenses attributable to the liabilities of a disposal group
classified as held for sale continue to be recognised.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale is presented
separately from the other assets in the consolidated
statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(m) FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
INSTRUMENTS

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument under HKFRSs. An equity instrument
is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. The
accounting policies adopted for specific financial liabilities
and equity instruments are set out below.

(i)

(iii)

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net
of transaction costs incurred, and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially
at their fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial,
in which case they are stated at cost.

Equity instruments

An equity instruments in any contract that evidence
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(n)

114 K. H. Group Holdings Limited

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, at the amount of
promised consideration to which the Group is expected to
be entitled, excluding those amounts collected on behalf of
third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Revenue from construction contracts is recognised in
accordance with the policy set out in note 4(g) above.

Revenue from the trading of chemical products is
recognised when control of the goods has transferred,
being when the goods have been shipped to the
wholesale’s specific location (delivery). Following delivery,
the wholesaler has full discretion over the manner of
distribution and price to sell the goods, has the primary
responsibility when on selling the goods and bears the
risks of obsolescence and loss in relation to the goods.
A receivable is recognised by the Group when the goods
are delivered to the wholesaler as this represents the
point in time at which the right to consideration becomes
unconditional, as only the passage of time is required
before payment is due.

Interest income is recognised as its accrues using the
effective interest method. For financial assets measured at
amortised cost that are not credit-impaired, the effective
interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the
asset. For credit impaired financial assets, the effective
interest rate is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross
carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the asset.

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over the
periods covered by the lease term.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(00 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave is recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result
of services rendered by employees up to the end of
the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by the
Group and employees are calculated as a percentage
of employees’ basic salaries. The retirement benefit
scheme cost charged to profit or loss represents
contributions payable by the Group to the funds.

For LSP obligation, the Group accounts for the
employer MPF contributions expected to be offsetted
as a deemed employee contribution towards the LSP
obligation in terms of HKAS 19 paragraph 93(a) and
it is measured on a net basis. The estimated amount
of future benefit is determined after deducting the
negative service cost arising from the accrued
benefits derived from the Group’s MPF contributions
that have been vested with employees, which
are deemed to be contributions from the relevant
employees.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
the dates when the Group can no longer withdraw
the offer of those benefits and when the Group
recognises restructuring costs and involves the
payment of termination benefits.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(P)

116 K. H. Group Holdings Limited

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Group operates a share option scheme and issues
equity-settled share-based payments to eligible employees
(including directors). Equity-settled share-based payments
are measured at the fair value (excluding the effect of
non-market based vesting conditions) of the equity
instruments at the date of grant. The fair value determined
at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based
payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over the
vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of shares
that will eventually vest and adjusted for the effect of
non-market based vesting conditions.

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised
as part of the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used
for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount
of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is determined
by applying a capitalisation rate to the expenditures on
that asset. The capitalisation rate is the weighted average
of the borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the
Group that are outstanding during the period, other than
borrowings made specifically for the purpose of obtaining
a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(r)

GOVERNMENT GRANT

A government grant is recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to it and that the grant will be
received.

Government grants relating to income are deferred and
recognised in profit or loss over the period to match them
with the costs they are intended to compensate.

Government grants that become receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.

TAXATION

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profits for
the year. Taxable profits differ from profit recognised in
profit or loss because of items of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(s)

118 K. H. Group Holdings Limited

TAXATION (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profits. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and
deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses
or unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profits nor the accounting profit and at the time
of transaction does not give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amounts of deferred tax assets are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(s)

TAXATION (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled
or the asset is realised, based on tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except when it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case
the deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amounts
of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 requirements to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
separately. The Group recognises a deferred tax asset
related to lease liabilities to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences can be utilised and a
deferred tax liability for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the
Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities
on a net basis.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(t)

120 K. H. Group Holdings Limited

IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are reviewed
at each reporting date for indications of impairment and
where an asset is impaired, it is written down as an
expense through the consolidated statement of profit
or loss to its estimated recoverable amount unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
decrease. The recoverable amount is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets. If this is the case, recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs. Recoverable amount is the higher
of value in use and the fair value less costs of disposal of
the individual asset or the cash-generating unit.

Value in use is the present value of the estimated future
cash flows of the asset/cash-generating unit. Present
values are computed using pre-tax discount rates that
reflect the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset/cash-generating unit whose impairment is being
measured.

Impairment losses for cash-generating units are allocated
first against the goodwill of the unit and then pro rata
amongst the other assets of the cash-generating unit.
Subsequent increases in the recoverable amount caused
by changes in estimates are credited to profit or loss to
the extent that they reverse the impairment unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase.
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4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(u)

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
CONTRACT ASSETS

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECLs on trade
receivables and contract assets. The amount of ECLs is
updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit
risk since initial recognition of the respective financial
instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables and contract assets. The ECLs on these
financial assets are estimated using a provision matrix
based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
general economic conditions and an assessment of both
the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions
at the reporting date, including time value of money where
appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises
lifetime ECL when there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition. However, if the
credit risk on the financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group measures
the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an
amount equal to 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECLs that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL represents the
portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events on a financial instrument that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEPBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BHE_ZT_NMF=A=1+—HILFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(u)

122 K. H. Group Holdings Limited

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
CONTRACT ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort.
Forward-looking information considered includes the future
prospects of the industries in which the Group’s debtors
operate, obtained from economic expert reports, financial
analysts, governmental bodies, relevant think-tanks and
other similar organisations, as well as consideration of
various external sources of actual and forecast economic
information that relate to the Group’s core operations.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

— significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk for a particular financial instrument;

— existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REPMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024

HE—

T_ME=-_A=1t—HLFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
CONTRACT ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

(u)

significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the same debtor; and

an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition if the financial instrument is
determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date. A
financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk if:

(i)

The financial instrument has a low risk of default;

The debtor has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term;
and

Adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil
its contractual cash flow obligations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEPBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024

HE—

T_ME-_A=t—HLFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(u)

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
CONTRACT ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

The Group considers a financial asset to have low
credit risk when the asset has external credit rating
of “investment grade” in accordance with the globally
understood definition or if an external rating is not
available, the asset has an internal rating of “performing”.
Performing means that the counterparty has a strong
financial position and there is no past due amounts.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event
of default for internal credit risk management purposes as
historical experience indicates that receivables that meet
either of the following criteria are generally not recoverable.

— when there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty; or

— information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by
the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REPMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024

HE—

T_ME=-_A=1t—HLFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(u)

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
CONTRACT ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

— significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
counterparty;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

— the lender(s) of the counterparty, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the counterparty’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the counterparty
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider;

— it is becoming probable that the counterparty will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

— the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
including when the debtor has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group’s recover y
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEPBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024

HE—

T_ME-_A=t—HLFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(u)

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
CONTRACT ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECLs is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information as described above. As for the
exposure at default, for financial assets, this is represented
by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting date.

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
original effective interest rate.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a
financial instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL
in the previous reporting period, but determines at the
current reporting date that the conditions for lifetime ECL
are no longer met, the Group measures the loss allowance
at an amount equal to 12-month ECL at the current
reporting date, except for assets for which simplified
approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2024
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T_ME=-_A=1t—HLFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(v)

PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money
is material, provisions are stated at the present value of
the expenditures expected to settle the obligation. The
discount rate used to determine the present value is a
pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage
of time is recognised as interest expense.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period are adjusting events and are reflected
in the consolidated financial statements. Events after the
reporting period that are not adjusting events are disclosed
in the notes to the consolidated financial statements when
material.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRERMEE
For the year ended 31 March 2024
BHE_ZT_NMF=A=1+—HILFE

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES 5.

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 4, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may

differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the directors
have made the following judgements that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements (apart from those involving estimations

which are dealt with below).

(@) Significant increase in credit risk

As explained in note 4(u), ECL under general approach
are measured as an allowance equal to 12-month ECL
for stage 1 assets, or lifetime ECL for stage 2 or stage 3
assets. An asset moves to stage 2 when its credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition. HKFRS 9
does not define what constitutes a significant increase in
credit risk. In assessing whether the credit risk of an asset
has significantly increased the Group takes into account
qualitative and quantitative reasonable and supportable

forward looking information.

(b) Going concern basis

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis, the validity of which
depends upon the financial supports from the former
ultimate holding company, the ultimate controlling party
of the Company, and a director of a subsidiary to finance
the working capital requirements of the Group. Details
are explained in note 2 to the consolidated financial

statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2024

HE—

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES 5.

T_ME=-_A=1t—HLFE

(CONTINUED)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below.

(a)

Revenue recognition of construction contracts
relating to accounting for variation orders

During the course of business, the Group would make
claims for additional work performed, which may arise
either under specific circumstances provided for under
the contracts, or due to variations made to the contract
specifications by customers. Where the amounts of such
claims have not been formally agreed at the end of the
reporting period, the amount that is estimated to be
recoverable by management is included in the contract
assets. As at 31 March 2024, the carrying amount of
contract assets were approximately HK$ 65,679,000 (net
of loss allowance of approximately HK$3,152,000) (2023:
HK$249,316,000 (net of loss allowance of approximately
HK$5,839,000)).

Revenue recognition of construction contracts

As disclosed in note 4(g) to the consolidated financial
statements, revenue recognition on a construction
contract is dependent on management’s estimation
of the total outcome of the construction contracts,
as well as the work done to date. The management
reviews and revises the estimates of contract revenue,
contract costs, variation orders and provision for claims,
prepared for each construction contract as the contract
progresses. Budgeted construction costs are prepared
by the management on the basis of quotations provided
by contractors, suppliers or vendors involved and the
experience of the management. In order to keep the
budgets accurate and up-to-date, the management
conducts periodic reviews on the budgets by comparing
the budgeted amounts to the actual amounts incurred.
When the final cost incurred by the Group is different from
the amounts initially budgeted, such differences will impact
revenue and the profit or loss recognised on the contracts.
The provision for claims is determined on the basis of
the delay in the number of workdays of the completion of
the construction works which is highly subjective and is
subject to negotiation with the customers. Management
conducts periodic review of the provision amount.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEPBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024
HE-T-_WF=A=+—HILFE

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES 5. EEZHE R T E(LEH (8)
(CONTINUED)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

(b)

Revenue recognition of construction contracts
(continued)

Significant judgement is required in estimating the contract
revenue, contract costs, variation works and provision
for claims which have an impact on the percentage of
completion of contracts and profit or loss recognised.

The Group’s revenue from construction contracts
amounted to approximately HK$171,856,000 for the year
ended 31 March 2024 (2023: HK$245,349,000).

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets at the end of the reporting period.
Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
are tested for impairment when there are indicators
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset
or cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount,
which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal or
its value in use. The calculation of value in use requires the
Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise
from the cash-generating units and a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value.

Calculation of fair value by market less cost of disposal
approach requires valuation techniques which used
prices and other relevant information generated by market
transactions involving identical and comparable group of
assets and liabilities or business, a suitable discount rate
and marketability discount rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REPMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024
HE_Z_NF=A=+—HILFE

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES 5. =Z ¥R > {45t (&)
(CONTINUED)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

(©)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets (continued)

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets as at 31 March 2024 were
approximately HK$10,642,000 (net of impairment loss
of approximately HK$1,983,000) (2023: HK$22,886,000
(net of impairment loss of Nil)) and HK$2,025,000 (net
of impairment loss of Nil) (2023: HK$8,565,000 (net of
impairment loss of Nil)) respectively.

Impairment of trade receivables and contract
assets

The management of the Group estimates the amount of
impairment loss for ECL on trade receivables and contract
assets based on the credit risk of trade receivables and
contract assets. The amount of the impairment loss based
on ECL model is measured as the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition. Where the
future cash flows are less than expected, or being revised
downward due to changes in facts and circumstances, a
material impairment loss may arise.

As at 31 March 2024, the aggregated carrying amount of
trade receivables and contract assets were approximately
HK$97,621,000 (net of loss allowance of approximately
HK$11,723,000) (2023: HK$254,045,000 (net of loss
allowance of approximately HK$11,000,000)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEPBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024

HE—

T_ME-_A=t—HLFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:

foreign currency risk, credit risk,

liquidity risk and interest

rate risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance.

(@)

132 K. H. Group Holdings Limited

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency
risk, except for United States Dollar (‘US$”) denominated
deposit and prepayment for life insurance policies and
Renminbi (“RMB”) denominated bank balances. Other than
that most of its business transactions, assets and liabilities
are principally denominated in the functional currency of
the Group’s entities. The Group currently does not have
a foreign currency hedging policy in respect of foreign
currency transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group
monitors its foreign currency exposure closely and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

As at 31 March 2024, if HK$ had strengthened 5 percent
against the RMB with all other variables held constant,
consolidated loss after tax for the year ended 31 March
2024 would have been approximately HK$2,197,000
(2023: HK$2,504,000) higher, arising mainly as a result of
the foreign exchange loss on bank balances denominated
in RMB. If HK$ had weakened 5 percent against RMB
with all other variables held constant, the consolidated
loss after tax for the year would have been approximately
HK$2,197,000 (2023: HK$2,504,000) lower, arising mainly
as a result of the foreign exchange gain on bank balances
denominated in RMB.

Sensitivity analysis on life insurance policy will not be
performed as US$ is pegged against HK$ and the risk of
movements in exchange rates between US$ and HK$ is
insignificant.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024
HE_ZT_MF=A=1+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
(b) CREDIT RISK

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet
its obligations under a financial instrument or customer
contract, leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed
to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade
receivables, contract assets), its investing activities
(deposits and prepayment for life insurance policies), and
from its financing activities, including deposits with banks
and financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions
and other financial instruments. The Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from cash and cash equivalents, deposit
and prepayment for a life insurance is limited because the
counterparties are banks and financial institutions with high
credit-rating assigned by international credit-rating agencies,
for which the Group considers to have low credit risk.

Trade receivables and contract assets

In addition, as at 31 March 2024, the top 3 (2023: 3)
largest trade debtors were approximately HK$25,991,000
(2023: HK$9,191,000) or approximately 64% (2023: 93%)
of the Group’s gross trade receivables. The Group seeks
to minimise its risk by dealing with counterparties which
have good credit history.

In addition, as at 31 March 2024, the top 3 (2023: 3)
largest trade debtors were approximately HK$35,761,000
(2023: HK$138,173,000) or approximately 52% (2023:
54%) of the Group’s gross contract assets. The Group
seeks to minimise its risk by dealing with counterparties
which have good credit history.

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit
subject to the Group’s established policy, procedures
and control relating to customer credit risk management.
Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay, and take
into account information specific to the customer as well
as pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Trade receivables are due within 14 to
45 days from the date of billing. Normally, the Group does
not obtain collateral from customers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEPBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024

HE

—TEWMFE=A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(b) CREDIT RISK (CONTINUED)

Trade receivables and contract assets
(continued)

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables
and contract assets at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
As the Group’s historical credit loss experience does not
indicate significantly different loss patterns for different
debtors, the loss allowance based on past due status is
not further distinguished between the Group’s different
debtors.

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience.
These rates are adjusted to reflect differences between
economic conditions during the period over which the
historical data has been collected, current conditions,
forward looking information and the Group’s view of
economic conditions over the expected lives of the
receivables.

The following table provides information about the Group’s
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables and
contract assets as at 31 March 2024:

Trade receivables B 5 EWRRIE
Current (not past due) BIER (R HA)
Over 60 days past due 1 B A 860 B
Contract assets EHNEE

Current (not past due) BIER (R HA)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME
For the year ended 31 March 2024
HE_ZT_MF=A=1+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(b) CREDIT RISK (CONTINUED)
Trade receivables and contract assets

(continued)

Trade receivables
Current (not past due)
Over 60 days past due

Contract assets
Current (not past due)

Movements in the loss allowance account for trade
receivables and contract assets during the year are as

follows:

As at 1 April

Impairment loss recognised for the year

Exchange realignment

As at 31 March

The increase (2023: increase) in loss allowance on
trade receivables and decrease (2023: increase) in loss
allowance on contract assets during the year ended 31

March 2024 were mainly due to increase in days past due

over 60 days (2023: the increase in days past due over 60
days) resulted in an increase (2023: increase) of expected

credit loss of trade receivables and decrease in days not
past due (2023: the increase of expected loss rate of

contract assets) resulted in an decrease (2023: increase)
of expected credit loss of contract assets.

ESEURERANEE
(&
2023
=1 ==
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
TEHA BT 18 BRAAE [SEike g
% HK$'000 HK$’000
FA7T TFHET
B S EWRRIE
BER (REHA) 0.68% 4,098 28
% 5 3860 R 88.62% 5,792 5,133
9,890 5,161
EHEE
BHER (R HA) 2.29% 255,155 5,839
FR ABEZRBFERSNEE
ZEEREREHNOT
2024 2023
—E-ME —E=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHE T FH&TT
AP A —H 11,000 5,000
FNFER R BEE B 768 6,000
[ 5, % (45) -
R=A=+—8H 11,723 11,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEPBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BHE_ZT_NMF=A=1+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
(b) CREDIT RISK (CONTINUED)

Other receivables

Other receivables relating to accounts that are long
overdue with significant amounts, known insolvencies
or non-response to collection activities, are assessed
individually for impairment allowance. The Group
recognised the provision for ECL under general approach
by assessing the credit risk characteristics of debtor,
discount rate and the likelihood of recovery, forward
looking information and considering the prevailing
economic conditions.

All of the Group’s other receivables are considered to have
low credit risk, and the loss allowance recognised during
the reporting period was therefore limited to 12-month
expected losses. The other receivables are considered to
be low credit risk when they have a low risk of default and
the debtor has a strong capacity to meet its contractual
cash flow obligations in the near term.

LIQUIDITY RISK

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements
in the short and longer term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2024
HE_ZT_MF=A=1+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
LIQUIDITY RISK (CONTINUED)

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of each reporting period of the
Group’s liabilities, based on undiscounted cash flows
(including interest payments computed using contractual
rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the end of
the reporting period) and the earliest date the Group can

(©)

be required to pay.

Specifically, for bank borrowings and lease liabilities
which contain a repayment on demand clause which can
be exercised at the lenders’ sole discretion, the analysis
shows the cash outflow based on the earliest period
in which the entity can be required to pay, that is if the
lenders were to invoke their unconditional rights to call
the loans with immediate effect. The maturity analysis for
the remaining lease liabilities is prepared based on the

scheduled repayment dates.

The maturity analysis of the Group’s financial liabilities
based on contractual undiscounted cash flows is as

follows:

As at 31 March 2024

Financial liabilities subject to a
repayment on demand clause

Bank borrowings, secured

Accruals and other payables

Other borrowings, unsecured

Financial liabilities not subject to a
repayment on demand clause

Trade and retention payables

Accruals and other payables

Lease liabilities

R=B-EE=A=t-H

ERREERBERHKN
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ROBER BER
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BHE_ZT_NMF=A=1+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
(c) LIQUIDITY RISK (CONTINUED)
On
demand
REX
HK$'000
TAT
As at 31 March 2023 R-E-=4=R=t-H
Financial liabilities subject to a ERRREREBERFEIN
repayment on demand clause tRaE
Bank borrowings, secured RN BEA 114,466
Lease liabilties HERE 2,081
Financial liabilities not subjecttoa  BAZRRZERESR
repayment on demand clause BINEBERE
Trade and retention payables EHENTERENRES =

Accruals and other payables
Lease liabilities
Other borrowings, unsecured

st RRREMER 5B
HEaE
Hfp AR BAA

138 K. H. Group Holdings Limited

The table that follows summarises the maturity analysis
of bank borrowings, other borrowings and lease liabilities
with a repayment on demand clause based on agreed
scheduled repayments. The amounts include interest
payments computed using contractual rates. As a result,
these amounts are greater than the amounts disclosed
in the “on demand” time band in the maturity analysis
above. Taking into account the Group’s consolidated
financial position, the directors do not consider that it is
probable that the lenders will exercise its discretion to
demand immediate repayment. The directors believe that
such bank borrowings and lease liabilities will be repaid in
accordance with the scheduled repayment dates.

Annual Report
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(c) LIQUIDITY RISK (CONTINUED)

Within
1 year
1£R
HK$'000
THT

As at 31 March 2024 RZE-ME=F=+-H
Bank borrowings BITER 14,403
Other borrowings EER 10,000

As at 31 March 2023 W-ZE-=#=R=+—H
Bank borrowings BTN 108,839
Lease liabilities HEAE 2,161

(d) INTEREST RATE RISK

The Group’s exposure to cash flow interest rate risk arises
from its bank deposits, deposits for life insurance policies,
trust receipt loans, bank loans, factoring loans, and certain
lease liabilities and therefore bear interests at variable rates
varied with the then prevailing market condition.

At 31 March 2024, if interest rates had been 100 basis
points lower with all other variables held constant,
consolidated loss after tax for the year would have been
HK$152,000 (2023: HK$84,000) lower, arising mainly as
a result of lower interest expense on bank borrowings.
If interest rates had been 100 basis points higher, with
all other variables held constant, consolidated loss after
tax for the year would have been HK$152,000 (2023:
HK$84,000) higher, arising mainly as a result of higher
interest expense on bank borrowings.

6.

Bt 7 L B B 3E (4]

(©

Between
1102
years

122F

HK$'000

4

T

1,014

(d)

mBELRAR (&)

Between

2t05 Over
years 5 years Total
2Z5F 56 At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR
- - 14,403
- - 10,000
6,586 4,507 115,946
= = 2,161

e

AEEHEBRBRBITER A
SREEREE ExlEE
A BRITHH  RERARER
BEMNETRERENREAR
B 1 FE & B 0 T R 4R F B Al
AR e

RZE-_WNF=A=+—8"
A= TFHI00MEESE - MATA
HMEERFILE  AFALK
& T 18 B 18 1% " £2152,0007% 7T
—T =4 :84,00087T) * =
ZRBIBITEENF EFIR
Do AR FF100ME 2 - M
FTEHEMEERFIE  BIF
R 4R & Bt 1% 85 18 7% 358 HN152,000
BT (ZE Z =4 : 84,0008
) FBREBROTEENFE
A S 380 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEPBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BHE_ZT_NMF=A=1+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 6. BiiSE [ 18 (&)

(6) CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL € RBEHRMLABT A
INSTRUMENTS AT THE END OF THE 5 5l
REPORTING PERIOD
2024 2023
—E-F —T_=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FAT
Financial assets: SREE
Financial assets at amortised cost WEIEK AR, 2REE 121,342 129,761
Financial liabilities: cREME:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REHA R RZ 2 REE 213,770 435,578
( FAIR VALUES H ATE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets AEEERMEERERAER
and financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated SEMBRAAR RN ERE
statement of financial position approximate their respective HEXAR_E-_WEER T
fair values as at 31 March 2024 and 2023. —=F=A=+—HBHAY¥HE
BE -
7. REVENUE 7. W=
An analysis of the Group’s revenue is as follows: AEEMKZES>ITHOT -
2024 2023
—E-OEF —E=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Recognised over time within the BB SR EERFE155
scope of HKFRS 15 HEANNE - KRBRER
Provision of foundation and construction R E R R ERE
services 171,856 245,349
Recognised at point in time within the BB SR EERFE155
scope of HKFRS 15 EEANAE —HEEER
Sales of chemical products {ETERBEE 3,318 —
175,174 245,349
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REMBRRME
For the year ended 31 March 2024
HE_ZT_MF=A=1+—HILFE

7. REVENUE (CONTINUED)

As at 31 March 2024, the aggregated amount of revenue RZZBE-_WNF=A=+—8 R
expected to be recognised in the future related to performance H—;}KE@ 7 E’jéﬁiﬁé‘iﬁ% H 8 R 5E Rk (3
obligations that are unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied at the EETEEZ) BAEEE B EWRZ
reporting date is approximately HK$305,204,000 (2023: %%ﬁ?’] 7,%305,204, 000 L (& ==
HK$26,467,000). The Group will recognise the expected F : 26,467,000 TE) o RE BN #
revenue in future when or as the work is completed which is EKE}RI{’EH—yﬁE% st ES (FEEE R
expected to occur over the next 12 months (2023: 12 months). K12 A (== : =F 12 A8)
NEEE)
8. OTHER INCOME 8. Hlg A
2024 2023
—Z-F —E_=F
HK$’000 HK$ OOO
Government grant income (note a) BB A (M 5Ta) - 2,985
Gain on termination of lease WIEHEE ZHﬁZ 7 =
Compensation for write-off of contract assets B & AR A% A B4 M A L&
by the former ultimate holding company EME ()
(note b) 90,000 -
Gain on change in the repayment term of B EFERRAES 2 W
other borrowings - 5,096
Interest income HEMA 361 1,776
Sundry income FMIEWA 557 432
90,925 10,239
Notes: T 5E -
(a) The amount represents the receipts from Employment Support (a) ZARIERINE B E A BT IRMERT

7. Wz (8)

Scheme and Construction Innovation and Technology Fund (2023:
Construction Innovation and Technology Fund) provided by the Hong
Kong government under which the conditions of the government grant
were fulfilled during the year ended 31 March 2023.

¥ REEEATERIEES (=
T F EEEAFEBEES)
WRE EBBTREHEBOEEER
BE_ T _=—F=-A=+—HItFE

s

EB e

B EBERAR AT 2023/24 £, 141
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REMBRERMEE
For the year ended 31 March 2024
BHE_ZT_NMF=A=1+—HILFE

8. OTHER INCOME (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(b) The amount represents the compensation for loss on certain
foundation projects by the former ultimate holding company. New
Gace Gain Limited (“New Grace Gain”). New Grace Gain has agreed
to provide guarantee up to HK$95,000,000 (2023: HK$70,000,000)
on the performance and recoverability of Company's receivables of
certain foundation projects (the “Project Performance Guarantee”).
Under this arrangement, New Grace Gain is unconditionally obligated
to undertake the loss arising from any shortfall of final performance
of these foundation projects. During the year ended 31 March 2024,
New Grace Gain has undertaken a loss totaling of HK$90,000,000
(2023: Nil) by discharging the same amount of unsecured loan
advanced to the Group under the Project Performance Guarantee,
including compensation of loss on written off of contract assets
of approximately HK$65,932,000 and contract cost payments of
approximately HK$24,068,000 respectively.

As at 31 March 2024, the remaining unutilise guaranteed amount
under Project Performance Guarantee was HK$5,000,000 (2023:

HK$70,000,000).

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

Operating segments are identified on the basis of internal reports
about components of the Group that are regularly reviewed by
the chief operating decision maker, being the directors of the
Company, in order to allocate resources to the segment and to

assess its performance.

The directors consider that the Group manages its businesses
by divisions, which are organised into business units based
on their services provided, and has identified “Foundation
and Construction — provision of foundation and construction
services” and “Chemical materials — sales of chemical products”
as the reportable operating segment.

In addition to the above segment, the Group has other operating
segments which mainly include leasing of machinery and trading
of electronic devices. These operating segments individually
do not meet any of the quantitative thresholds of determining
reportable segments. Accordingly, these operating segments

are grouped as “Others”.

The reportable segments are identified in a manner consistent
with the way in which information is reported internally to the
Group’s senior executive management for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment.
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(b) & FEIE R AT RZER A AINew Gace
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BHTHEEE EBIRENFE - New
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= #95,000,000 70 (ZFE = =4 :
70,000,000% 7T) B #& 4R (18 B & 4
ER]) - BRIEZLH - New Grace
GanE Gt BEEB R EZSHMEIRR
MR BANERTREERERE -
REBE_ZT-_NF=A=+—HLHF
/€ * New Grace Gain® & @R IEE
HEBOERAANEERNFHNIER
A A 3 B BUR P 42 ££90,000,000
BT (ZTEZ=F:8E8)NEB 5
FIEEMEENEENBEMED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REPMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024
HE_ZT_MF=A=1+—HILFE

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 9. P EER (&)
OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION BEOBEER (8)

(CONTINUED)

Provision of foundation Sales of chemical

and construction services products Others Total
REBERBERE tIERSE Hft fit
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
CECME -ECZE CBECRE “BC-F CBCNE “E--f CECRE “E-Cf
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
Tén AL Tiax TAT Fixn AL Tiax A
Reportable segment revenue ATERN EME 171,856 245,349 3,318 = - - 175174 245349
Reportable segment results BTERABEE (82,615)  (45,446) (3,089) = 217) (888)  (35921)  (46,334)
Unallocated finance costs FAEBENK (6,323) (5,991)
Unallocated depreciation on property, APENE  HEREE
plant and equipment nE (18) (56)
Unallocated depreciation on right-of-use £/ RERRAENE
assets (1,306) (1,138)
Unallocated gain on change in the repayment &2 B E 4 BT ML H
term of other borrowings pai6: = 5,096
Other central administrative expensesand ~ EfiRRTHHETRES
directors’ emoluments [Ika (7992 (25,69
Loss before tax KBS (51,560)  (74,115)
Reportable segment results include: AT2HEREOE
Interest income MEaKA 361 1,776 - = - = 361 1776
Finance costs BERA 2,830 8,714 26 = - - 2,856 8,714
Depreciation on property, plant nE BERRXENE
and equipment 1,969 5,084 = 112 754 2,083 5,838
Depreciation on right-of-use assets FREEENE 1,048 2,878 - - - = 1,048 2,878
Additions to property, plant and equipment  RENE - BERR 144 6 34 = - = 178 6
Additions to right-of-use assets REFREAE - = - = 2,906 - 2,906 -
(Reversal of provision)/provision for ECL HESENTERANEE
on trade receivables and contract assets,  HIBHEEHE (A&
net of reversal of impaiment loss BE) /GHRAEE
kR EEEEE 223 6000 2929 ~ 62 - % 6000
Impairment of property, plant and equipment  #1% + &R R R E 1,983 = = = = = 1,983 =
Write-off of contract assets HEANEE 65,932 4,602 - - - - 65,932 4,602
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For the year ended 31 March 2024

HE

—TEWMFE=A=+—HILFE

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 9.
OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

144 K. H. Group Holdings Limited

(CONTINUED)

All of the segment revenue reported above is from external

customers.

Segment results represent loss attributable to the segment
without allocation of corporate income, central administrative

expenses and directors’ emoluments.

SEGMENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities

by operating segments:

SEGMENT ASSETS

Provision of foundation and construction
services

Sales of chemical products

Others

Total segment assets
Non-current assets held for sale
Unallocated assets

Consolidated assets

SEGMENT LIABILITIES

Provision of foundation and construction
services

Sales of chemical products

Others

Total segment liabilities
Unallocated liabilities

Consolidated liabilities

TEEE
R A R R

L TEMmEE
H Al

DPEEAF
FIFLWENFERBEE
ANBEE

DEAE
ROt R KRR

ETERBEE
Hith

DRABEAE
ADEERE

U>

ARE

mi

=]
W

Annual Report

TEER (&)

EmnREAR (8)
FRAA2RZFE D
HES -

PREERADERE

L oL S=E)

WA~ PRTT

B REEM e 2 D BRIGEE -

DHREENARE

al=4

AT HII RS EIRE
ERRENDN

2024
—2_NmEF
HK$’000
TET

122,208
6,680
45,450

174,338

27,651

201,989

192,897
7,818
1,928

202,643
25,110

227,753

339,365

65,575

404,940
12,508
22,587

440,035

298,815

106

298,921
140,088

439,009



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME
For the year ended 31 March 2024
HE_ZT_MF=A=1+—HILFE

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
SEGMENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

(CONTINUED)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and
allocating resources to segment:

(i) All assets are allocated to reportable segments other than
the unallocated assets including deposits and prepayments
for life insurance policies, certain right-of-use assets, other
receivables and bank and cash balances; and

(i) All liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other
than those unallocated liabilities which are centrally
managed by the Company's management including other
payables and other borrowings.

SEASONALITY OF OPERATIONS

The Group’s operations are not subject to significant seasonal

factors.

GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION

The geographical information of the Group’s revenue from
external customers and non-current assets for the years ended
31 March 2024 and 2023, based on locations of customers, are

set out below:

Hong Kong
PRC

Total

9. 7 fﬂﬁﬂ(%)
nHREENMAEGE)

\

REBEDPBRARASBEIEER

() BEAIPEEEIN FTEEEDY
WHBREZEETFTERDE B2
A?%imr X R B RROA

ETERBREE EMEKRX
BRIRITRIRE G &

(i) PBRAARRAREEELS —
ZERDEBEI A
HESPEEREATERS
Eﬁ@ﬁﬁﬂﬂﬁ@%%

=L
EE8E
LI O)

LEFHME
AEENEETNREAFHUERNRY
2 o

St B FEREERENEES
RIFERBDEENRSERETFAEM
REMAS AR BRI

Revenue from external

customers Non-current assets
R EIEREF K WS FREBEE

2024 2023 2024 2023
—ECME —T o= —EC-NE —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$ 000
FHET FET FHET FAET
BB 171,856 245,349 12,636 50,953
H 3,318 — 31 -
FEE 175,174 245,349 12,667 50,953
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For the year ended 31 March 2024
HE-T-_WF=A=+—HILFE

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 9. 7HERM(E&)
REVENUE FROM MAJOR CUSTOMERS FEXFKE

The Group’s customer base for whom transactions have HeE—_ZE-_mEKN-_ZE-_=F=H
exceeded 10% of its revenue during the years ended 31 March =t BUHFE EEXSHHAEE
2024 and 2023 is set out as below: 10% A ERENEEERSINNAT :

146 K. H. Group Holdings Limited 2023/24 Annual Report

2024 2023
ZEBE_mNE T =F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Foundation and construction services A N AR
Customer 1 (note) =P (M) 100,009 N/A 73
Customer 2 ®F2 41,209 151,422
Customer 3 (note) %P3 (M) N/A T iE A 32,292
Customer 4 (note) =4 (M3E) N/A T iE A 30,331
Note: These customers did not contribute over 10% of the total revenue of iz - ZERPRLINZSFRNITEBRMAEE
the Group for the respective years presented above. U Z510% A | o
10. FINANCE COSTS 10. B4 & B A
2024 2023
—E_-lF —F-=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T T
Interest expense on bank borrowings IRITERFBERAX 6,154 8,356
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEaERNEMAX 233 358
Imputed interest expenses on other HME R EEN SR
borrowings 6,211 5,991
12,508 14,705
Less: Amounts attributable to contract works J& : & 4 T2 fE{h & &8 (3,419) (4,384)
9,179 10,321



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e

R EE

For the year ended 31 March 2024

HE—

T_ME=-_A=1t—HLFE

1. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Under the two-tiered Profits Tax regime, the first HK$2 million of
profits of the qualifying group entity established in Hong Kong
will be taxed at 8.25% (2023: 8.25%), and profits above that
amount will be subject to the tax rate of 16.5% (2023: 16.5%).
The profits of the group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered
Profit Tax rate regime will continue to be taxed at a rate of
16.5% (2023: 16.5%).

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is required since the
Group has no assessable profit for the years ended 31 March
2024 and 2023.

No provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax is required since
the Group has no assessable profit for the years ended 31
March 2024 and 2023.

The reconciliation of the income tax expense applicable to loss
before tax at the statutory tax rates is as follows:

M. FAERAX

RIERRFESREGE  REBKILA
AEREETRE2EH BB THEF
BEIR8.25% (Z T - =4 :8.25%)
R R BE - BB L 2 %A m Al i
EI16.5% (Z T - =F : 16.5%) By
HREER - THEMANEHEE X

EREEETEAR /ﬁnfrlJﬂqﬁiéﬁu16.5%
(ZZE =% :16.5%) T B-F -

HRARERBE_T _NFR—
—=F=A=1+— Eljtirlﬂfin%
Mg Al - BB AR E B NS AT TR
e

HRASERBET-_OER=-F
A=t BUFETERER
Boms  thBEARPBECERSH
IRHEE o

254 72 B S AR B 6 B S 1R P43
BB AR T

2024 2023
—ESE-E —E_=%F
HK$’000 HK$ 000
THT FAET
Loss before tax bR % A S 18 (51,560) (74,115)
Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of 1#16.5% (ZFE =% : 16.5%)
16.5% (2023: 16.5%) MEBMNEHRHEAER
IR (8,507) (12,229)
Tax effect of income that is not taxable BEZHRBANTR B E (8) (1,501)
Tax effect of difference in tax rate of —RWBR 7%?%%3’7
a subsidiary MGz 2 (263) =
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible 7~ ] 41 HF#EJ TR E 11,347 1,699
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses not SR AREREAHIAEEN
previously recognised BB (3,244) -
Tax effect of temporary differences not RERERFEZHOMBETE
recognised (3,038) (827)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERMIBBEOR G ZE 3,713 12,858
Income tax expense PS5 52 = -
BT EEIERBRAT F® 147
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REMBRERMEE
For the year ended 31 March 2024
HE_Z_NWF=A=+—HILFE

12. LOSS FOR THE YEAR

The Group’s loss for the year is stated after charging the

12. FREE
AEEHFANEEES KR N7 &IE

following:
2024 2023
—E-@mE —TE=Z=F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
=2 THT T T
Auditor's remuneration 1% 25 A % A
Audit services ZE AR 75 830 790
Non-audit services IEZ B T% - =
Cost of construction materials BB AR (@) 59,080 69,380
Cost of inventories recognised BEREEKA (a) 3,153 =
Depreciation on property, plant and M - I REETE
equipment (b) 2,101 5,894
Depreciation on right-of-use assets TRAEEERE (o) 2,354 4,016
Loss on redemption of life insurance ER ASRBRREZEE
policies 3,228 -
Loss on disposal of non-current assets HEFIEHENIEREE
held for sale EZEBE 753 =
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME « e REE 2
equipment & 18 510 =
Write-off of contract assets WA NEE 65,932 4,602
Provision for ECL on trade receivables st & 5 E R FIE & & 4
and contract assets, net of reversal of & EHTEHEEE
impairment loss BETIREAE - MR RE
18 B [l
768 6,000
Impairment of property, plant and VI - HES R ERE
equipment 1,983 -
Short-term lease payments not included izt AT E BETER
in the measurement of lease liabilities T HATE B R (©) 6,126 7,821
Notes: B 5

(@) The amounts are included in cost of sales and services rendered.

(b) The amounts included in cost of sales and services rendered for the
years ended 31 March 2024 and 2023 amounting to approximately
HK$2,188,000 and HK$7,435,000 respectively.

(c) The amounts included in cost of sales and services rendered for the
years ended 31 March 2024 and 2023 amounting to approximately
HK$5,223,000 and HK$5,965,000 respectively.
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(@ ZEBEFAHERAREREAA -

(b) SHEFABE-_ZT_MER-ZT
f_i A=+— EIJLEJ*E’J%%&
FriR AR IS A A + 9 51 492,188,000/
7T %.7,435,0007 TC ©

) #ZEBEFABE_Z_NER_ZT
—ZH#ZA=+— Etifaﬁiﬁ%&
FriR RS AL A - 9 Bl A 495,223,000
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For the year ended 31 March 2024
HE_ZT_MF=A=1+—HILFE

13. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

Employee benefits expense (including

BERAFAX
(BREEHS) :
e BAKER
R ARAE R ET B R

directors’ emoluments):

Salaries, bonuses and allowances

Retirement benefits scheme
contributions

Notes:

Retirement benefits scheme contributions:

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The Group’s
contributions to the MPF Scheme are calculated at 5% (2023: 5%)
of the salaries and wages subject to a monthly maximum amount
of HK$1,500 (2023: HK$1,500) per employee and vest fully with

employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries established in the PRC are
members of a central pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. These subsidiaries are required to contribute certain
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and wages to the central
pension scheme to fund the retirement benefits. The local municipal
government undertakes to assume the retirement benefits obligations
of all existing and future retired employees of these subsidiaries. The
only obligation of these subsidiaries with respect to the central pension

scheme are to meet the required contributions under the scheme.

No forfeited contribution under the MPF Scheme as a defined
contribution scheme is available to reduce the contribution payable in

future years.

The amounts included in cost of sales and services rendered for the
years ended 31 March 2024 and 2023 amounting to approximately

HK$21,532,000 and approximately HK$30,052,000 respectively.

13. EER/AM X

Note
F 5

BT EEZERERAH

2024 2023
—E-MF ==

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHE T FHETT

38,432 48,725

1,143 1,534

39,575 50,259

RRAREFIEH BIHESK

ANEBEREE BRI M DE S EEH
HMBEBESEREERBIIEAES
FTEl ([fEestal) ®HX - AEE[HE
BertalfFEMEHRREEFERIE
5% (ZE_=F:5%) 8 HEH
BEME A &= HAER,5008 T (=
T = =4 1,500 5T) © M9 FE & 5t
Bl EREEHSEEERA ©

AEERTRERINOMBARNES S
BT AT EE R R RIB KRS F 8RO K
B-ZEWMBARRRREELRHEN
R 5E L Bl ) AR SRR K2 R BIEERR - U XX
MARKAER o & T BT AR AR Z S
MBARMAERE RAKENKES R
KREFEME - AP RBAESEHETF -
% 5 MY B A B E AR A 3R TE K
ZEE-

iR 8 (FEAERHNEE) BTH
3 08 W 4H 3R AT R HORL R 2R 4F E HY JE
B

ZEBWEHABE_E_ONER_-Z
TEE=ZA=t+—BLEEREERFR
RE R KA - 5 B A #21,582,00078
7T ] #930,052,000/% 7T °
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RE M B|ERME
For the year ended 31 March 2024
HE-T-_WF=A=+—HILFE

13. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

Notes: (continued)

(d) Five highest paid individuals:

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year did not
include (2023: Nil) directors whose emoluments are reflected in the
analysis presented in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements
below. The emoluments of the remaining 5 (2023: 5) individuals are

set out below:

13. B E | FIF < (&)

B AE - ()

(d)

AfifkmHMAL

FAREBENAURSHEMA LH I E
—Eo-HF B BRES HEMeE
[RBRAE T X7 & B TS R M S 140 DA
Mo BRTOB(ZF_=F:6%) ALH
Be#smT

2024 2023

—B-QE —F-=F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FTHET FiHBT

Basic salaries and allowances HAH S K2R 7,318 8,452
Retirement benefits scheme contributions B ARAE FIET B 5k 72 55
7,390 8,507

The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals who are not the

director fell within the following bands:

WIHREFOHAML KD H A LB
EBRTIEE

2024 2023

—E_ME —E-=F

Number of person Number of person

Band of emoluments (HK$) Bl < & & (BT) AE A
Below HK$1,000,000 171,000,000/ 7T 1 -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,0017% 7t 21,500,000/ 7T 3 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 % 7T £2,000,0007% 7T = 1
Over HK$2,000,000 it83B2,000,0007% 7T 1 2
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For the year ended 31 March 2024
HE-T-_WF=A=+—HILFE

14. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 14 EEGANRER

(@) DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS: @ EEMS :
The emoluments of every Director are set out below: gLEENMSHINMT

Emoluments paid or payable in respect of a person’s services as a
director, whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

REAREALAAANEAARKNESCHARNZME

Retirement
Performance benefits
related scheme
Fees Salaries bonuses  contributions Total
AR
He #é ®B®A THER Ch)
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
st TR TR TR TR THR
Executive Directors: #1783
Mr. Chen Rongsheng (Chaimnan) RRELE(FE) (v - - = = =
Dr. Huang Yuan (Chaimen) ERET(LE) (vil) - - - - -
Mr. Bu Youjun NeERE (x) - = = = o
Mr. Yang Xuefeng ES T (vl 225 - - - 225
Mr. Chang Chih-Chia (Gairmen) FHERE(ZE) (x o - - - -
Dr. Wang Lei &AL (i) - - - - -
Independent Non-executive Directors: BUFH7EE :
Mr. Liu Xin Ak (ix) 150 - - - 150
Mr. Feng Zhidong BERTE (i 150 - = - 150
Mr. Wang Bo TRk i) 150 - - - 150
Ms. L Yixing Bugs+ N - - - - -
Total for the year ended BE_E-ME=R
31 March 2024 ST-BLEES 675 - - - 675
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eV BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024
HE-T-_WF=A=+—HILFE

14. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(CONTINUED)
(@) DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS:
(CONTINUED)
Executive Directors: y17Es:
Mr. Chen Rongsheng (Chairman) REZrt(2E)
Mr. Guan Jingdong ARtk
Dr. Huang Yuan (Ghaimean) EREL(ZE)
Mr. Bu Youjun MNRESE
Mr. Yang Xuefeng REREE

Independent Non-executive Directors: BU¥HTEE

Dr. Luo Tiejian BgaET
Professor Lu Haftian EERAR

Mr. Liu Xin i

Mr. Feng Zhidong it ke

Mr. Wang Bo ThEE

Total for the year ended BE-E-=%=f
31 March 2023 St-BLEESH
Notes:

Vi.

Vii.
viii.

IX.

Xi.

Xii.

Resigned on 1 June 2022
Appointed on 1 June 2022

Resigned on 21 October 2022

Appointed on 21 October 2022

Resigned on 6 January 2023
Resigned on 1 April 2023
Appointed on 1 April 2023
Resigned on 18 April 2024
Resigned on 6 May 2024
Appointed on 6 May 2024

Appointed on 1 April 2023 and resigned on 21 June 2024

Appointed on 21 June 2024

Notes

i
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(@)

14.EE=E/FRER (8)

EE=MT: (B)

Emoluments paid or payable in respect of a person’s services as a
director, whether of the Company o its subsidliary undertaking

REABEALNAENBANZROESCHARN CHE

Fees

HK§ 000
Tk

675

Salaries

#2
HK§ 000
Tk

Retirement
Performance benefits
related scheme
bonuses contributigns Total
(e |
RAA TR &5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T
- - 225
- - 25
- - 83
- - 150
- - 125
- - 67
- - 675
B 5
i. R-_ZE-_—&FA—BHE
i. RZTZZF A BEEE
i, §:§11¢+ﬁ:+—5%
v. R-ZZE-_—_F£+A=-+—HB%
=1t )
V. RZZEZ=F—A/HEE
vii RIZZE_=FMA—HEE
vii, R Z —FMA—BHEZT
vii. R PR A+ N\ B EE
ix. K= MERANBET
X. RIZE-WER A NBERE
xi. R= —“FA—HEZE
SO —mESAZ+—H
Bt
xi. RZE-_WMNFESA=-F+—HBE
=t



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REPMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024
HE_ZT_MF=A=1+—HILFE

14. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

(@)

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS:
(CONTINUED)

There was no arrangement under which a director waived
or agreed to waive any emoluments during the year (2023:
Nil).

No share options or any other forms of share-based
payments were granted to the directors during the year
(2023: Nil).

During the years ended 31 March 2024 and 2023,
no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the
directors or the highest paid individuals as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 41 to the consolidated financial
statements, no other significant transaction, arrangement
and contract in relation to the Group’s business to which
the Company was a party and in which a director of
the Company and the director’s connected party had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

15. DIVIDENDS

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend to
the shareholders for the year ended 31 March 2024 (2023: Nil).

4. ESE/MRE=R (&)

(@)

EEMT : (8)

FA TEREFREXKFAT N
RTAMENLE (CT =%
&) -

FR - VTEOESRHERE
FEMEMEROBRG R (=
TE_=F:|E) o

HE-Z_MFER-ZT=-=F
—A=+—BLtFE KX£H
WEREHNESIESEHMA
T EMBEERERSIIKE
A &= B 3 7 AN A AR £ B B
< RENSE R B (E o

EENRH RHEAK
G

SRR a B MR M T4 TR B
FI G RRRIERANEEE
BRILERAARBIEZERES
HREEE S B AR
BEARmTRFRIFARME
AESEDFENEMBEARS -
ZHRAH -

15. R &

EEelfEZRARRRMNEE -
“HWE=A=+t—HItFENEMR
B(ZE2EZ=ZF &) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEPBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BHE_ZT_NMF=A=1+—HILFE

16. LOSS PER SHARE 16. B RIB#E
(@) BASIC LOSS PER SHARE (@ BRERNEIE
The calculation of the basic loss per share is based on the RERNEETIIZRIAT AT
following: H
2024 2023
—E-mEF —FE-=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Loss for the purpose of calculating basic =& G EAEIE ~ B8
loss per share (51,560) (74,115)
2024 2023
—EF-NmE  —FT-=
’000 ‘000
T8’ T
Number of shares BHEE
Weighted average number of ordinary AEEREAEEZ
shares for the purpose of calculating B AR N B
basic loss per share 424,044 400,000
The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the SIRERNERBIIEERN G E
loss for the year attributable of owners of the Company EAEGHERNEEB D BT
and weighted average number of shares in issue. D INFE BT E o
(b) DILUTED LOSS PER SHARE (b) BIREEEIE
No diluted loss per share is presented as the Company AR AABEHE_ZSE_MEL
did not have any dilutive potential ordinary shares during —E =B =+—HIF
the years ended 31 March 2024 and 2023. EWET M EEHELERK

WAL 2 5| B AEEEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024
HE_ZT_MF=A=1+—HILFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Cost R A
As at 1 April 2022 RZE-—FWA—H
Reclassified as non-current assets ENNBARBELELZ
held for sale ERBEE
Additions INE
As at 31 March 2023 and 1 April 2023 RZZ-_=F=FA=+—HkK
“TZ=FWA—H
Transfer from non-current assets held ~ ER B {EHENIER
for sale HEE
Transfer from right-of-use assets BRACRELE
Additions NE
Disposals &
As at 31 March 2024 RZZZMWE=A=+—8
Accumulated depreciation and EFTERRE
impairment
As at 1 April 2022 RZE-__FMA—H
Reclassified as non-current assets ENNEARELREL
held for sale ERBEE
Charge for the year FRZH
R-BE-_=F=A=+-HK
As at 31 March 2023 and 1 April 2023 —ET_=%MA—-A
Reallocated from right-of-use assets BERERAEENIE
Transfer from non-current assets held ~ BB ER{ELENERBEE
for sale
Disposals &
Impairment A
Charge for the year FAXH
As at 31 March 2024 RZZEZMNF=A=+—H
Carrying amount BRHE
As at 31 March 2024 RZBZME=R=+—8
As at 31 March 2023 RZZEZ=%=R=+—H

17. 9% - B R R\

Furniture and
equipment
BARRE

HK$'000
THT

3,843

3,849

60
(19)

3,890

2,504
342
2,846
(10)
310

3,146

744

1,003

Plant and
machinery
HaRREM

HK$'000
TET

90,916

(33,247)

57,669
1,168
8,510

118
(36,945)

30,520

51,067

(20,739)
5,486

35,804
1,702

1,099
(21,739)
1,983
1,773

20,622

9,898

21,865

Motor
vehicle
AE
HK$'000
FAEL

5,768

5,768

5,684

66

5,768

BT EEZERERAH

Total

HK§'000
TAT

100,527

(33,247)
6

67,286
1,168
8,510

178
(36,964)

40,178

59,245

(20,739)
5,894

44,400
1,702

1,099
(21,749)

1,983

2,101

29,536

10,642

22,886
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE

B R M

For the year ended 31 March 2024

HE—

17.

156

T_ME-_A=t—HLFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

As at 31 March 2024, the aggregated carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment of approximately Nil (2023:
HK$8,275,000) was pledged to secure bank borrowings (note
29).

As at 31 March 2024 and 2023, due to estimation of cost of
services increased in future and lead to the continuous loss
of the foundation business, the management of the Group
concluded there was impairment indication for the foundation
business and the Group’s related property, plant and equipment
for the purpose of impairment assessment.

Plant and machinery attributable to the provision of foundation
and construction services had a carrying amount of
approximately by HK$11,881,000 as at 31 March 2024. As at
31 March 2024, which recoverable amount was assessed by
an independent professional valuer under the fair value less
cost of disposal basis using the market comparison approach,
amounting to approximately HK$9,898,000. The fair value
measurement is categorised into level 3 fair value hierarchy.
Key assumptions used include market price per unit and cost
of disposal. There were no changes to the valuation techniques
during the year ended 31 March 2024.

The recoverable amount of the plant and machinery was
lower than the carrying amount, and therefore an impairment
loss of approximately HK$1,983,000 on property, plant and
equipment related to the segment of provision of foundation
and construction services was recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 March 2024.

The Group obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets
at the end of the lease term, the cost of the relevant property,
plant and equipment of approximately HK$1,168,000 (2023:
Nil) and the related accumulated depreciation of approximately
HK$1,702,000 (2023: Nil) are transferred from right-of-use
assets upon exercising purchase options.
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17. 9% - R R (R)

R-ZE-_WE=ZA=+—H RE#E
BEHEBT(ZE==F: 82%0@)
ﬁ%mmq% HEREHEEIERR
T8 R (B 5529) YL -

RZDEBE-_WMER-_E ==
=+ —8 - AR RRIRIE AT 1
EmMREHHMEERFERE A&
EERBEERE  BUREMNGEME @
EXEBRASEHRBEYE BE &K
HBAFEREDR °

R-ZTE_WNE=ZA=+—8 - 21
B G2 SRR TS RS 23 R AR MY BR T
E4 /411,881,000 7L - R - T — Y

FZA=+—H ZJKEDLERB
N BEAEMZATFER LS AE
EFAMS L EOAFE - 499,898,000
B AFEHEIERE=ZRAF
@F% %%%ME;E“@%:M

BUMHERLEERE  REBEE_-F
THE=A=1t—HIFE  HEX
1l I A & o
s MR E S BERKRE

B+ Btk B2 {3t B N 322 ZE AR 7% o5 B
BEANYE  HERREREEBELY
1,983,000 TR EBEE-ZT-_NF =
A=+—HIFEMNGEERRTRE
AEBREERERSIEHEBA
EEENFAERE  HEYE HEk
ﬂﬁmﬁﬁﬂﬁ%1%om%ﬁ(—
T =F:E)RMBEBRFTIEY
1m2mm%m —E_=ZF 8RN
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REPMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024
HE_ZT_MF=A=1+—HILFE

18. DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS FOR LIFE 1. AESRBRENRER

INSURANCE POLICIES

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group has two life
insurance policies with an insurance company to insure key
management personnel of a Company’s subsidiary, under which
the subsidiary of the Company is the beneficiary and policies
holder. At the inception, the Group is required to pay an upfront
payment for the policies. The Group may request a partial
surrender or full surrender of the policies at any time and receive
cash refund based on the value of the policies at the date of
withdrawal, which is determined by the gross premium paid
at inception plus accumulated guaranteed interest earned and
minus policies expense and insurance premium charged. If such
withdrawal is made at any time during the first to the eighteen
policies year, as appropriate, a pre-determined specified
surrender charge would be imposed. The policies premium
expense and insurance charges are recognised in profit or
loss over the expected life of the life insurance policies and the
deposit placed is carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. The deposit placed for the life insurance
policies carry guaranteed interests at interest rates ranging
from 2% to 4.25% plus a premium determined by the insurance
company during the tenures of the policies. The life insurance
policies are denominated in United States dollars.

The gross premium paid at inception of the life insurance
policies consist of a deposit placed element and a prepayment
for life insurance element. These two elements are recognised
on the consolidated statement of financial position at the
aggregate amount of gross premium paid plus interest earned,
and after deducting the annual cost of insurance and other
applicable charges.

SCRNE 7]

BHE-_ZE-_=F=A=+—8H1ItF
B AEEERRBR ARG EMGASE
RBRE  UABXQRNBARMNE
DEBABRR B AR AW B
PRAEIBIZHEARREFEA - RAK
B AEEARREIMNEMK K
SEAERERILSERKEIR
R RIBERES A BREEBEKRIUR
SRR REEBEDNRMAKBENE
RENE BRI R TR F F SR AT U ER
REAIMRENE - MBBEHED
PR EE 1= 18F T fAl B R /B H (40
BA)  BlBemmBELEETHNET
RREB -REAIRRBREANER
BRASRBRRENEHFRER ™
FEMNRSRBHERANRAERF X
EIER - MABRBREGFENZRS
BN F2%E4.25%H R & Fl & 50
REBAFNREFHRNETHRER
B ABRBREBIUETFE -

RABRBRRERBXNNERES
REERSHS RASRRBANKR
o o ZMELDIHEFBRESH
ME IR B e R (R REF
BRARREMERER) RRE M
AR AMER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024
HE-T-_WF=A=+—HILFE

18. DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS FOR A LIFE 1. AERBRENEZER

INSURANCE POLICY (CONTINUED) EARIE(E)

The relevant insurance policies were redeemed during the year ERARBRRELCREEZE ST _MF=
ended 31 March 2024 and resulted loss on redemption of A=+—BIFEER MEBELOE4L
approximately HK$3,228,000 was recognised in consolidated ) /&5 18 493,228,000/8 ST E R &r & 18
profit or loss. P RERR o

As at 31 March 2023, the deposit and prepayment for two life RZE_=F=A=+—"H WHA
insurance policies were pledged as collateral for the Group’s =ERpRENEeLEMNKZEBEEE
banking facilities (note 29). REAEBRITEENER R (T

29) °

158 K. H. Group Holdings Limited 2023/24 Annual Report



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REPMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024
HE_ZT_MF=A=1+—HILFE

19. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 10. EFAREEE

Leased plant and

machinery and Leased
motor vehicle properties Total
HEH#SER
B U RIRE HEME &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FTET FHT
As at 1 April 2022 R-ZE-_—_FWA—H 7,857 3,594 11,451
Additions NE - 1,130 1,130
Depreciation mE (567) (3,449 (4,016)
As at 31 March 2023 R-ZB-=5=8
and 1 April 2023 =t—-HRK
—E-_=FfWMAB—H 7,290 1,275 8,565
Additions nE - 2,906 2,906
Reclassified as property, EFPERME BHER
plant, and equipment 2B (6,808) - (6,808)
Termination of lease KIEHRE - (284) (284)
Depreciation e (482) (1,872) (2,354)
As at 31 March 2024 R-ZZE-MNE=A
Er=[ - 2,025 2,025
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEPBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BHE_ZT_NMF=A=1+—HILFE

19. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (CONTINUED) 19. EHEEE (&)

The Group obtains ownership of the underlying leased assets
at the end of the lease term and the cost of the relevant
right-of-use assets and the related accumulated depreciation will
be transferred to property, plant and equipment upon exercising
purchase options.

Lease liabilities of approximately HK$2,022,000 (2023:
HK$3,431,000) are recognised with related right-of-use assets
of approximately HK$2,025,000 (2023: HK$8,565,000) as at
31 March 2024. The lease agreements of leased assets do not
impose any covenants other than the security interests in the
leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not
be used as security for borrowing purposes except that leased
plant and machinery with a caring amount of approximately Nil
(2023: HK$7,290,000) was pledged as security for the Group'’s
lease liabilities (note 28).

AEBENEHERERKISHEBEE
BENMARENMEREREEERNMNX
ARBBRAFERNTEBERE
REEEYER  HENERE -

R_TE_NFE=A=+—H HE
B 1E#%2,022,0008 T (ZE =4 :
3,431,000 t) SAE A HEE
E #92,025,0008 70 (ZF = = F -
8,565,000 L) —HHER - HEELE
HEmZE T ETAEes  EEEA
FrisHEEE RBEERN - HE
BETSHRERBEAERER
FEASBENATBETL(ZE_=F:
7,290,000/ 70 ) Fl E# 22 MW B 1
AAEEAEAEMNIKE (HE28) »

160 K. H. Group Holdings Limited

2024 2023
ZEZNF —T-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Depreciation expenses on right-of-use assets {#HEEERN T ER L 2,354 4,016
Interest on lease liabilities (included in HEBEBEHNE
finance costs) (GEABRE B A) 233 358
Expenses relating to short-term lease RAHEMERX
(included in cost of sales and services (Gt ASHE RFTIR
rendered) PR 75 B AN 5,223 5,965
Expenses relating to short-term lease EHAEREAX
(included in administrative and other (FFATTH R
operating expenses) B ) 903 1,856
Gain on termination of leases RIERE 2 WS (7) =

Details of total cash outflow for leases is set out in note 37(d).

B5)

ARAMEMNR SR L ABOFBHIN
B EE37(d)

Annual Report



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REPMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024
HE_ZT_MF=A=1+—HILFE

19. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (CONTINUED) 19. FRAREEE (8)
For both years, the Group leases various offices, plants and AEEMEFEANSEEERES
machineries and motor vehicles for its operations. Lease THAE -  HB W IARSRE -
contracts are entered into for fixed term of 2 years (2023: 1 year S5 REEEH2ES Y (ZF
to 3 years). Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis Z=F 1FE3F) - HEA TR @ R
and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. EERER - A E 2 TR AR R IE
In determining the lease term and assessing the length of the o NETHE RGN REAR
non-cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of a El NEHERAANEENET
contract and determines the period for which the contract is S X R EEHITEEAR o
enforceable.
In addition, the Group reassesses whether it is reasonably AN - RABE A AT ARG SR NN E
certain to exercise an extension option, upon the occurrence of RKEHNKBRHIRE KSR - A&
either a significant event or a significant change in circumstances BEFNIEREAAEETITHEER
that is within the control of the lessee. During the years ended EEE HE_E_NERER_ET ==
31 March 2024 and 2023, there was no such triggering event. F=RA=1+—HIFE  BEEHE
BEM o
20. INVENTORIES 20. &
2024 2023
—F-omE —F-=fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T T T
Construction materials BEMH 758 15,400
Chemical materials (o p 556 -
Total HEt 1,314 15,400
At the end of reporting period, the Group’s inventories are RBEEAR » KEBE B FEURK AT
stated at cost. R o
21. TRADE RECEIVABLES 21. E 5 EWFI1E
2024 2023
—E -4 — =%
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T AT
Trade receivables 2 5 EMFIA 40,513 9,890
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts B EEEEBIBIET
under ECL "R AR B (8,571) (5,161)
31,942 4,729
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024
HE-T-_WF=A=+—HILFE

5% F =
21. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 21. B 5 EWRIE (&)

Notes: B 5E -

(@  The Group’s trade receivables represent progress billings receivables (a) REBNE SEWABESHNTENE
from contract customers. The general credit terms of trade receivables WEERXR ZBFREKZTEBNEHEES
were within 14 to 45 days (2023: 14 to 45 days). Application for B14E458 (ZZE - =4 : 14F450H)
progress payment of contract works is made on a regular basis. The Ne AN TREENRADITHER - K
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables. EEYERWBIRIBEEERIREEIE &
Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by directors. ETHRET A E LR o
The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables, based on the UTARNEENE S EWRREEER
invoice date of progress billing, and net of allowance is as follows: MEEABRAEEN MR BEENRRD

o
2024 2023
—B-mE —FT-_=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FHET
0 to 30 days 0Z30H 30,466 4,070
Over 60 days 608 A 1,476 659
31,942 4,729
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are NEBE S EWKENETEDIZSE T
denominated in HKS. BEER

(b) As at 31 March 2024, approximately Nil (2023: HK$2,165,000) of b) RZZEZEF=A=+—H HZ=ET
trade receivables were pledged to banks to secure bank borrowings (ZE=—=4% :2,165,00087T) K E 5 fE
(note 29). WREE AEVSIRITEE M & T 8]R1T

(Mf5E29) °

22. CONTRACT ASSETS/CONTRACT LIABILITIES 2. 5HNEEEHNEE

2024 2023
Contract assets EHEE —EC-NE —E=-=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Arising from performance under construction & B E{TESEA 4
contracts 68,831 255,155
Less: Allowance for contract asset under ECL & : TEEIE B8 T8
BREERE (3,152) (5,839)
65,679 249,316
Receivables from contract with customers BB 5 2RI B 1555 & [E
within the scope of HKFRS 15, which are AR F A A REKGIE &
included in “Trade receivables” A8 5 W IE | 27,218 4,501
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma

R EE

For the year ended 31 March 2024

HE—

22.

T_ME=-_A=1t—HLFE

CONTRACT ASSETS/CONTRACT LIABILITIES
(CONTINUED)

The contract assets primarily related to the Group’s rights to
consideration for work completed but not yet billed because
the rights are conditional on the satisfaction of the service
quality by the customers over a certain period as stipulated
in the contracts at the reporting date. The contract assets
are transferred to trade receivables where the rights become
unconditional. The Group also typically agrees to a defects
liability period for 5% of the contract value. This amount is
included in contract assets until the end of the retention period
as the Group’s entitlement to this final payment is conditional on
the Group’s work satisfactorily passing inspection.

The decrease in contract assets was the result of the certain
construction projects that were completed and finalised
during the years ended 31 March 2024 and 2023. In addition,
contract assets of approximately HK$65,932,000 (2023: Nil)
were written off and recovered through compensation from the
former ultimate holding company under Project Performance
Guarantee. Details are set out below and note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The amount of revenue recognised during the year from
performance obligations satisfied (or partially satisfied) in
previous period is approximately HK$26,467,000, mainly due
to the completion of certain construction contracts (2023:
HK$3,562,000, mainly due to the changes in estimation of the
stage of completion of certain construction contracts).

The amount of contract assets that is expected to be recovered
after more than one year is approximately HK$1,597,000 (2023:
HK$13,863,000).

As at 31 March 2024, approximately HK$18,013,000 (2023:
HK$50,974,000) of retention receivables under contract assets
were pledged to banks to secure bank borrowings (note 29).

2. EHNEE /EHE

315 (&)

BREETREAKRBEHUETTKER
AFAZZRN T RKDRKENERN A
W EARREENAGEPREER
HEAORTEN —EHRANEREGE
ERRAMEBR  HAEE - HARE
PR A3 AR AT %A%§F%%§E
ZEWGKIE - AEE—RITFAEE L
Eﬁ%wﬁﬁﬁ%% ?%%ﬁk

BHEE BEEREBHERRBL R
I%K%lwmkﬁﬂﬁ m%ﬂm
RRAEENTREEES ARERB
A§O

BHEERLTIARBE_T_NF
M= -_=F=A=+— Emigm
MR E R TRREBEFTE < 1o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRERMEE
For the year ended 31 March 2024
HE_Z_NWF=A=+—HILFE

22. CONTRACT ASSETS/CONTRACT LIABILITIES
(CONTINUED)

Contract liabilities

b

Billings in advance of performance obligation BT & & AR Al 45 &

— Construction contracts —BEAH

Contract liabilities relating to construction contracts are balances
due to customers under construction contracts. These arise if a

BREE GHNEE (&
BHEE

2024 2023

—mE —E-=F

HK$’000 HK$'000

TH T T T

11,961 -

HEEQORBNSNRERRER
EEHNERNEPOAAELR - ZEHER

particular milestone payment exceeds the revenue recognised to HEREREMNE T;zEJZ$J:|3 % R 3B AL
date under the cost-to-cost method. ZHAERORERFESE -
The increase (2023: Nil) in contract liabilities in 2024 was mainly RZTE_WEFEEHNEBEEMN(ZF
due to the increase (2023: Nil) in advances received from TEFE) TERRBREHRR]
customers in relation to the provision of construction services at IREZERSWEE PG TE o Ia 1
the end of the reporting period. MmZEZ=F:8]) -
Movement in contract liabilities: EHEEES :
2024 2023
—E-mEF —E=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Balance as at 1 April RIUA—B 2z &8 - -
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of — FRNERIEE T E Al 45 E &
billing in advance of construction activities BMada‘EEm
during the year 11,961 -
Balance as at 31 March R=RA=+—Bzi&& 11,961 -

None of billings in advance of performance received that is
expected to be recognised as income after more than one year
(2023: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024

HE

23.

24,

T _NMFE=A=+—HILFE

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

23.FERFRIE e REME
E Q]

2024 2023

—E-mEF —E=F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHT

Prepayments A RIB 987 649
Deposits b 2,402 1,826
Other receivables (note) H e I (B EE) 2,501 6,580
5,890 9,055

Note: As at 31 March 2024, the carrying amount of other receivables
included collateral deposits of approximately HK$2,361,000 (2023:
HK$5,981,000) for issuance of performance bonds for construction
contracts amounts totaling of approximately HK$10,158,000 (2023:
HK$13,778,000). Details are disclosed in note 38 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK AND CASH
BALANCES

The Group’s pledged bank deposits represent deposits pledged
to banks to secure banking facilities granted to the Group as set
out in notes 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

i R -_WE=ZA=+—8  HbEWK
FIER R EEREE RS 42,361,000
Bt (ZZT Z =4 :5,981,000% 7T) °
NBEHBREAANBORIZSES
H#10,158,0008 L (ZE == F :
13,778,000/ 7T) ° FIERBRERE M5
WA MIFESS ©

24. EEABITHERRIT
RE L&
9 8 ¢ B IR 3R 15 77 B IR IR T

RITOER - MMERARKEERIRTT
BEMBN (BN RE VB WERME

29) °
2024 2023
—E-ME —T o=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Pledged bank deposits EHEAIRITFR - 39,316
Bank and cash balances RIT RIS 5k 84,497 58,758
84,497 98,074
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRERMEE
For the year ended 31 March 2024
HE-T-_WF=A=+—HILFE

24. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK AND CASH 24. 2K IFRITERRIT

BALANCES (CONTINUED)

Pledged bank deposits and bank and cash balances are
denominated in the following currencies:

&Iﬁ,ﬁmﬂﬁ ( nﬁ)

EHEIRRITF A RRITRIR &R
RIATERERE

2024 2023
—E-F —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$ 000
HK$ BT 39,133 47,914
RMB AR 45,285 50,081
Singapore dollar (‘SGD”) N s (T$he)) 79 79
84,497 98,074

25. NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE 25. BEHEZERBEE
2024 2023

—B-mE  —F-=
HK$’000 HK$ 000

Non-current assets held for sale BELEZIERDEE

- Plant and machinery — 1 25 T2 B AR - 12,508

In March 2023, the Group intended to sell certain plant and
machinery which was originally acquired for the foundation and
construction services. The plant and machinery is presented
within total assets of foundation and construction segment in
note 9. Plant and machinery classified as non-current assets
held for sale during the reporting period was measured at the
lower of its carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell at
the time of the reclassification.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the plant and machinery
with carrying amount of approximately HK$12,508,000
reclassified as non-current assets held for sale were measured
at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs of sell.

The carrying amount of certain plant and machinery classified
as held for sale amounted at approximately HK$12,439,000
were disposed during the year end 31 March 2024 and the
remaining carrying amount of plant and machinery amounted to
approximately HK$69,000 were reclassified as property, plant
and equipment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME
For the year ended 31 March 2024
HE-T-_WF=A=+—HILFE

26. TRADE AND RETENTION PAYABLES

26. E 5 ENFEREMN R
E &

2024 2023

—E-mEF 2=
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FHBT FHET
Trade payables 5 RN HIE (a) 120,340 126,742
Retention payables EARES (b) 29,381 38,370
149,721 165,112

Notes: Mot

(@) The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade payables, based on the date

of receipt of goods/services, is as follows:

@ ATAAEEMNEZENRIBARRE
1,/ IR B E R E LR DT

2024 2023

e S
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
0 to 30 days 0Z30H 32,298 70,204
31 to 60 days 31&£60H 11,487 16,256
61 to 90 days 61£E90H 1,829 4,824
Over 90 days 90H KA E 74,726 35,458
120,340 126,742

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables are denominated

in HK$.

(b) As at 31 March 2024, the amount of the Group’s retention payables
expected to be due after more than twelve months was approximately

HK$2,659,000 (2023: HK$6,185,000).

The carrying amounts of the Group’s retention payables are

denominated in HK$.

RS B 5 SR R (T BB T
S -

by R-ZZT-_WMEFE=ZF=+—8' Eit#HER
Bt -EARIPNAEERNRES
55 492,659,000 T (Z T = =4 :
6,185,000/ 75 ) °

AKE RN RE S REETIRE T
(o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

eV BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024
HE-T-_WF=A=+—HILFE

27. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

Accruals JEET & A
Other payables H b FE S R

The carrying amounts of the Group’s accruals and other
payables are denominated in HKS.

As at 31 March 2024, the Group’s other payables of
approximately HK$9,790,000 (2023: HK$35,820,000)
represented the amount due to a director of the Company’s
subsidiary. The amount due is unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.
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27. BT B AR HME AR
|

2024 2023
—EomNE  —T-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TFAET
29,777 26,391
10,627 35,820
40,404 62,211

AREE R T E M N E b FE S FIRHY
FREETIRAETTETE

R-ZE-_WNFE=A=+—H8 ~&E
H b & {5 FIE £99,790,0008 T (=&
— =4 : 35,820,000/ 7T ) 15 FE fF A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REPMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024
HE_ZT_MF=A=1+—HILFE

28. LEASE LIABILITIES 28.FHEAE
In the consolidated statement of financial position, lease liabilities NESHBEARE  SEEERKEERE
due for repayment after one year which contain repayment on B BERN—FE%RFHEE E’] %ﬁgg
demand clause were classified as current liabilities. The maturity 1 SEAELEBEE HEBEND
of lease liabilities is as follows: E N
Present value of
Minimum lease payments minimum lease payments
BEEENH REEENRNRE
2024 2023 2024 2023
—EomE ZEZ=f ZBE-@WFE  ZE-=f
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THT TER THT
Within one year —FR 1,929 3,170 1,366 3,046
In the second to fifth years, inclusive E_ZRE(REERERE) 157 393 156 385
2,086 3,563 2,022 3,431
Less: Future finance charges W RRBEER (64) (132) N/ATE A N/AREF
Present value of lease obligations HEETHRE 2,022 3,431 2,022 3,431
Less: Amount due for settlement within ~ J : BRM2E A WEI R E M &
12 months or contains repayment BREXEREANZE
on demand clause (shown under (RNEBBEETIIR)
current liabilities) (1,866) (3,046)
Amount due for settlement after A28 BB BERHR
12 months 156 385
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28.
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T_ME-_A=t—HLFE

LEASE LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

It is the Group’s policy to lease certain of its property, plant and
equipment and motor vehicle under finance leases. The average
lease term is 2 years (2023: 1 year to 3 years). As at 31 March
2024, the average effective borrowing rate was approximately
5.75% (2023: 6.98%). As at 31 March 2024, lease liabilities of
approximately HK$2,022,000 (2023: HK$1,350,000) bear fixed
interest rate at the inception of the lease and thus expose the
Group to fair value interest rate risk. The remaining balances are
arranged at floating rates and expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk. All leases are on a fixed repayment basis and
no arrangements have been entered into for contingent rental
payments. At the end of each lease term, the Group has the
option to purchase the leased plant and machinery at a nominal
price.

Except for lease liabilities amounted to approximately
HK$2,022,000 (2023: HK$1,350,000), the remaining lease
liabilities contain clause which give the lessor the right at
their sole discretion to demand immediate repayment at any
time irrespective of whether the Group has complied with the
covenants and met the scheduled repayment obligations.

All lease liabilities are denominated in HK$.

In addition, most of the Group’s lease liabilities are secured by
(i the Group’s right-of-use assets of approximately Nil (2023:
HK$7,290,000) and (ii) corporate guarantee executed by the
Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REPMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024
HE_ZT_MF=A=1+—HILFE

29. BANK BORROWINGS, SECURED 290.RITER > BEA
2024 2023
—E-_MF —EC=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T TFAET
Bank loans RITER - 54,461
Trust receipt loans =rtIE E & 13,645 55,307
Factoring loans REER - 4,698
13,645 114,466
The bank borrowings of the Group are repayable on demand NEFEZSEITENBIZEKEE - I
and denominated in HK$. LB TTETE ©
The average interest rates of the bank borrowings of the Group NI{REHKR - AEFSFETETHEY
at the end of the reporting period were as follows: FIZ=aT -
2024 2023

—ENE —E_=F

Bank loans RITER N/ATER 7.44%
Trust receipt loans ERKEER 7.84% 6.81%
Factoring loans REER N/AT & A 6.91%

All bank borrowings are arranged at floating rates and expose FrASRTEIYIRZIHFFNERAR » S

the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. NEE@MEIR S REN KRR -

As at 31 March 2024, the Group’s credit facilities are secured R-E-_MNME=A=+—H ' A&£E

by: WEERMERNUTIEBERER :

(i)  The Group’s aggregated trade receivables and retention () ANEBESERFERS Z’] =
receivables under contract assets of approximately EB TN ZEKRERERBE S AES £4
HK$18,013,000 (2023: HK$53,139,000) (notes 21 and 18,013,000 T (Z T = =% :
22); 53,139,000/ 7t) (M 521 K%

22) ;

(i)  The Group’s pledged bank deposits of approximately Nil iy ANEBZEEBETEROET

(2023: HK$39,316,000) (note 24); B (ZE Z =4 : 39,316,000

Boo) (ffeEe4) :
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T_ME-_A=t—HLFE

BANK BORROWINGS, SECURED (CONTINUED)

(i) Corporate guarantee executed by the Company;

(iv) The Group’s deposit and prepayment of life insurance
policies of approximately Nil (2023: HK$19,502,000) (note
18);

(v The Group’s property, plant and equipment of
approximately Nil (2023: HK$8,275,000) (note 17);

(vi)  Personal guarantee executed by a director of a subsidiary;
and

(vi)  Receivables right for certain construction projects.

The Group’s bank borrowings contain clauses which give the
banks the right at their sole discretion to demand immediate
repayment at any time irrespective of whether the Group has
complied with the covenants and met the scheduled repayment
obligations.

The Group regularly monitors its compliance with loan
covenants. Its repayments up to date are in accordance with the
scheduled repayments of the term loans. The Group does not
consider that the banks will probably exercise their discretions
to demand repayments so long as the Group continues to meet
these requirements. Further details of the Group’s management
of liquidity risk are set out in note 6(c) to the consolidated
financial statements.

As at 31 March 2024, bank borrowings amounted to
approximately HK$13,645,000 was matured and still remained
outstanding which become repayable on demand (2023:
Nil). In additions, two winding up petitions were filed by the
bank against the Group in relation to the non-payment of
credit facilities. Further details are set out in note 42 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REPMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024
HE_ZT_MF=A=1+—HILFE

30. OTHER BORROWINGS, UNSECURED 30. HftfE = - EIKH

Pursuant to the terms of the Sale and Purchase Agreement,
New Grace Gain, the former ultimate holding company of the
Company, provided an unsecured loan of HK$100,000,000
(“Unsecured Loan”) to the Company on 25 May 2018. The
Unsecured Loan was interest-free and repayable on 25
November 2020. New Grace Gain shall not be entitled to
demand early repayment and the Company has no obligation to
make early repayment of the Unsecured Loan.

At the inception date of 25 May 2018, the fair value of
the Unsecured Loan was determined at approximately
HK$85,390,000, which was valued by an independent
professional valuer using discounted cash flow approach. In
subsequent periods, the Unsecured Loan is carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. The effective interest
rate of the Unsecured Loan is 6.33%.

Up to 31 March 2022, New Grace Gain and the Company
entered into 5 supplemental agreements (“Agreements”) to
extend the repayment period of the Unsecured Loan for a
total of 30 months. This extended the repayment term from 30
months to 60 months.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, New Grace Gain and
the Company further entered into two additional supplemental
agreements (“Agreement 6 and Agreement 7”) to further
extend the repayment period for part of the Unsecured Loan of
HK$70,000,000 (the “70 Million Loan”) for 12 months, extending
the repayment term from 60 months to 72 months. The
remaining portion of Unsecured Loan of HK$30,000,000 (the “30
Million Loan” has been extended for 6 months, extending the
repayment term from 60 months to 66 months.

BIBEEEHH 2GR KARBIRK
122 A% A FINew Grace GainA —Z— )\
FRA-_t+THABRAARGRHEER
# B $X100,000,0007% 7T ([#E KR E
)  EMEWERABEELEN =
E-FFE+—A=+HHESE - New
Grace GainfEEZKIRAIER + AR
AR EER B ERIFETIRAIER °

RITVBH-_ZE—NFREA=-1+H
H #EBEZRNAFTEETAYD
85,390,000 L ' WY — R BILE
¥GHEMERRRBESRELTHE
e REZHM  BEFRERFERE
BRAFE AL SR AR A BR o E K
BN ERFIEE6.33% °

BE-_E-__F#=A=+—H  New
Grace Gainf2 AR RQ RIE] N A 17 78 1
& ([ZEHED  BERKHRERNE
RERE R A #3018 A - #3018 A /98
HHRBELERZE60@EA -

REBEE_ZE-_=F=ZA=+—HIHF
E » New Grace GainBlZx A 7l# —
RN M BB T sk ([ 6 & 1
FH7) O NE—FERIDERFE
7£70,000,000/ 7T ([7T0BBER]) B
EBXH12(E A - 560E A MEREE
ERZE72MA - 8 T HH EBEFER
30,000,000/ 7L ([30BE B ER]) BEIE
K6fE A + #6018 A M ERHARE T
RZ6618A -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2024
BHE_ZT_NMF=A=1+—HILFE

30. OTHER BORROWINGS, UNSECURED 30. HftfE R - EIKH (E)

174 K. H. Group Holdings Limited

(CONTINUED)

Save for the extension of the repayment period under the
Agreements, Agreement 6 and Agreement 7, other terms and
conditions of the Unsecured Loan remain unchanged.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, New Grace Gain
agreed to discharge a portion of the unsecured loan amounting
to approximately HK$90,000,000 (2023: Nil) (note 8) to
compensate the amount of loss arising from certain foundation
projects of the Group. New Grace Gain and the Company
further entered into supplemental agreements for the remaining
loan balance of HK$10,000,000 which was unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

In addition, during the year ended 31 March 2024, a gain
on change in the repayment term of other borrowings of
approximately Nil (2023: HK$5,096,000) and imputed interest
expense of approximately HK$6,211,000 (2023: HK$5,991,000),
were recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income.

As at 31 March 2024, the carrying amount of the

Unsecured Loan was approximately HK$10,000,000 (2023:
HK$93,789,000).

Annual Report
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For the year ended 31 March 2024
HE_ZT_MF=A=1+—HILFE

31. DEFERRED TAX

The following is the deferred tax liabilities and (assets)

recognised by the Group.

As at 1 April 2022
Charge/(credit) to profit or loss
for the year

As at 31 March 2023 and
1 April 2023

Charge/(credit) to profit or loss
for the year

As at 31 March 2024

Accelerated tax

RZEZZFMA—H
FRME,/ GtA)BE

R-EBE-_=F=A=+—8H
—E-_=FWA—H
FARME,/ (Gt A) B

RZZE-_WE=F=+—H

As at 31 March 2024, the Group has unused tax losses of
approximately HK$124,086,000 (2023: HK$143,586,000)
available for offset against future profits. A deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of approximately HK$931,000
(2023: HK$23,191,000) of such tax losses. No deferred
tax asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining
unused tax losses of approximately HK$123,155,000 (2023:
HK$120,395,000) and other deductible temporary differences
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Included
in unrecognised tax losses are losses of approximately
HK$160,000 (2023: Nil) that will expire in five years in 2029.
Other tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

31. IEFE B E

REBOCHRANELERBEGBE R (B
E)IT o

Losses
available

for offsetting
against future

depreciation taxable profits Total
] {46 8
RIRFERB
mEEBE T E BANER &%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FERT TET
6,554 (6,554) =
(2,727) 2,727 -
3,827 (3,827) -
(3,673) 3,673 —
154 (154) -

R-_ZE-_WFE=A=+—H K&
] A (4K 3R R AR s A B9 R B AR B 1B
B 18 A #9124,086,0008 T (ZE ==
F : 143,586,000/ 7T) > E A @
TH BT 18 47931,0008 L (ZE - =4 :
23,191,000 7T) ERIELEFIBE E ©
B P o 2R g I 4B A FBOR) - M EE
# N oK Ep A 7 I 18 18 49123,155,000
BT (ZF = =4 : 120,395,000/
TO) REME FHRE R EZEERE
ERIBEE - st ARERFRIAE BN
B 1849 5160,0008 L (ZE - =F :
/) BRAFER_ZE-NFEm -
Hih R ERHEEE ] ER AL -
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32. SHARE CAPITAL

176

Authorised:

At 1 April 2022, 31 March 2023, 1 April 2023 and

31 March 2024 (HK$0.01 each)

Issued and fully paid:

At 1 April 2022, 31 March 2023 and 1 April 2023

(HK$0.01 each)

Placing of new shares on 13 December 2023

At 31 March 2024

On 30 November 2023, the Company and a placing agent

32. kA
Number of
shares Amount
B E 5
'000 HK$'000
T FET
EE
RZE_—FWA—H-
—=f=ZA=+—8"
—=FmA— E&_E_E
F£=A=+—H (&#k0.01
BIT) 10,000,000 100,000
ERETRERE:
RZEZZFWA—RH =%
“=ZF=ZA=+—HE=F
—Z®MA—B (8&0.01
AIT) 400,000 4,000
RZEZ=%+=A+=H
e & 57 A% (0 80,000 800
RZZE-_WF=A=+—H 480,000 4,800

o)

—F-=H+—-—A=+H -F2

entered into a placing agreement pursuant to which the
Company has conditionally agreed to place a maximum of
80,000,000 placing shares to independent investors at a price
of HK$0.375 per share. The placing was completed on 13
December 2023 under which the Company has allotted and
issued 80,000,000 placing shares. The net proceeds derived
from the placing amounted to approximately HK$29,700,000
and resulted in the increase in share capital of approximately
HK$800,000 and share premium of approximately
HK$28,900,000, net of transaction costs of approximately
HK$300,000.

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to
maximise the return to the shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance.

K. H. Group Holdings Limited Annual Report
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32. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED) 32. 7 ()

The Group reviews the capital structure frequently by
considering the cost of capital and the risks associated with
each class of capital. The Group will balance its overall capital
structure through the payment of dividends, new share issues
and share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debts,
redemption of existing debts or selling assets to reduce debts.

The externally imposed capital requirements for the Group are
mainly: (i) in order to maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange,
it has to have a public float of at least 25% of the total number
of the shares in issue; and (i) to meet financial covenants
attached to the bank borrowings.

The Group receives reports from major shareholders and other
connected persons on any changes in shares held by them to
ensure the continuing compliance with the 25% limit throughout
the year.

The Company has maintained the prescribed public float under
the Listing Rules during the years ended 31 March 2024 and
2023.

Breaches to fulfill the financial covenants would permit the bank
to immediately call borrowings. There have been no breaches
in the financial covenants of any bank borrowings for the years
ended 31 March 2024 and 2023.

AEEEBEBERNKAREZTHE
AR A R SR AL B AR -
AREEREBIRMNBRE - BITHRK
Bty MBS IA K 1T ERS - BEIRA
Bk & & E AR AMEB T A
BHEBEANRE -

REBEITEXRVATINKE RN
EERAREREAZRD /D ET
PR 48 BREN25% » LA 4 15 H VB 32 By
B B AL ¢ Re(ii)m R ERTT 65 BT Y
BB 522 5E o

AEBEETERRLEMEAEAL
BRABRE AR EMEB RS
VARE (R 70 B B 5 JE R 15 48 38 ST 25% 1)
FRER ©

BE_ZT_NFER-_F-_=9=A
=+—HLFE ARABHF LT

RARERN R RFFE

REETEATR SRR - AT
RBER-BE-F-MER-F
—=E=A=F—AIFE LRE
R RIERAT 8 0 B R 2
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33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 33. R 1TR

178 K. H. Group Holdings Limited

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Eligible participants include the full-time or
part-time employee of the Company or any member of the
Group, including any executive, non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors, advisers, consultants,
other contractors, business partners of the Company or any
subsidiaries. The Scheme became effective on 19 February
2016 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain
in force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an amount
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue as at the Listing Date and any shares of the
Company which may be allotted and issued by the Company
pursuant to the offer size adjustment option. The maximum
number of shares issuable under share options to each eligible
participant in the Scheme within any twelve months period is
limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time. Any further grant of shares options in excess of this limit is
subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors. In addition, any share
options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any time and with an aggregate value (based on
the price of the Company’s shares at the date of the grant) in
excess of HK$5,000,000, within any twelve months period up to
and including the date of the grant, are subject to shareholders’
approval in advance in a general meeting.

Annual Report
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33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED) 33. IR I =K (&)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
21 days from the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determinable by the
directors, and commences after a certain vesting period and
ends on a date which is not later than five years from the date of
the offer of the share options or the expiry date of the Scheme,
if earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
directors, but may not be less than the highest of (i) the closing
price of the Company’s shares as stated in the daily quotation
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the offer date of the
share options; (ii) the average closing price of the Company’s
shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the
Stock Exchange for the five trading days immediately preceding
the offer date; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s
shares on the offer date, when applicable.

Share options do not confer rights on the holder to dividends or
to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

No share option has been granted under the Scheme since
adoption of the Scheme.

BYBREZZHIRARAXZNA
EREAHIETER BEOBHRE
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34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(@) STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY

(@)

2024
—ENEF
Note HK$'000
(k=3 TET
Non-current assets KRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries INGIENG L =
Current assets nBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables T8 08 + &4 & E i fE WA 300
Due from a subsidiary FEU — M B N B 50R -
Bank and cash balances RITRB L 8k 25,023
25,323
Current liabilities RBEE
Accruals and other payables st E R R AR RE 13,255
Due to subsidiaries JERI B A Al 08 91,435
Other borrowings, unsecured HhfEs o mEA 10,000
114,690
Net current liabilities RBAETE (89,367)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBEE -
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Other borrowings, unsecured HibfEs o BER -
NET (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS (Bff) /EEFE (89,367)
Capital and reserves BARR#E
Share capital RN 32 4,800
Reserves i 34(b) (94,167)
(DEFICIENCY IN EQUITY)/ TOTAL EQUITY (BHE4) XA (89,367)

34. XA B B B AR R 3k R 5k
B2
iN/NI L8 37 St

108,255

300
472
1,225

1,997

9,728
5,794
28,763

44,285
(42,288)

65,967

65,026
941
4,000
(3,059)

941

Approved by the Board of Directors on 28 June 2024 and

CEEGN - T — =
signed on its behalf by: MEZFRN_F_HFNA

“TN\B#ESTRUATESRAR
REE

Chang Chih-Chia Yang Xuefeng

RHE w2
Executive Director Executive Director
HITESR HITEFE
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34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 34. AN 5] B B AR R Rk K f#
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY B8 E (&)
(CONTINUED)
(b) RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (o) 7D B
Share Accumulated Total
premium losses equity
RORE 25tE#R A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FiBT FAET
(note 35(b))
(P4 3E35(0))
As at 1 April 2022 RZE__FMA—H 84,4083 (19,147) 65,256
Loss and total comprehensive F A& 18 & 2 H Wiz B 58 K&
income and changes in BREE)
equity for the year - (68,315) (68,315)
As at 31 March 2023 and RZZE-_=F=A=+—H
1 April MMA—H
84,403 (87,462) (3,059)
Loss and total comprehensive 4 A& 18 K 2 H W 28 4 58 K
income and changes in Tz E B
equity for the year - (120,008) (120,008)
Placing of new shares B & ¥ Ak fn (P EE32)
(note 32) 29,200 - 29,200
Transaction cost attributable Bt & 31 A% {7 B 15 X 5 A A
to placing of new shares (300) - (300)
As at 31 March 2024 W-E-m&E=A=+—H 113,303 (207,470) (94,167)

B EBERAR AT 2023/24 £, 181
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35. RESERVES

(@)

182 K. H. Group Holdings Limited

GROUP

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein are presented in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages
83 and 86 of the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

SHARE PREMIUM

Under the Companies Act of the Cayman lIslands, the
funds in the share premium account of the Company are
distributable to the shareholders of the Company provided
that immediately following the date on which the dividend
is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a
position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

Share premium represents premium arising from the issue
of shares at a price in excess of their par value per share
and after deduction of capitalisation issue and issuance
costs of shares.

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION
RESERVE

The foreign currency translation reserve comprises all
foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of
the financial statements of foreign operations. The reserve
is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies set
out in note 4(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

Annual Report
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36. SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the subsidiaries at the end of each reporting e
period are as follows:

36. i B A 7]
WMERAROMBARGEBHOT ¢

Place of incorporation/ Date of incorporation/ Issued and  Percentage of ownership interest/
Name estab[is;hme\ntA and operation establishment paid up capital voting power/proﬂt sharmg Principal activity
£B AL/ YRR EE R AT/ LA BRARMRRA RERE/ RER/HEENAMY TEER
2024 2023
“E-ME “5ocF
Direct ownership
EfiAE
@eﬂd Limited Hong Kong 5 July 2019 HK$10,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
NRERAA &k “T-NELAERA 10,0007 REZR
K. H. Development Holdings Limited The BVI 13 August 015 US$100 100% 100%  Investment holding
ABRUES S-nENAT=A 100%7 REBR
Send Link Technology Pte. Ltd. Singapore 8Augus t 2019 SGD1,000,000 100% 100%  Inective
HE E-AENAN 1,000,000% 70 EEL
Isend Investment Limited The BVI 8 February 2021 US$10,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
ARRAHE ZE--%CANE 10,000% 7 REBR
Indlirect ownership
RikFgE
Aixun Trading (Beiing) Co., Ltd. (note (j) PRC 23 April 2021 US86,436,500 100% 100%  Trading of electronic
devices
FRE5 () BRA () hE “EC-£MACtT=H 6,436 500% ETHEES
K. H. Civil Engineering Limited Hong Kong 5 March 2001 HK$100 100% 100%  Provision of foundation
i B o and construction
ST AIRARAR B “FT-5=f%A 10087 REMEREERK
K. H. Foundations Limited Hong Kong 4 January 1985 HK$97,962,000 100% 100%  Provision of foundation
. e and construction
HOBEERAR & —AN\EE-ARA 97,962,000/ REMERBERE
f. H. Holdings Limited Hong Kong SS%Jtember 2006 HK$! 100% 100%  Investment holding
HOaRERAR &k ZZTRENATRA 187 RERR
K H. Machmery L|m|ted Hong Kong 23 January 2007 HK$3,000 100% 100%  Leasing of machinery
HTRHARAA &k ZZRtE-ACT=8 300047 EHES
K. H. Pling & Engmeenng Limited Hong Kong 8 November 2012 HK$100 100% 100%  Inective
STEIRERAR Bk ZE-Z£1-ANB 1007 ETRE%H
\send \nvestment (HK) L|m|ted Hong Kong 17 March 2021 HK$10,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
E(FR)ARAA Bk ZEC-£ZR1tH 10,0007 REBR
Fujian Youxu Construction Engineering Co. Ltd. PRC 20 April 2020 RMB50,000,000 100% - Construction and
(note (i) sales of chemical
_ ) B products
BREMEEIRBRAR (W) kel ZECEEMACTH AR 50,000,000 BERIERHE
Note: B2
(i) This subsidiary is registered as limited liability company (Taiwan, 0] It B B A 7 BEFBEEEAMABRE
Hong Kong or Macau legal person sole investment) under the PRC FERAT(EBBEABE)
Law.
(i) This subsidiary is registered as limited liability company (ii) B ARIRERBR AETMAERER

(foreign-invested enterprise sole investment) under the PRC Law.

ERR (IMEBERE) -
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37. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 37. &2 B & R E XM

CASH FLOWS

(@) ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 31 August 2023, the Group completed the acquisition

of 100% equity interests of Fujian Youxu Construction
Engineering Co. Limited (“Youxu”) for the total
consideration of approximately HK$1,928,000 (equivalent
to RMB1,762,000). Youxu were engaged in sales of
chemical products during the year. The acquisition was in
line with the Company’s business strategy to develop in
chemical products.

No acquisition related cost was incurred for the
acquisition.

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
of Youxu acquired as at the date of acquisition are as
follows:

(@)

s B B B A )

R-E-_=%FNA=+—8"
A& E L 42K (E 491,928,000
7T (H & A R #1,762,0007T)
TRKEREEBRETRE
BR A A ([MBME]) #9100%A% # -
BERFRARBLIERBEE -
KRWEFEARAIEHR
BB Y TS SR RS o

W EE A WA

KU RE B B A Wk BE B TB A9 AT G
MEEMAEBENRFENT

HK$’000
FE T
Inventories FE 385
Trade receivables =) & 5,142
Deposits, prepayment and other receivables e~ BT RIE K H U ERIE 723
Bank balances IRTTAE 4 9
Bank borrowings IRITIE R (1,299)
Trade payables B 5 R IE (3,032)
Net assets disposed of FrbE&EFE 1,928
Satisfied by: THRAR
Cash He 1,928
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: W E AR IR S F 58 ¢
Cash consideration paid BENRERE (1,928)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired FIiER S KRS EEY 9
(1,919)
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37. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 37. S BEL£H8 XMW (8)
CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(@) ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY @ WHEHBAR (&)

(CONTINUED)

The fair value of trade and other receivables is
approximately HK$5,142,000 and HK$686,000. The gross
contractual amount for trade and other receivables due is
approximately HK$5,142,000 and HK$686,000 and the
credit risk of the trade and other receivables is low.

Since the acquisition, Youxu has contributed revenue
of approximately HK$3,318,000 to the Group’s revenue
and loss of approximately HK$3,089,000 to the Group’s
loss for the year. Had the acquisition been completed
on 1 April 2023, the proforma consolidated revenue and
proforma loss of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2024 would have been approximately HK$177,544,000
and HK$53,766,000 respectively.

The proforma information is for illustrative purposes only
and is not necessarily an indication of the total revenue
and loss after tax of the Group that actually would have
been achieved had the acquisition been taken place at the
beginning of the year, nor is intended to be a projection of
future results.

B hEMBEWRRENRTE

Z’J 7%5 142,0007% 7T % 686,000/%8
B REMBBURIENR
,%’J & F8 #9 A&5,142,0007% 7T &
686,0002%73H%3%&ﬁﬁﬂ§%
HKEHNEERRERIE -

BlWESEZ BHRALEE
B Bt Uk 25 493,318,000 JT M
7N £ B F N E5 18 4) &3,089,000
& TT ° 1hLl&zE%EAf7f—¢m
A—HEZEXK AEE#H=E
TE-_WFE=ZA= +—E¢$
EMEERakas EEH
DRI A A177,544,00058 7T &
53,766,000/ Tt °

Et

BEERERGARE  AF
EHRBHEHRENETZERT
AEEER R ZEH 2 WaEie
BEBBRBBRZER 7TT
BRERREZ 2TBM -
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37. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 37. & B &8 XM (&)
CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(b) MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

i

i)

During the year ended 31 March 2024, gain on
change in the repayment term of other borrowings
and imputed interest expense of approximately Nil
(2023: HK$5,096,000) and HK$6,211,000 (2023:
HK$5,991,000) were recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income respectively.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, right-of-use
assets of approximately HK$6,808,000 (2023: Nil)
was transferred to property, plant and equipment.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, addition to
right-of-use assets of approximately HK$2,906,000
(2023: HK$1,130,000) was financed by lease
liabilities of HK$2,906,000 (2023: HK$1,130,000).

During the year ended 31 March 2024,
compensation of approximately HK$90,000,000
(2023: Nil) for loss incurred on certain foundation
projects was received by way of discharging other
borrowing from former ultimate holding company of
approximately HK$90,000,000 (2023: Nil).
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37. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 37. S BEL£HE2 XMW (8)
CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(©

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below shows details of the changes in the
Group’s liabilities arising from financing activities, including
both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from
financing activities are those for which cash flows were,
or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s
consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from

financing activities.

Balance as at 1 April 2022

Changes from financing cash flows:
Bank borrowings raised

Repayment of bank borrowings

Repayment of lease liabilities

Proceeds from amount due to a director of the
Company's subsidiary

Other changes:

Gain on change in the repayment term of other
borrowings (note 37(b)(i)

Imputed interest expense (note 37(0)(i)

Additions to lease liabilities (note 37 (o))

As at 31 March 2023

RZS--FNA—-AK
HE

RERMERGRECED
BERTER
BERTER
ERREEE
ERARRZHBAR
—%§$2Pﬁ/§*ﬁ

2.
AbEFERDED W
(HE3710)0)
EEFERZ (ME370))
T E & B (M ER37(0) i)

RZBZ=f=F=+-H

Lease borrowings,

liabilities
(note 28)

HEEE
(Ft3xos)
HK$'000

ThAL

7,828

&m%

(4,397)

3,431

c MELBFMELRAMBN

# Bk

TRINRASERE R E

EETEE’JQEJJ?IE

@?ﬁiﬁi

EEFEE#E/EQEEi/}ILEEj*
Xiﬁﬁ/}wgﬂ—rﬁ/\$ﬁlﬁ%é E

ERERTOBABMEEYM
BIEeRENAEGE-
Amount due
to a director
Bank Other of the
borrowings, Company’s
secured  unsecured  subsidiary Total
(note 29) (note 30) (note 27)
EREAR
ZHBAT
fAEH HER -ZEB
BER EER B @zt
(Hf5E20) (Hzk30) (Mzkar)
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
ThL TET TETL TATL
178,667 92,894 34,490 313,879
181,069 - - 181,069
(245,270) - - (245,270)
- - - (5,527)
- - 330 1,330
- (6,096) - (6,096)
- 5,991 - 5,991
- - - 1,130
(64,201) 895 1,330 (66,373)
114,466 93,789 35,820 247,506
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HE—

B 35 AR

For the year ended 31 March 2024
T_ME=A=+—HILFE

37. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 37. AR & B & RE KM= (&)
CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES (c) mEETEMELSAEER
ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES AR (58)
(CONTINUED)
Amount due
to a director
Lease Bank Other of the
liabilities  borrowings, borrowings, Company's
(note 28) secured  unsecured  subsidiary Total
(note 29) (note 30) (note 27)
ERAAR
ZHEAT
HEEE ®ROER HtkR -zEs2
(Kt3Tos) BHEH BER 4 @
(WsF29)  (W&s0)  (Hsken)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TB TBL THEL THL THL
Balance as at 1 April 2023 RIZZ=4MA—-AM
B 3,431 114,466 93,789 35,820 247,506
Changes from financing cash flows: RERMERGREL
28
Bank borrowings raised BERTEN _ 62,970 . . 62,970
Repayment of bank borrowings [EERTHER - (165,090) - - (165,090)
Repayment of lease liabilties EEREARE (4,024) - - - (4,024)
Repayment of amount due to a director of the ERAREREAR
Company's subsidiary —REBEN - - - (26,030) (26,030)
Other changes: Eth28.
Acaquisitions of subsidlaries (note 37(a)) RN B2 A (i EE37(a) - 1,209 - - 1,200
Termination of lease KIERE (291) - - - (291)
Imputed interest expense (note 37(b)(]) HERERY
(R zE37(0)) - - 6,211 - 6,211
Additions to lease liabilties (note 37(b)(i) HEAREM
(P 37 (o)) 2,906 - - - 2,06
Compensation for write-off of contract assets by I RAK KA A%
former ultimate holding company (note 37(o)(v)) AN EENHIE
GE=) - - 90,000 - (90,000
(1,409) (100,821) (83,789) (26,030) (212,049)
As at 31 March 2024 R=B-RmF=A=1-H 2,022 13,645 10,000 9,790 35,457
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REPMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024
HE_Z_NF=A=+—HILFE

37. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
(d) TOTAL CASH OUTFLOW FOR LEASES

38. PERFORMANCE BONDS

Amounts included in consolidated statement of cash flows
comprise the following:

Within operating cash flows RIEERESREN
Within financing cash flows RBREREREN

The amounts relate to the lease rental EEENHEHR S HHEH
paid &5

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has provided
guarantees to an insurance company as follows:

Guarantees on performance bonds for BRASNBEORE

construction contracts RREER

As at 31 March 2024, the securities for the Group’s
performance bonds for construction contracts are as follows:

(0

guarantees on performance bonds amounting to
approximately HK$10,158,000 (2023: HK$13,778,000)
are secured by (i) the Group’s other receivables of
approximately HK$2,361,000 (2023: HK$5,981,000); (i) a
personal guarantee executed by a director of a subsidiary
of the Company; and (i) corporate guarantees executed
by the Company and a subsidiary of the Company.

(d)

37. ZERERBRME (&)

n

EN R e
FARAESRERNEES
FAT A -

2024 2023
—EBEomNE  —T-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TFAET
6,359 8,179
4,024 5,527
10,383 13,706

38. BXRES

RBEMR  AEEERA—RRB A

AR A a0 T HEAR
2024 2023
—E-mE —ET—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
10,158 13,778

R-ZZFE_ME=ZA=+—H  ~5HE

pfecey

M

BRBRAOFRES 2EFWOT

B4 R7E £ 2 E1R#910,158,000
B (ZE = =4 : 13,778,000
,%75) BLA()leilﬁﬂﬂFiuﬁzm

3 /72 361 OOO/%TE (— = ::
$ 5,981,000% 7T) : (i) A& A
MEBARES R_LZ{I/\}T”%
KA R RARG KB A
R 2 N aERIEERT -
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RE M B|ERME
For the year ended 31 March 2024
HE-T-_WF=A=+—HILFE

38. PERFORMANCE BONDS (CONTINUED)

(i)  guarantee on a performance bond amounting to
approximately Nil (2023: Nil) is secured by (i) the Group’s
pledged bank deposits of approximately Nil (2023: Nil);
(i) a personal guarantee executed by a director of a
subsidiary of the Company and (i) the corporate guarantee
executed by the Company.

39. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At the end of reporting period, the Group did not have any
capital commitments (2023: Nil).

40. LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group as a lessee, had the following non-cancellable
short-term lease commitments:

38. BHRFTE (&)

(il BARBSZERHZTET(Z
EZ_E TE ) TR &
EEEBIRITFS @i%mﬁ—
E=F:FFx) (AR
—%W%@ﬂ%—%%%%z
2B AERRE)ARDABZYZ
NAEIERIEHE -

39. EARFKIE
RI|EHIR - A5 B & T ] & A%
B(ZE_=F:8) -

40. A E & IE

AREBE/EBEAN  BEE TIIT A
5 YRG0 HA T R HE

2024 2023

—E-mEF =

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FET FHIT

Within 1 year —FR 138 -
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REMBRRME
For the year ended 31 March 2024
HE_ZT_MF=A=1+—HILFE

41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@ In addition to those related party transactions and
balances disclosed elsewhere to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group had the following material

M. BEELTRS

(@) FREREMBHEREMMBITEE
MZFEE TR 5 REHRIN
AEENFAN G EEL BT E

transaction with its related party during the year: TUATEKRRZS

2024 2023
—E-mF —E_=fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FAT

Rental expenses charged by a related  — 5 B85 A 7] W ELAY
company (note i) Me = (B - 1,098
Salary paid to a related party (note i) Sz F BEHE 5 69 & (B &Fii) 311 738

Notes:

(i) Mr. Yeung Sau Ming, Boris, a former director of the Company,
who resigned on 13 August 2018 but still retained as a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Group during the years ended 31
March 2024 and 2023, has beneficial interest in this related
company.

(i) The spouse of Mr. Yeung Sau Ming, Boris, a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group, received the salary during the years
ended 31 March 2024 and 2023.

f 5 -

0] ARBAESHGEHLEE(ER=F
—N\FENA+=HFF BEREE=-Z
THFERZE=F=RA=+—HILF
ENMBEAEEETHBARES)RN
ZEM AR B o

iy FAEEETHBARNERESEALED

RERBE T -_NMER-_T-_=F=
A=+—RILFEKRBEBAF < -

B EBERAR AT 2023/24 £, 191



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEPBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2024
BHE_ZT_NMF=A=1+—HILFE

41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(b)

192 K. H. Group Holdings Limited

Compensation of key management personnel of the
Group:

R H R B 8 A
RARET I HE5K

Short term employee benefits
Pension scheme contributions

QESS
M

Total compensation paid to key
management personnel

Key management personnel represents the independent
non-executive directors and executive directors of the
Group, managing director and general manager of the
Group’s subsidiaries.

Further details of employee benefits expense and
directors’ emoluments are included in notes 13 and 14 to
the consolidated financial statements respectively.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, New Grace Gain
discharged a portion of the unsecured loan amounting to
HK$90,000,000 (2023: Nil) to recover the amount of loss
arising from certain foundation projects of the Group.

As at 31 March 2024 and 2023, bank borrowings in note
29 and performance bond in note 38 were secured by
personal guarantee of the managing director of Company’s
subsidiaries.

Annual Report

M. BEERS (&)

(b)

BEABXTH

AEEXTEEEABHH
2024 2023
—E-mE T =
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
7,993 9,127
72 55
8,065 9,182

T2EEABEAKREBIFE
HITEZRRTES A5HE

MEBAREFALIERBKE -

FHRERERIEIMEZNE
ME—FFBDRERES B
AR MEFE135K%14 -

HE-_Z_WMF=A=+—H
IEE E - New Grace Gainfig %
=0 o 42 3K 8 & 390,000,000
T(ZE_ZF: &) NAkE
AREBETHEEREEANS
A1 o

RZEBE_NER_FT_=F=

H +— B - M E298 R 1T &
HEKI A BHREFL AN
NAIMB AR EEREEZE

A%&Wﬁﬁo



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REPMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024
HE_ZT_MF=A=1+—HILFE

42. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 42. SREHIEREIE

On 21 June 2024, winding up petitions (the “Petition(s)”)
were filed by The Bank of East Asia, Limited (the “Petitioner”)
at the High Court of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region (the “Court”) against each of the Company and K. H.
Foundations Limited (“KHF”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, under the Companies (Winding Up and Miscellaneous
Provisions) Ordinance (Chapter 32 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
(the “CWUMPQ”). The Petitions were filed against the Company
and KHF, in relation to the non-payment of credit facilities
granted by the Petitioner to KHF in the principal amount of
approximately HK$11.6 million, plus accrued interest; and the
guarantee executed by the Company in favour of the Petitioner
for amounts outstanding under the credit facilities granted by
the Petitioner to KHF. The Petitions are scheduled to be heard
on 28 August 2024.

The Company will actively negotiate with the Petitioner about
a practicable settlement plan, and seek legal advice and take
appropriate actions as shall be advised. The Company will also
continue to explore business opportunities to generate additional
cash flow and improve the financial position of the Company
and its subsidiaries.

Details of above is set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 27 June 2024.

43. APPROVED OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 June 2024.

NR-ZZTE-MEA=-+—H  FIiR
TERRARI(EFAD BEEB X
B E32E (AR (BB R HEIKS) 1K
B (T2 =) OF 8 K& 3 630 1&611)
mBEBERITRE S E AT ([JEF )
RBREEARRBRARNAZ=ENE
AERTEAR AR ([RI4THmE )
MEREF (25 - 2H-HY
AAR MBI ERERISIREFZAR
FRTHERESH11.68 85T LE
SREMEEBREREEE ALK
NAMEBFARPTHERLEHE
BEHEERMAEBESCBERAEBZARY
MER  EFBEAR_ZE-_NWENA
—“t+NBEA -

ARRAFBIEGEZFAEBERAIT
MBRRTT SR - WS REARE R MREL
REZNEETE - KRB FKES
REBBUAELERI RS RELHE
RRATREWNB R BT MR

IR SO E et
FRA-TERAZAS -

43. it E R B M B R

HEMBRRENR T _MF A
“TN\BEEFSRHERRENE-
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBRE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group AEBEBERBETBFENZEEREER

for the last five financial years is set out below: BEHMEFRYWT :
RESULTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH BE=A=+—HIFEEZ
¥E
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
—ECMmE —EC=F —E-CF —E--F S -2
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHEL THL THT THET
Revenue Yigs 175,174 245,349 751,767 933,797 374,903
Cost of sales and services HE RATRE R A
rendered (206,213) (274,332) (722,019) (892,144) (334,061)
Gross (loss)/profit (£8) /E7 (31,039) (28,983) 29,748 41,653 40,842
Other income Etle A 90,925 10,239 8,084 12,699 3,545
Administrative and other THREMEEHRY
operating expenses (33,584) (34,448) (41,697) (38,933) (30,060)
Impairment of property, plant and 1% - #E R R ERE
equipment (1,983) - - - -
Write-off of contract assets WHEHEE (65,932) (4,602) (4,744) (4,693) (4,567)
Provision for ECL on trade B HEWGE - Ebt
receivables, other receivables  EMHIE R A4
and contract assets, net of BENBHEE
reversal of impairment loss BRREE
MEREFEAE (768) (6,000) (910) 2,142) (1,521)
(Loss)/profit from operations gems (e 8f (42,381) (63,794) (9,519) 8,584 8,239
Finance costs BB A (9,179) (10,321) (8,825) (7,513) (7,230)
(Loss)/profit before tax BHA(EB) /&F (51,560) (74,115) (18,344) 1,071 1,009
Income tax expenses ERAY - - @ - -
(Loss)/profit and total $ T BAEEER
comprehensive income for the 58) /R REE
year attributable to owners of Hﬁlﬁn k]
the Company (51,560) (74,115) (18,346) 1,071 1,009
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AS AT 31 MARCH R=BA=+—RBzEEREE
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
—ECNE —T-=F —E-C —Z-—F —ZE-%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT TEL THIT THT THET
Total assets BEHSE 201,989 440,035 658,020 682,892 418,791
Total liabilities BELEE (227,753) (439,000) (582,879) (589,405) (326,375)
Net (iabilities)/assets (Bf) /BEFE (25,764) 1,026 75,141 93,487 92,416
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